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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Hai Ying, aged 64, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 1 January 2012 and was re-designated
as an Executive Director of the Company in February 2012. Mr. Xu
is the senior technical consultant and senior manager of 1 BI&i#E
IR R & B B R 2 7 (China Jieneng Huangbao Group Company
Limited*), whose principal business is the development of energy
conservation technologies, clean and new energy, and energy
infrastructure construction. Mr. Xu has substantial management
experience and has been the manager of the representative offices
of Wallem & Company Limited (¥ # fis %5 & B & R 2 A) in
Shanghai and Tianjin, The People’s Republic of China and the chief
representative of the Shanghai representative office of Hong Kong
Maritime Company Limited (& /& /8 i& & BR A &) and has served
other management positions. Mr. Xu currently serves as an
executive director of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353, a
company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE - SREEENRET

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P., (Australia), aged 49, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 11 June
2012 and was re-designated as an Executive Director of the
Company in August 2012. Dr. Ou holds a Doctor of Philosophy
degree in Civil & Resource Engineering from The University of
Western Australia, Australia. He also holds two Bachelor of
Engineering degrees in Engineering Management & Structural
Engineering respectively from Tongji University (&% AX22). Dr. Ou
has over 25 years of professional engineering and management
experience in oil & gas, mining and infrastructure industries both in
Australia and China. He has been a senior staff member in the
world's leading energy & resource firms including Kellogg Brown &
Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton), WorleyParsons Pty Ltd.,
as well as Sedgman Ltd., which is specialising in coal processing
and handling plants. Dr. Ou participated in a number of key energy
and resource projects around the world such as acting as the Lead
Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton RGP6 Jimblebar
project; Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding expansion project; Chevron
Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline project; Yemen LNG Project (in
the Republic of Yemen) and Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury
Natural Gas Pipeline (Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou also has
extensive experience and network in China. He was the general
manager of 18 2% 2 FEE T2 A Al (Fujian Liming Construction
Company*) from 1993 to 1997. He was a Guest Professor for Inner
Mongolia University (A5 #& A2) and Inner Mongolia University of
Science & Technology (I & & £} % KX &) in China. Currently, Dr.
Ou is an independent non-executive director of Rey Resources
Limited (a company listed on ASX) and an executive director of Hao
Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock
code: 1341), which is a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange.

6 Annual Report %k 2017/18

BEE(#E)
WITEE ()

BSREL - Armroan 495 R-T—_FX
A+—RAEBZERARBBIYIENTESE - W=
E-—ZHENARFARRFRRNTES - BELHE
SENTERA ST AREERTIEBEEFE L B0 o
MAoRFERBASNIEETTIEEREN - &
TRETHEBIRSN - BELERMNANFRENA
MAMARAR BEMEMRBHEIIEEETEA25F
N EBEELR - REXSHTEZIRNERLEIR
NEEERHRBE - B%EKellogg Brown & Root (Al
T KBR Halliburton) * WorleyParsons Pty Ltd. & i %
7% D0 TN B 32 R A Sedgman Ltd. » BRI 2281 %
BE2HREZEMNRERLRERER K Y2 HEBHP
Billiton RGPé JimblebarH B + 71# Dove Siding #E &
T 72 + Chevron Wheatstone R BRE EIEE * T
BAERARIER (EPIEFAE) FRAXBEN
BAMRAREE(CBREER)IERE EMR T KRERE
Ti2HD - S TEF BB L ERNER R - RN
—hWN=ZFZ-AhtF REETREERAR
LIRDANALE REENEFERERATA
BHE K28 F F X o BUE + 5 £ Rey Resources
Limited (—fAIFORINFE H 2 Z AT EH 28] 9B L
HPITES  TAERERERREEEBRQF
(IR REE - 1341) (—ERBEZFTER EHAIRF])
BWBITES -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, aged 42, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in September 2013. Mr. Fok was also the directors
of various subsidiaries of the Group and has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company since December 2010. In addition
to the responsibility to oversee the Group’s finance unit and
functions, Mr. Fok also involves in the formulation of strategic plans
for the business development of the Group, fund raising activities
and potential merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr.
Fok holds a master degree in business administration from the
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently
serves as an executive director of Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code: 1341), which is
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Fok has
extensive experience in corporate finance, corporate governance,

mergers and acquisitions, auditing and financial management.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE - SREEENRET

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan, aged 45, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in March
2012. Mr. Chan graduated from the University of New South Wales,
Australia with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in Accounting and
Computer Information Systems. He is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
Certified Practising Accountants, Australia. Mr. Chan has over 20
years of experience in auditing, accounting, investment and
financial management. Mr. Chan is currently an investment
manager of Sprint Asset Management Limited. Mr. Chan is also an
independent non-executive director of each of China Dredging
Environment Protection Holdings Limited (stock code: 871),
Shenyang Public Utility Holdings Company Limited (stock code:
747), Up Energy Development Group Limited (stock code: 307) and
Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353), whose securities are listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange, and of Changhong
Jiahua Holdings Limited (stock code: 8016) and Dining Concepts
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8056), whose securities are listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan resigned as independent
non-executive director of Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Focus Media Network Limited) (stock code:
8112), L&A International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8195) and
Far East Holdings International Limited (stock code: 36) on 27
November 2015, 3 March 2017 and 18 July 2017 respectively.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2012. Mr. Lam
graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a degree in
Bachelor of Arts in Accountancy. He has more than 18 years of
experience in the commercial and corporate finance field.
Currently, Mr. Lam is a director of China Natural Resources, Inc. (a
company listed on NASDAQ since 2003), and an executive director
and the chief executive officer of SFund International Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Hanbo Enterprises Holdings Limited)
(stock code: 1367), which is listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lam was an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Enterprise Development Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1808) from February 2012 to May 2015 and May 2013
to May 2015 respectively, and China Smarter Energy Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 1004) from August 2010 to August
2017, which are both listed on the main board of the Stock

Exchange.

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua, aged 46, is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has
extensive experience in the fields of auditing, accounting and
finance. Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of each of China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited
(stock code: 8116), Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (stock
code: 8153) and Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited (formerly
known as Focus Media Network Limited) (stock code: 8112), which
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. He currently serves as
the independent non-executive director of each of Hao Tian
International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code:
1341), Up Energy Development Group Limited (Stock code: 307)
and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1353), and an executive
director of China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited (stock code:
1143), which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He was also an independent non-executive director of China
Minsheng Drawin Technology Group Limited (stock code: 726) from
December 2013 to February 2015 and Teamway International
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Jin Bao Bao Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 1239) from March 2015 to August 2017.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

EE - SREEENRET

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Kai Yin Edward (“Mr. Siu”), aged 38, was appointed as
the General Counsel and Company Secretary of the Company in
May 2017 and August 2017, respectively. Mr. Siu is mainly
responsible for overseeing the legal and compliance functions of
our Company and various subsidiaries and associates of our Group.
Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Siu was legal counsel at Huatai
Financial Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited from December 2015 to
March 2017. From 2003 to 2015, Mr. Siu practised as a private
practice lawyer advising on corporate finance, mergers and
acquisitions and private equity transactional matters in a number of
internationally renowned firms in Hong Kong and Australia,
including Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher (Hong Kong), Norton Rose
Fulbright (Hong Kong and Melbourne, Australia) and Minter Ellison
(Brisbane, Australia). Mr. Siu received a Bachelor of Commerce
(Accountancy) and Bachelor of Laws double degree from the
University of Queensland, Australia in 2002, and he is admitted as a
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong, the Supreme Court of

Queensland, Australia and the Supreme Court of Victoria, Australia.
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Law Geoff Chun Mo (“Mr. Law"), aged 43, was appointed as
the Group Financial Controller of the Company in November 2016.
Mr. Law obtained a bachelor’s degree of commerce from the
University of New South Wales in Australia, majoring in finance and
accounting. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA Australia. Mr.
Law has extensive experiences in financial management, internal
control management, corporate finance, pre-investment and post-
investment project management, equity investment and other
related areas. Mr. Law also has management experiences in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). Mr. Law is also the chief
financial officer and company secretary of Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd.
which is a company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1353). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Law had various
positions, including being an audit senior manager in KPMG, the
financial controller of an A-share listed company, and the chief
financial officer and investment director in private equity fund

management companies in the PRC.
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND STAFF

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Zhou Yong (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 50, is appointed as a vice
president of Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Limited in July
2017. Mr. Zhou holds a bachelor's degree and a master’s degree in
business administration from the University of Zurich. Mr. Zhou has
over 19 years of experience in asset management, banking services
and risk management. He has held various senior positions with
prominent financial services companies including New Pacific
Capital Limited (3T A ¥ &R AFBR 2 E]) and Credit Suisse Group
AG (lm =1 &% E). Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Zhou was
the managing director and responsible officer (Type 9) of New
Vision Asset Management Limited G EEEIEHBR A E]).

Mr. Lau Chi Hang (“Mr. Lau"), aged 36, joined Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and had
assumed as General Manager in Hao Tian Credit Company Limited
since 1 October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated from Benedictine College
in USA with a Bachelor Degree in Commerce. Mr. Lau has more
than 10 years of experience in the banking and financial sector.
Before joining the Company, Mr. Lau had worked in South China
Financial Credit, Australia and New Zealand Banking Group
Limited, and Bank of China Credit Card Center.
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DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES

On behalf of Hao Tian Development Group Limited (the

"Company”, and together with its subsidiaries, collectively the

‘Group”), | hereby present the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2018 (the “Year").

This year is a transformational for the Group to explore new

businesses and investments to further develop. During the year, the

Group announced six key potential investments and capital market

actions as follow:

(a)

12

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (stock code: 1341.HK) completed a placing to raise

net proceeds of HK$121.4 million and a bonus issue;

Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd (stock code: 1353.HK) announced a very
substantial acquisition for Zhong Hong International Limited
(&= BB A R 2 R ) which is principally engaged in the
provision of construction services, mainly as a general
contractor for residential construction projects, commercial
and public works construction projects, and industrial and
other construction projects, in the PRC. This transaction also
constitutes a very substantial disposal of the Company and a

part of the group restructuring;

The Group announced to acquire Done & Dusted Productions
Limited for US$89.6 million, which is principally engaged in
the business of television and events production and has
staged and/or filmed events such as The Victoria's Secret
Fashion Show, the TV coverage for the 2012 London Olympic
Opening & Closing Ceremonies;

The Group completed the acquisition of a London property,
namely “55 Mark Lane, EC3", which is a Grade A office, retail
and ancillary accommodation arranged over basement, lower
ground, ground, seven upper floors and 18 car parking spaces
situated at 52-58 Mark Lane, London, EC3R 7NE with a gross
floor area of approximately 161,689 square feets, for a total
consideration of £127,651,973 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,381,194,348) (subject to completion adjustments but in

no event shall be more than £130 million);
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(e)  The Group announced a potential acquisition of Eight Nine
Eight Innovation Space (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd.*
(NANBET = GER) BHEBR A R), which operates the
co-working space management and operation business and

exchange and clearing business in the PRC; and

() The Group announced a group restructuring to transfer Hao
Tian International Financial Holdings Limited ( 2 XEIIR & &b
& I& B BB A A ) to Hao Tian International Construction
Investment Group Limited (stock code:1341.HK). This financial
platform provides financial services including SFC regulated
activities (type 1, type 2 and type 9), insurance agency

business and money lending business.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders for their tremendous support, and to
our directors, management and staff for their invaluable
contributions to the Group. The Group will put focus on
streamlining the existing businesses and explore new business

opportunities to achieve fabulous returns for our shareholders.

Dr. Zhiliang Ou

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2018
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

Money Lending Business

During the year, the money lending business of the Group
generated an interest income of approximately HK$118.0 million
(2017: approximately HK$138.1 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 14.6%. The main business of this segment includes
provision of property mortgage loans and personal loans to
customers in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding
loan receivables of the money lending business of the Group (net
of impairment) was approximately HK$726.0 million (2017:
approximately HK$788.6 million).

Securities Investment Business (Investments held for
trading)

During the year, the net realised gains from disposal of investments
held for trading were approximately HK$9.7 million (2017: realised
loss of approximately HK$964.5 million) and the unrealised fair
value losses from investments held for trading, comprising listed
equity securities, were approximately HK$154.8 million (2017:
unrealised fair value losses of approximately HK$2,096.0 million).
The substantial losses incurred were mainly attributable to the fair
value loss for the shares in China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited (stock code: 412) ("CSFG") of approximately
HK$99.2 million. (2017: fair value loss of approximately HK$2,050.5

million)
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Securities Investment Business (Investments held for
trading) (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the value of equity securities listed on the
Stock Exchange held by the Group which were classified as
investments held for trading amounted to approximately
HK$1,258.2 million (31 March 2017: approximately HK$1,237.2
million). They mainly comprised the following listed securities,
namely: (1) CSFG (stock code: 412); (2) Tencent Holdings Limited
(stock code: 700); (3) Carnival Group International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 996); and (4) Imperial Pacific International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1076) (“Imperial Pacific”). The details of the
Group's equity securities investments classified as investments

held-for-trading are set out as follows:

Numberof  Percentage of

sharesheldat ~ shareholdings

at 31 March at 31 March

Company Name/(Stock Code) 2018 2018

R=B-NE RZB-NE

BEEENWR DN

EHORE(E)
BHEREXE (FEERERE)(F)

RZE—NFEZA=Z+—R8 AEEAFFIHR
FﬁHxZK%‘%(EEﬁ%n HMAREEEREA)EENR
12582B @B T(—E—tFE=A=+—8: %
1,2372B8%ET)  c HXERETI LEWES - B
(1)¢M$$%ﬂ%l(ﬁxfﬁﬁsﬁ D412) 5 (2) BERREAR
BRAR(BERMHAS : 700) : Q)R FERBEERAER
AR (B HRER  996) + K (4 T@itﬂ?ﬁlﬁ%hﬂﬁﬁ
RAR(BRMASE :1076) ([BEKEE] - £5H
“*E%H’EEE&ﬁZHxZK EHREAFBHINMNT ¢

Percentage of
equity securities
Unrealised fair investments
value (loss)/ classifiedas  Percentage of
Carrying gain for the investments total assets
amount year ended Fairvalue held-for-trading of the Group
at 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March at 31 March
2017 2018 2018 2018 2018
HEZE-N\F R=E-NE
ZA=1-A ZA=t-A R=E-NE

R-B-tE gz RSR-NE SBARKEE ZA=t-R

ZREt-B  ZASt-B ZAZt-B AEEATE  ZRIT-B REZRARE  GAREEE

DAER/ (RBRE) FERGHE  ZBRESM ZEEE  (BR)/hE ZAVE  REZAAM  BEZESHM

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000

TEn TR TEn TEn Thn

CSFG 412 SEURSBER W) 330,98410 1347% 1091408 929 90,189 T886% 1973%

Tencent Holdngs Limited 10 EAERERATO0) 500000 001% - o) 2480 1628% 4%
Camnival Group International FEERRERERLE(99)

Holdings Limited (99) 90,610,000 0.38% 76,112 (43493) 32619 25%% 0.65%
Imperial Pactfic International BEATRERERERDF(1076)

Holdings Limited (107¢) 229,700,000 0.16% 31,010 (8499) 2,5 179% 0.45%
Far East Holdings International Limited (3¢) ERAREEERAR ) 4,983,000 046% 3787 50 3837 0.30% 0.08%
Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (925) Rk (ER) ARAF 029) 8,140,000 0.12% 3012 73 2% 0.18% 004%
Up Energy Development Group Ltd (307) EReREREERRAFE0) 4,000,000 00%% = - - - =
Disposal securities HEES NATHER NATHER 31871 3 = - =

1,237,200 (154,675) 1,258,195 100% 2500%
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Securities Investment Business (Investments held for
trading) (continued)

As investment in equity securities accounts for a significant portion
of the Group's total assets, management will closely monitor the
investment portfolio and capture opportunities arising from held-
for-trading investments in a prudent manner and balance
investment risks. The Group believes that following the
implementation of the favorable financial measures in Hong Kong,
such as the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, mutual
recognition of funds and the Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect,
the Group is optimistic about the future equity securities market in

Hong Kong.
Investments classified as available-for-sale investments

During the year, there was an impairment loss from the disposal of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$1.7 million
(2017: realised gain of approximately HK$53.2 million). As at 31
March 2018, the aggregate value of the listed equity securities in
Hong Kong and an unlisted fund held by the Group which were
classified as available-for-sale investments amounted to
approximately HK$702.0 million (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$694.3 million). Such value comprised of securities of two listed
companies, namely: (1) Imperial Pacific (stock code: 1076); and (2)
CSFG (stock code: 412) and an unlisted fund comprising the
participating shares in Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Investment
Fund | S.P. of Haitong Global Investment SPC Ill. The remaining
balance of available-for-sale investments represented certain
unlisted equity securities carried at cost less accumulated
impairment, which amounted to approximately HK$112.1 million (31
March 2017: approximately HK$70.2 million). During the year, the
Group acquired the said unlisted fund and certain unlisted equity
securities, and disposed of 500,000,000 shares in HengTen
Networks Group Limited (stock code: 136).
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% EEEHR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEREFN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Investments classified as available-for-sale investments

(continued)

EBEOIRE(E)
TRATHHEREZRE(H)

Unrealised fair
value (loss)/
gain and

(impairment loss)

Percentage of
total available

Percentage of

Number of  Percentage of Carrying for the Carrying forsadle total assets of
sharesheldat ~ shareholdings amount year ended amount investments the Group
at 31 March at 31 March at 31 March 31 March at 31 March at 31 March at 31 March
Company Name/(Stock Code) 2018 2018 2017 2018 2018 2018 2018
BE-Z-N%
ZA=t-H
I3 72 W-8-NF  RoE-NF
W-8-NF  RZE-NE RCR-HF RBRAYE WoE-0F 0 ZASt-R ZAZ1-A
ZA=+-A ZR=+-A ZA=t-A (B8)/h&  =A=t-B f(THHERE  HAEEEE
DAER/ (RBRE) fiRH#E ZRREA ZBEE  R(AEER) JEEE  BEZAAL  AEZEMM
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Thn Tin Fin Tin Thn
Imperial Pacific International BEATFERERERAF(1076)

Holdings Limited (1076) 4133660000 289% 556,044 (152,945) 405,099 4976% 805%
CSFG (412 PELRERET 2 196,261,040 080% 84766 (5,889) 58878 7.23% 117%
Up Energy Development Group Limited (307)  EREREREDARAF(307) 367,500,000 8.10% - - - - -
Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche Investment Haitong Global Investment SPC Il 2

Fund I S.P. of Haitong Global Investment Haitong Dynamic Multi-Tranche

SPCII Investment Fund | S.P. NIAER NIATER - 4701 27,994 29.24% 473%
Others — unlisted Af—3Em NIAER NIANER 70,178 - 112,088 1377% 223%
Disposed securities HERS NATEE NIATER 71,500 - - - -

764,488 (154132) 814,059 100% 16.18%
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Rental of construction machinery business

During the year, Hao Tian International Construction Investment
Group Limited (“"Hao Tian International Construction”)
contributed a revenue of approximately HK$165.9 million and a
segment loss of approximately HK$200.7 million. There was a
goodwill impairment loss of approximately HK$172.8 million, in
respect of the goodwill allocated to Hao Tian International
Construction at the date of acquisition, recorded during the year.
There was an operating loss of approximately HK$27.9 million from

Hao Tian International Construction during the year.
Trading of futures business

During the year, the Group had incurred a loss of approximately
HK$3.8 million (2017: loss of approximately HK$16.2 million) in
futures trading business segment, which was mainly attributable to

the volatility of the commodities market.

Retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels business

During the year, Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1353) (“Fujian
Nuoqi”) contributed a revenue of approximately HK$34.6 million
and a segment loss of approximately HK$158.5 million. There was a
goodwill impairment loss of approximately HK$143.5 million, in
respect of the goodwill allocated to Fujian Nuogqi at the date of
acquisition, recorded during the year. There was an operating loss
of approximately HK$15.0 million from Fujian Nuogi during the

year.
Warehousing and Logistics Business

The Group owns a parcel of land located at Ganquanbao Industrial
Park, Urumgji, Xinjiang (TS BARE M H RETEER) with a site
area of approximately 151,100 sq.m., which is designated for
warehousing and logistics business purposes. During the year, no
revenue was recorded from the warehousing and logistics business

of the Group as the development was still in a preliminary stage.
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$444.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: approximately HK$3,078.9 million). Such loss was
mainly attributable to the impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$316.3 million and fair value loss of listed
investment held for trading of approximately HK$154.8 million
(2017: approximately HK$2,096.0 million). Such impact was partially

offset by the profit from the money lending business.

Interest income from money lending business amounted to
approximately HK$118.0 million (2017: approximately HK$138.1
million). The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
personal loan business, and was partially offset by continual
increase in the number of customers for our property mortgaged
loan business. Interest expenses of approximately HK$5.7 million
(2017: approximately HK$20.1 million) was incurred for bank
borrowings obtained solely for the Group’s money lending
business. The Group financed the money lending business by

external and internal resources during the year.

The Group recorded losses in other gains and losses of
approximately HK$384.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2018
(2017: approximately HK$3,616.6 million). Such loss was mainly
attributable to impairment loss on goodwill of approximately
HK$316.3 million (2017: nil) and fair value loss for the shares in
CSFG of approximately HK$99.2 million (2017: approximately
HK$2,050.5 million). Such impact was partially offset by the profit
from the money lending business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

During the year, administrative expenses were approximately
HK$226.6 million (2017: approximately HK$132.9 million),
representing an increase of approximately HK$93.8 million or 70.6%
as compared with last year. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in the number of subsidiaries after the acquisition of Hao
Tian International Construction, Hao Tian Securities, Fujian Nuoqi
and the establishment of various companies under Hao Tian
International Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as King
International Financial Holdings Limited) which are engaged in

trading of futures and bullions.
Finance Costs

During the year, the finance costs were approximately HK$79.6
million (2017: approximately HK$87.9 million), representing a
decrease of approximately HK$8.3 million or 9.4% as compared
with last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the full
redemption of US$30,000,000 secured notes during the year.

Taxation

During the year, net income tax credit was approximately HK$12.6
million (2017: approximately HK$497.9 million). The net income tax
credit was generally in line with the existence of fair value loss on

investments held for trading incurred during the year.
Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company
During the year, the Group recorded a loss attributable to owners
of the Company of approximately HK$444.9 million (2017:

approximately HK$3,078.9 million) which was attributable to the

factors mentioned above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity, Capital Structure and Financial Resources

The Group mainly financed its operations from a combination of
operating cash flows, borrowings and equity. As at 31 March 2018,
the Group had bank balances and cash (including pledged bank
deposits) of approximately HK$801.1 million (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$865.6 million). The Group's working capital
decreased to approximately HK$1,627.8 million (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$1,747.5 million).

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding borrowings
(including secured notes and obligations under finance leases) of
approximately HK$1,372.1 million (31 March 2017: approximately
HK$1,096.2 million). The Group had various banking facilities
provided by financial institutions in Hong Kong which were secured
by certain assets of the Group, including (i) the Group's available-
for-sale investments of HK$464 million; (ii) investments held for
trading of HK$1,252.1 million; (iii) certain bank deposits held by the
Group; (iv) certain leasehold land and building; and (v) certain

machinery and motor vehicles.

Gearing ratio (being the ratio of total borrowings, including secured
notes and obligations under finance leases, to total assets) as at 31
March 2018 was 27.3% (31 March 2017: 20.5%). The increase was
mainly attributable to (i) the issuance of secured notes and (ii) the
fair value loss on investment held for trading which reduced the

asset base.
Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had capital commitments which
amounted to approximately HK$1,435.1 million (31 March 2017:
approximately HK$154.0 million) in respect of addition of property,
plant and equipment which had been contracted for but not
provided for and the consideration (net of a non-refundable
deposit paid during the year) to acquire a company incorporated
under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg with limited
liability, which hold a mixed-use property in London, United
Kingdom. The capital commitments in respect of addition of
property, plant and equipment were mainly related to the
development of the logistics warehousing business in Xinjiang and

the purchase of construction machinery for rental purpose.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group provided corporate guarantees
and performance guarantee amounting to approximately HK$0.3
million (31 March 2017: HK$2.3 million) and HK$11.2 million (31
March 2017: HK$11.2 million) to banks in respect of obligations
under finance leases and the Group's obligations under contracts
with certain third party customers respectively. Pursuant to the
guarantees, the Group would be liable to pay the banks if the
banks are unable to recover the outstanding amounts under these
finance leases from these customers or the Group failed to perform
relevant obligations to these customers. As at 31 March 2018, no
provision for the Group's obligation under the guarantee had been
made as the Directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayment of the finance lease would be in default and it was not
probable that a claim will be made against the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2018.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates

The Group's revenues and other income are denominated mainly
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), United States dollars (“US$") and
Renminbi ("RMB"”). The Group's purchases and expenses are
mostly denominated in HK$, US$, RMB, Japanese Yen, Euro Dollar
and British Pound. The Group has certain foreign currency bank
balances and investment in foreign operations, which are exposed
to foreign currency exchange risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure of the Group from time to
time and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Employee Information

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had a total of approximately 281
employees (31 March 2017: 358 employees) in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group maintains a mandatory provident fund scheme for
its employees in Hong Kong and participates in the state-managed
retirement benefit schemes for its employees in the PRC. The
Group's remuneration policies are formulated according to market
practices, experiences, skills and performance of individual
employees and are reviewed every year.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme. A summary of the share option scheme of the
Group is set out in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company. Details of the share award scheme are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 September
2013.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITY DURING THE

YEAR

The Group carried out an equity funding activity during the year.
The details of equity funding activity and the actual use of proceeds — &)2 518 RFT15 3K

are as follows:

V==

BEENWE D

REFEZRAREEE

AEBERAFERETRAKERD - RAKER
BZBRMREIT

Date of Approximate Intended use of Actual use of proceeds

announcement  Event net proceeds net proceeds as at the date of this report

NERH £ BORERERE FEREREzRERE RAGEBHZFEREERAZ

10 May 2017 Placing of 200,000,000 new  Approximately The net proceeds intended to be used in real  Of the net proceeds of approximately

ordinary shares with aggregate
nominal value of HK$2,000,000
by a subsidiary of the
Company, Hao Tian
International Construction
(formerly known as Clear Lift
Holdings Limited) at the
placing price of HK$0.62 per
placing share (and net issue
price being HK$0.605 per
placing share). The closing
price of the shares on 10 May
2017 was HK$0.66.
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HK$121.4 million

ANABERT

estate development and investment
properties and expansion opportunities in
respect of the rental of construction
machinery business in the PRC, Singapore,
Vietnam and the United Kingdom by Hao
Tian International Construction; and for the
general working capital of the Hao Tian
International Construction. In view of
recent business development strategies
and investment opportunities, Hao Tian
International Construction amended the
intended use of proceeds to satisfy part of
the consideration payable to the Company
for the proposed acquisition by Solution
Pro Investments Limited (an indirect
subsidiary of Hao Tian International
Construction) of Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings Limited.
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DREREREEZRTE - 3 B
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ENIARBERRRIRARE RX
ERRREETFAENALHER RIS
SRERRRERSE 2B Solution
Pro Investments Limited 3% 4 2 REIE
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KE-

HK$121.4 million, approximately HK$56.1
million has been utilised. Of this,
approximately HK$6.1 million was utilised
as intended for general working capital
purposes and approximately HK$50.0
million was utilised towards paying the
HK$100 million deposit in respect of the
proposed acquisition by Solution Pro
Investments Limited (an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of Hao Tian International
Construction) of Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings Limited (the "HTIFH
Acquisition”)*. As of the date of this
report, approximately HK$65.3 million of
the proceeds has not yet been utilised.

EFBRBFEMNABGERBLEFR 4
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TEREHAE-KEEES  MH500
BEB LB [ Solution Pro Investments
Limited (R REBERZ 2 A2 ENER
7 EEREZXER SRR ER AR
PRZISI10BEETREDA(RX
ARERERKESE]) - HEAREH
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2 The HTIFH Acquisition has not yet completed as of the date of this report, ~ * HEARES B 2RERSmERKREEEIE MR -

and the deposit shall be returned to the Hao Tian International
Construction if the HTIFH Acquisition does not take place due to a reason

EERUFERERRZREOMENR 2 REEHERE
BemmEREBERAEEE  AMFTSRARETERN

which is not caused by the default of Hao Tian International Construction. BRER  RRBERERZEZERBETREMSHE

The directors of Hao Tian International Construction had resolved to
revise the proposed use of the proceeds from the placing to include
funding part of the cash consideration for the HTIFH Acquisition as the
directors of Hao Tian International Construction believe that the HTIFH
Acquisition would allow Hao Tian International Construction to develop a
new line of business in the financial service sector and diversify the

business of Hao Tian International Construction. This would broaden the
Hao Tian International Construction’s range of business and source of
income and will potentially increase Hao Tian International Construction’s
revenue and enhance Hao Tian International Construction’s financial

performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Placing of new shares by Hao Tian International
Construction

On 10 May 2017, Hao Tian International Construction entered into
a placing agreement (the "Placing Agreement”) with Hao Tian
International Securities Limited ("Hao Tian Securities”) and
Kingston Securities Limited ("Kingston Securities”) (collectively the
"Placing Agents”), pursuant to which the Placing Agents agreed,
as agents of Hao Tian International Construction, to procure on a
best effort basis not less than six placees who and whose ultimate
beneficial owners shall be independent third parties to subscribe
for up to 200,000,000 Shares (“Placing Shares”) at the placing price
of HK$0.62 per Placing Share (“Placing”). The Placing Shares have
been allotted and issued pursuant to the general mandate granted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of Hao Tian International Construction held on 30 August
2016 to allot, issue and deal with new Shares and was not subject to
further approval by Shareholders. Completion of the Placing took
place in accordance with the terms of the Placing Agreement on 26
May 2017 and HK$545,600 was paid by the Company to Hao Tian
Securities, a connected person of the Company, on account of
placing commission of the Placing. A total of 156,000,000 Placing
Shares were successfully placed by Kingston Securities and
44,000,000 Placing Shares were successfully placed by Hao Tian
Securities to not fewer than 6 placees at the placing price of
HK$0.62 per Placing Share pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the Placing Agreement. An aggregate of 200,000,000 new Shares
were issued and allotted, representing 20% of the issued shares of
Hao Tian International Construction immediately prior to
completion of the Placing (i.e. 1,000,000,000 Shares) and
approximately 16.67% of the issued shares of Hao Tian International
Construction as enlarged by the Placing (i.e. 1,200,000,000 shares).
Hao Tian International Construction intended to apply the net
proceeds from the Placing for prospective real estate
developments and investment properties and expansion
opportunities in respect of the rental of construction machinery
business in the People’s Republic of China, Singapore, Vietnam and
the United Kingdom; and for the general working capital of Hao
Tian International Construction and its subsidiaries. In view of the
recent business development strategies and investment
opportunities, Hao Tian International Construction adjusted the use
of proceeds to satisfy part of the consideration payable to the
Company for the proposed acquisition by Solution Pro Investments
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hao Tian
International Construction) of Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings Limited. As at 31 March 2018, the net proceeds from the
Placing was HK$65.3 million, and was placed at interest bearing
bank accounts. Further information regarding the Placing was
published in the announcements of Hao Tian International
Construction dated 10 May 2017 and 26 May 2017 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)
Placing of new shares by Hao Tian International
Construction (continued)

The Placing constitutes a deemed disposal transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio is more than 5% but less than 25%, the
deemed disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company.

Redemption of secured notes

On 27 June 2017, the Group fully redeemed the US$30,000,000
9 per cent, senior secured notes due 2017 issued by the Company
on 6 July 2015 (the “SN Notes"). The investments held for trading
pledged to secure the SN Notes has been released in July 2017.

Bonus issue by Hao Tian International Construction

On 4 July 2017, Hao Tian International Construction proposed a
bonus issue of shares to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of
one (1) bonus share for every one (1) existing share held by the
qualifying shareholders (“"HTIC Bonus Issue”). The HTIC Bonus
Issue was completed on 11 September 2017. After the completion
of the HTIC Bonus Issue, there were a total number of 2,400,000,000
shares of Hao Tian International Construction in issue (as enlarged
by the issue and allotment of 1,200,000,000 bonus shares). Pursuant
to the HTIC Bonus Issue, the Company was allotted and issued
750,000,000 bonus shares of Hao Tian International Construction,
which increased the Company'’s total shareholding in Hao Tian
International Construction to 1,500,000,000 shares. As the HTIC
Bonus Issue was on a pro rata basis, the percentage shareholding
of the Company in Hao Tian International Construction was
maintained at 62.5% immediately before and after the HTIC Bonus
Issue. Further information regarding the HTIC Bonus Issue was
published in the announcements of Hao Tian International
Construction dated 4 July 2017 and 14 September 2017 respectively
and the circular of Hao Tian International Construction dated 26
July 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)

Proposed Nuoqi Transaction

On 6 November 2017, Fujian Nuogji, Zhong Hong Holdings Group
Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands (“Zhong
Hong”) and Mr. Hu Yulin entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to
which Fujian Nuogi has conditionally agreed to acquire, and Zhong
Hong has conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share
capital in Zhong Hong International Limited (the "Target
Company”), a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
("BVI") (the "Proposed Nuoqi Transaction”). The consideration
payable by Fujian Nuogi shall be HK$1,053,024,128 and shall be
satisfied by Fujian Nuoqi by allotment and issue to Zhong Hong of
1,541,878,659 new H Shares (the “Consideration Shares”), credited
as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.6829 per Consideration
Share.

Assuming the Consideration Shares are fully issued, the
shareholding interest of the Company in Fujian Nuogi will be
diluted from 59.93% to 17.00% and the Proposed Nuogqi
Transaction will constitute a deemed disposal of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction is also subject to a number of
conditions precedent, including, in particular:

(@) the grant of approval by the Stock Exchange to the
resumption proposal and the resumption of trading in the H
Shares of Fujian Nuogj;

(b)  the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission granting the
approval(s) necessary for the issue and allotment of the
Consideration Shares; and

(c) the Executive of the Securities and Futures Commission
granting a waiver to Zhong Hong to the effect that neither
Zhong Hong nor any party acting in concert (as defined in the
Code on Takeovers and Mergers) (the “Takeovers Code”)
with it will be obliged to make a general offer for the shares
of Fujian Nuogi under the Takeovers Code as a result of the
allotment and issue of the Consideration Shares to Zhong
Hong.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction was yet to be completed up to
the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)
Acquisition of a company holding a mixed-use property
in the United Kingdom

On 20 January 2018, Hao Tian Asia Investment Company Limited
(“Hao Tian Asia Investment”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as buyer and Reignwood Europe
Holdings S.A R.L. ("Reignwood Europe”) as seller, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Hao Tian Asia
Investment conditionally agreed to acquire, and the Seller
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital of 55
Mark Lane S.A R.L., a company incorporated under the laws of the
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg (“"Luxembourg”), together with
certain intra-group debts owed by it to Reignwood Europe. 55
Mark Lane S.A R.L. owns the property known as “55 Mark Lane,
EC3"” situated at 52-58 Mark Lane, London, EC3R 7NE, the United
Kingdom, which is let to a mix of office and retail tenants. This
transaction constitutes a major transaction of the Company. Details
of the acquisition were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 7 December 2017 and 21 January 2018 respectively
and the circular of the Company dated 23 March 2018.

The acquisition was subsequently completed (after the reporting
period) on 12 April 2018. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 April 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREFN WD

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS (continued)
Potential disposal of Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings

On 28 March 2018, the Company as seller, Solution Pro Investments
Limited (“Solution Pro”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hao Tian International Construction, as purchaser and Hao Tian
International Construction entered into a sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Solution Pro conditionally agreed to
acquire, and the Company conditionally agreed to sell the entire
issued share capital of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
Limited, a company incorporated under the laws of the BVI (“Hao
Tian International Financial Holdings”). Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings holds a number of subsidiaries engaged in the
provision of financial services involving SFC regulated activities,
insurance agency and money lending. This transaction constitutes a
discloseable transaction of the Company, and a major and
connected transaction of Hao Tian International Construction under

the Listing Rules.

Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 March 2018.

This transaction was yet to be completed up to the date of this

report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS
Claim against Inner-Mongolia Shuangxin Resources
Group Co. Ltd

In connection with the sale and purchase agreement (the
"Menggang Agreement”) entered into between the Group and
Inner-Mongolia Shuangxin Resources Group Co., Ltd,
("Shuangxin”) for the sale and purchase of Wuhai City Menggang
Industrial Development Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries, which
operated the Group's coal mines in the Inner-Mongolia
Autonomous Region in the PRC, on 16 May 2013, the Group filed
an arbitration claim to the China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (the “CIETAC") for the outstanding amount
of RMB80,000,000 payable by Shuangxin under the Menggang
Agreement.

Shuangxin withheld the payment of the third installment in the sum
of RMBB80,000,000 (out of the four installment payments in total)
initially on the ground of a tax demand note issued from the local
tax bureau, and after revocation of the tax demand note, on the
ground of non-fulfillment by the Group of certain terms and
obligations under the Menggang Agreement. Shuangxin filed a
counter-claim for RMB65,000,000 on 8 October 2013. An arbitral
award was delivered in favour of the Group on 27 June 2014 and
Shuangxin filed an application to the Beijing Second Intermediate
People’'s Court to set aside the arbitral award. Beijing Second
Intermediate People’s Court issued a civil ruling on 18 December
2014 dismissing Shuangxin’s application for the revocation of the
arbitral award. On 6 February 2015, the Group applied for the
mandatory enforcement at the Ordos City Intermediate People’s
Court, and the Ordos City Intermediate People’s Court has formally
accepted the application on 14 May 2015. On 22 March 2016,
Shuangxin applied to the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Regional
Higher People’s Court for the temporary suspension of execution
with regard to the mandatory enforcement applied by the Group
on 6 February 2015 and the decision was in favour of Shuangxin.
The Group then filed an appeal against such ruling on 30 March
2016, which was dismissed by the court on 5 May 2016. On 12
January 2018, the Group successfully obtained the judgment of the
Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Regional Higher People’s Court
ordering that the suspension of execution be lifted. As at the date
of this report, in respect of the third instalment, the Group has now
received in aggregate RMB60,000,000 by enforcement, and the
execution procedures for enforcing the court order for the
remaining unsettled portion of the third installment in the sum of
RMB20,000,000 are still in progress. (not including any accrued
interest, penalty interest and any legal and court costs which may
be awarded by the court)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS (continued)

Claim against Inner-Mongolia Shuangxin Resources
Group Co. Ltd (continued)

On 21 August 2014, Shuangxin filed a legal action at the Inner-
Mongolia Autonomous Regional Higher People’s Court claiming
against the Group for damages in an aggregate amount of
RMB102,978,100 (the "New Civil Claim”). On 8 May 2015, the
Group submitted an application of objection to the jurisdiction at
the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Regional Higher People’s Court.
On 2 June 2015, the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Regional Higher
People’s Court issued a civil ruling dismissing the Group's
application. The Group then submitted an application for leave to
appeal against such civil ruling at the Supreme People’s Court of
the People’s Republic of China and the appeal was dismissed. The
Inner-Mongolia Autonomous Regional Higher People’s Court
commenced the hearing of the New Civil Claim on 13 April 2016
and the court hearing was in general completed in June 2016. As
announced by the Company on 11 September 2017, the Group had
received the written judgment of the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous
Higher People’s Court dated 7 July 2017 to the effect that all the
claims of Shuangxin under the New Civil Claim against the Group
have been dismissed. Subsequently, on 15 September 2017,
Shuangxin further appealed to the Supreme People’s Court of the
PRC, which appeal has been submitted by the Inner-Mongolia
Autonomous Higher People’s Court to the Supreme People's
Court. Up to the date of this report, the appeal is being reviewed

by a collegiate panel convened by the Supreme People’s Court.

Separately, in June 2016, the Group filed an arbitration claim to
CIETAC against Shuangxin for the return of guarantee monies (&
& %) of approximately RMB7,900,000 which was previously
withheld by Shuangxin. The CIETAC hearing took place on 27
September 2017 and the Group had received a written arbitral
award of CIETAC dated 18 December 2017 in the Group's favour,
to the effect that Shuangxin shall return guarantee monies in the
amount of RMB7,375,555.60 and pay costs related to the arbitration
to the Group. On 6 February 2018, Shuangxin applied to the Beijing
Second Intermediate People’s Court to cancel the CIETAC arbitral
award, the Beijing Second Intermediate People’s Court decided it
was appropriate for the matter to be handled by the Beijing Fourth
Intermediate People’s Court. Up to the date of this report, the
matter is in the process of being reviewed the Beijing Fourth

Intermediate People’s Court.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS (continued)
Claim against Up Energy Development Group Limited

On 12 August 2016, the Group claimed against Up Energy Mining
Limited and Up Energy Development Group Limited (the
“"Defendants”) for (i) issuance of the 227,500,000 top-up
consideration shares of Up Energy Development Group Limited
and (i) cash payment pursuant to an agreement entered into
between the Company as a vendor and the Defendants as the
purchaser group for the sale and purchase of shares in and
assignment of shareholder’s loan due from Champ Universe
Limited on 12 October 2012 (the “Up Energy HK Claim”). Details
of the claim are disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 June 2016 and 12 August 2016, and the interim report of
the Company dated 28 December 2017.

In the meantime, two joint provisional liquidators (the “JPLs") were
appointed to the Defendants by the Supreme Court of Bermuda in
October 2016, and since 28 April 2017, the JPLs have assumed full
control of the Defendants, including the powers to bring and
defend any legal action, including the Company'’s claim. In August
2017, the High Court of Hong Kong recognised the appointment of
and granting of powers to the JPLs by the Bermuda court.

At the case management summons for the Up Energy HK Claim
hearing on 8 June 2017, the court adjourned the hearing to 15
August 2017 and directed the Company and the JPLs to conduct
mediation to resolve the claim. The said hearing was subsequently
further adjourned to 30 April 2018, and the claim was stayed until
10 November 2017. At the case management summons hearing on
30 April 2018, the court further adjourned the hearing to around
mid-September 2018 before a Master to be fixed by the court.

In the capacity of a creditor of Up Energy Development Group
Limited, the Group has also been involved in the concurrent
winding up application (brought by a third-party creditor) of Up
Energy Development Group Limited in Hong Kong (the “Up
Energy HK Winding Up"”), the petition hearing of which first
scheduled on 19 March 2018 has been adjourned to 17 September
2018.
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SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS (continued)
Claim against Up Energy Development Group Limited
(continued)

Separately, on 15 August 2017, the Group applied to the Supreme
Court of Bermuda for a declaration of the court (the “"Up Energy
Bermuda Declaration”) to the effect that the former directors of
Up Energy Development Group Limited have been replaced by
directors nominated by the shareholders, by way of a shareholders'
resolution duly passed at an Extraordinary General Meeting of Up
Energy Development Group Limited held on 25 April 2017. The
Group's application has subsequently been adjourned to 12 July
2018, on which date the Bermuda court will set down directions in
preparation for the hearing and adjudication of the Group's

application.
Claim against Liu Jincheng and Xia Heting

On 1 July 2017, Hao Tian Investment (China) Co., Ltd, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, filed a legal action at the Beijing
Fourth Intermediate People’s Court claiming against Liu Jincheng
and Xia Heting for repayment of the principal amount of the
borrowings and the interest thereof in an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB40,070,000 as well as other expenses. On 4 July
2017, the Beijing Fourth Intermediate People’s Court accepted the
legal action. Subsequently, Hao Tian Investment (China) Co., Ltd
made an application to the Beijing Fourth Intermediate People's
Court for property preservation. On 4 August 2017, the property
and other interests of the defending parties, being Liu Jincheng
and Xia Heting, were ordered to be sealed up, seized and frozen by
the Beijing Fourth Intermediate People’s Court.

Subsequently, Liu Jincheng and Xia Heting made an application to
the Beijing Fourth Intermediate People’s Court objecting to its
jurisdiction, which was dismissed by the court on 9 October 2017.
On 18 October 2017, Liu Jincheng and Xia Heting further appealed
to Beijing Higher People’s Court against the aforesaid dismissal,
which was dismissed by the court on 2 February 2018. Up to the
date of this report, the case is in the process of being substantively
reviewed by Beijing Higher People’s Court.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT LITIGATIONS (continued)

Claim by Chim Kee against equipment hire customer

In 2012, a customer of Chim Kee Machinery Co., Ltd. ("Chim Kee"),
one of the subsidiaries of the Group held indirectly through Hao
Tian International Construction, commenced litigation against Chim
Kee for alleged breach of a hire contract (the “Legal
Proceedings”). The customer claimed for overall damages of more
than HK$100 million while the disputed sum claimed by Chim Kee
against the customer was approximately HK$17.5 million together
with other unascertained damages. On 24 March 2016, the Court of
First Instance handed down a judgment and ruled in favour of Chim
Kee and ordered the customer to pay Chim Kee for unpaid hire
plus interest and costs. On 26 April 2016, the customer lodged an
appeal to the Court of Appeal against the judgment of the Court of
First Instance (the "Appeal”).

On 11 July 2017, the Appeal was concluded by the Court of Appeal.
The judgment was in favour of Chim Kee and the Court of Appeal
ordered the customer to settle the unpaid hire of HK$8.9 million
plus interest and part of the costs of the Legal Proceedings and the
Appeal. Up to the date of this report, Chim Kee has received an
aggregate amount of HK$14.4 million representing the unpaid hire
plus interest of HK$12.0 million and part of the costs of the Legal
Proceedings and the Appeal of HK$2.4 million. For details of this
legal proceeding, please refer to the prospectus of Hao Tian

International Construction dated 30 November 2015.

On 11 July 2017, the customer lodged another claim against Chim
Kee for loss and damage of more than HK$27 million. After
considering the evidence and the background facts in relation to
this claim and the advice from the legal adviser in relation to this
claim, the directors of Hao Tian International Construction were of
the view that the chance of success of the claim against Chim Kee
was remote and an application to strike out the said customer’s
statement of claim was filed on 22 January 2018. The case was
subsequently settled on 27 April 2018 with the customer
discontinuing its claims. Up to the date of this report, Chim Kee has
received from the customer in an aggregate amount of HK$150,000

of the costs incurred to Chim Kee.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors confirmed that
they have fully complied with the Model Code for the year ended
31 March 2018.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Exercise of put option

On 9 April 2018, Rui Sheng Global Holdings Limited (“Investor”)
exercised the put option right in respect of all the shares of Hao
Tian Finance Company Limited (“Hao Tian Finance”), a subsidiary
of the Company held by it, and the Company was obliged to
acquire the same at a price of HK$1.15 per share. Prior to the
exercise of put option right, the Investor held 100,000,000 shares in
Hao Tian Finance, representing approximately 8.26% of the entire
issued share capital of Hao Tian Finance. The Company has
completed the acquisition of the 100,000,000 shares held by the
Investor at the total consideration of HK$115,000,000. As at the
date of this report, the Company held approximately 83.5% of the
entire issued share capital of Hao Tian Finance. Details of the
transaction were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 9 April 2015 and 9 April 2018 respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

Completion of the acquisition of a company holding a
mixed-use property in the United Kingdom

On 12 April 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of 55 Mark Lane S.A.R.L. (“55 Mark Lane”), a
company incorporated in Luxembourg, which holds a mixed-use
property in the United Kingdom at an initial consideration of
£127,651,973 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,381,194,348),
subject to completion adjustments. Following the completion, 55
Mark Lane has became a wholly-owned subsidiary indirectly held by
the Company and the financial results of 55 Mark Lane will be
consolidated into the financial statements of the Group. Details of
the acquisition of 55 Mark Lane were disclosed in the
announcement and circular of the Company dated 7 December
2017, 21 January 2018 and 23 March 2018 respectively.

Acquisition of Done and Dusted Productions Limited
engaging in media and entertainment business

On 14 April 2018, the Company entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with the legal and beneficial owners (“Vendors”) of the
Done and Dusted Production Limited (“Done and Dusted”),
pursuant to which the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell,
and the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase, the entire
issued share capital of Done and Dusted, for a total consideration
of US$89.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$703.4 million)
(subject to adjustment). Done and Dusted is principally engaged in
the business of global television and events production and has
staged and filmed events such as The Victoria’s Secret Fashion
Show, Stand Up To Cancer, BAFTA TV Awards, Laureus World
Sports Awards, Nickelodeon Kids Choice Sports Awards, CNN
Heroes and has also filmed some of the biggest names in music
including Katy Perry, U2, The Rolling Stones and Beyoncé. Done
and Dusted also produced the TV coverage for the 2012 London
Olympic Opening & Closing Ceremonies. Upon Completion, Done
and Dusted will become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and its financial results will be consolidated into the accounts of the
Group.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

Acquisition of Done and Dusted Productions Limited
engaging in media and entertainment business
(continued)

The consideration for the acquisition of Done and Dusted is
US$89.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$703.4 million)
(subject to adjustment), which shall be settled as to 37.5% (i.e.
US$33.6 million, equivalent to approximately HK$263.8 million)
(subject to adjustment) by way of cash and as to 62.5% (US$56
million, equivalent to approximately HK$439.6 million) (subject to
adjustment) by way of the allotment and issue of ordinary shares of
the Company to the Vendors. 619,154,930 ordinary shares of the
Company (“Consideration Shares”) issued at HK$0.71 (“Reference
Price”), being the consolidated net asset value of the Group as at
30 September 2017 as shown in the 2017 interim report of the
Company, worth US$56 million will be issued to the Vendors upon
completion of the acquisition. The 619,154,930 Consideration
Shares represent (i) approximately 12.6% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 14 April 2018; and (ii) approximately
11.2% of the total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged
by the Consideration Shares. The cash consideration will be paid

from the internal resource of the Groups.
Details of the acquisition were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated 15 November 2017 and 15 April 2018

respectively.

This transaction was yet to be completed up to the date of this

report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group remains confident about its existing businesses in Hong
Kong including its money lending business and financial services
and securities business. The Group will also closely manage and

monitor its investments and acquisitions from time to time.

Referring to the statistics published by Hong Kong Stock Exchanges
and Clearing Limited, market capitalization of Hong Kong securities
market reached HK$34 trillion at the end of 2017, a record high and
representing a year-on-year increase of 37%. The average daily
turnover in 2017 was HK$88.2 billion and total funds raised in 2017
was HK$579.9 billion. With a view to developing financial services
and securities businesses in Hong Kong, the Group announced a
group restructuring of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings (£
X B & B R B R A 7 to capture the financial market
opportunity. This financial platform owns SFC license businesses
including type 1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures
contracts) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities,
business of general insurance business and long term (including
linked long term) insurance with HKCIB membership and money

lenders licence business.

Residential property prices in Hong Kong's housing market rose
14.9% at an annualised rate in the first quarter of 2018, according to
real estate consultant Knight Frank. It reflects a steady growth of
property market which in turn drives the property lending business
in Hong Kong. The Group will focus on its money lending business

to enjoy this organic growth.

After London property market adjustment following the Brexit, the
Group completed the investment in the London property, namely
“55 Mark Lane, EC3". The Group is conducting feasibility study to
further enhance the building structure by constructing two
additional floors to increase the leasable areas and tenant mix to

further enhance its investment value.
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BUSINESS PROSPECTS (continued)

The Group is also in the process of acquisition of Done & Dusted to
expand its businesses to cultural and media sector. Based on the
existing production business, the Group is also exploring new self-
owned intellectual property production to enrich the current
business and introduce new production projects to China and Asian
markets so as to further release the values of this production

company.

The Group believes that its new investments and other new
business opportunities will diversify and develop more promising

business prospect in long term.
BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES

On 19 April 2017, the Directors proposed a bonus issue on the
basis of one bonus share for every six existing shares held. The
bonus issue was approved by the shareholders on 5 July 2017 and
697,694,575 bonus shared were issued on 25 July 2017.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).
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The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. As at the date of
this annual report, its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
business of financial services, securities investment, trading of
futures, logistics and warehousing, rental and trading of
construction machinery and construction materials and the retailing
of men’s and women's apparels. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A review of the Group's financial and business
performance

A review of the Group's business and the analysis using the financial
key performance indicators are set out on page 14 to page 22 of
this annual report under the paragraphs headed “Business Review”
and “Financial Review” in the section headed “Management,
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. In summary, the
Group had incurred a loss attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$444.9 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 (2017: approximately HK$3,078.9 million), which was
mainly attributable to the impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$316.3 million and fair value loss of listed
investment held for trading of approximately HK$154.8 million. The
gearing ratio (being the ratio of total borrowings, including secured
notes and obligations under finance leases, to total assets) as at 31
March 2018 was 27.3% (31 March 2017: 20.5%). Such an increase
was mainly attributable to (i) the issuance of secured notes and (i)
the fair value loss on investment held for trading which reduced the

asset base.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Environmental, Social and Governance

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the
applicable environmental laws as well as protecting the
environment by minimising the negative impact of the Group's
existing business activities on the environment. During the year
ended 31 March 2018, the Group strived to build an
environmentally friendly enterprise with enhancement of energy
usage efficiency, implementation of various emission reduction
measures and improvement in resource usage efficiency. Details of
the environmental policies and performance will be set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
which will be available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange on or before the end of September 2018.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and Suppliers

The Group recognizes the importance of having good working
relationship with its employees. During the year ended 31 March
2018, the Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its staff or any significant labour disputes. As at 31 March 2018, the
Group had a total of approximately 281 employees in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group's remuneration policies are formulated
according to market practices, experiences, skills and performance
of individual employees and are reviewed every year. The Group
has also adopted a share option scheme and a share award
scheme, details of which are set out in the notes to the
consolidated financial statement of the Group and the
announcement of the Group dated 27 September 2013.

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its customers and suppliers to its immediate and
long-term business goals. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers were approximately 26% and
16% of the Group's total revenue and purchases respectively. As at
31 March 2018, the majority of the Group's largest five customers
and suppliers have a length of relationship with the Group for more
than 10 years.

Compliance with laws and regulations
Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group has

complied in all material respect with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal risks and Uncertainties

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operations results and financial conditions of the Group
through risk management process, which including the following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2018, the outstanding loan receivables of the money
lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$726 million, representing approximately 25% of
the total current assets of the Group. Any delay or default in
payment of the loans will have an adverse impact on the Group's
working capital, cash flow and subsequently the profits of the
Group.

To manage such risk, the Group requires the borrower to provide
appropriate security and closely monitors the loan receivable
collection cycle from time to time to get full collection of the
outstanding amounts due from the customers. The Group may also
consider enforcing the security provided by the relevant borrower
or taking other legal action as appropriate.

Risk in diversification into new businesses sectors

The Group is traditionally engaged in the business of money
lending, securities investment, trading of futures and securities
brokerage. In the recent years, the Group has been actively
diversifying into different business sectors through acquisition and
investment in various industries. For examples, the Group invested
in, inter alia, the 55 Mark Lane, EC3, a property located in London
and acquired Done & Dusted, a company engaging in the business
of television and event production and Hao Tian International
Construction, a company engaging leasing and trading of the
construction machinery. The management may not have sufficient
experience and expertise in those new businesses, and the
diversification exposes the Group to high risk of uncertainties, in
which the Group might not able to succeed in the new business
and subsequently incur a loss.

To manage such risks, the Group conducted a thorough study on
the target companies and projects, including but not limited to due
diligence in all material respects and relevant industry analysis
before relevant acquisition and investment. The Group also used its
best endeavors to retain the key personnel of the target company
to ensure the management continuity and smooth transition. If the
key personnel cannot be retained, the Group recruited experienced
talents from the market to achieve the same purpose.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018 on pages
79 and 80 of this annual report.

No final dividend was recommended by the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2018 (2017: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$2,612.5 million (2017:
HK$2,557.8 million). The distributable reserves include the
Company'’s share premium reserve of approximately HK$4,273.4
million (2017: HK$4,275.5 million), which may be distributed subject
to Section 34 of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. Details of the movements
in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 84 and 85 of

this annual report.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in notes 16 to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2018.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Articles of Association and the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years ended 31 March 2018 is set out on page
268 of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the

date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Hai Ying

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. (Australia)
Mr. Fok Chi Tak

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan

Mr. Lam Kwan Sing

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua

According to the Company'’s Articles of Association, Mr. Fok Chi
Tak and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing shall retire and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years, which
can be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other. No Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with any company in the Group which is not determinable
by the Group within three months without compensation (other

than statutory compensation).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed
their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board considers all of the Independent Non-executive Directors

are independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as provided in the paragraph headed "Connected
Transaction” below, no other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, its ultimate holding
company, any of its fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as provided in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transaction” below, at no time during the year was the Company,
its controlling shareholders, holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and neither the Directors nor the chief executive, nor
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right
to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised

any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND

UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS

ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the "SFO”"), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
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pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code"),

were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares

of the Company

REQXRDEBERKEEBRONER

R-ZE-NF=ZA=+—H EERERFETHE
BRARBRERBEE(EERLE S BB KD
(IBHREBEMRGI ) EXVED) B - HERD RE
FH - B RAREE S RIS 55 352 AR A
ARFBEECMOBELRE BB LR LT
BTAERETEFZZNEETA(EESFA D)
AITAEARRR R m fORR T

Approximate

Number of percentage of

Name of Director/ Nature of Number of underlying Total total issued

chief executive Capacity interest shares held shares held interests  share capital

EERTRE

B2/ FERA FiisiaE BEHN

THEREE 54 BEtE £ ] ROEE R BAH

(Note 1)

(H3zE1)

Fok Chi Tak Beneficial owner Personal interest 39,607,483 - 39,607,483 0.81%
Ett ERBAA B AR

Xu Hai Ying Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.02%
TEE EREEA (VN

Zhiliang Ou Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.02%
B ERBEA EA RS

Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.02%
57 ERlEEA B AR

Lam Kwan Sing Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 - 733,752 0.02%
HEH ERBAA EPNG 55

Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua Beneficial owner Personal interest 733,752 = 733,752 0.02%

ExEAA

fE A
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares
of the Company (continued)

Note:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,898,037,804
shares in issue as at 31 March 2018.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of,
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted a new share option scheme on 25
September 2015 and a share award scheme on 27 September 2013,
respectively. Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes
and details of movements in the share options are set out in note
43 to the consolidated financial statements. There is no share award
granted under the share award scheme during the year ended 31
March 2018. As at the date of this annual report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme was
5,833,333 Shares, representing approximately 0.12% of the issued
Shares of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION
The allotment and issuance of new shares to Mr. Fok Chi
Tak

On 26 September 2016, the Company and Mr. Fok Chi Tak (“Mr.
Fok”) entered into the services agreement, pursuant to which the
Company agreed to engage Mr. Fok as, and Mr. Fok agreed to
accept the appointment of, the Executive Director of the Company
for a term of three years commencing from 27 September 2016 (the
“Services Agreement”).

Pursuant to the Services Agreement, the Company has agreed to
allot and issued 36,452,004 Shares (which was calculated based on
the aggregate value of HK$15,000,000 and the reference closing
price) to Mr. Fok, subject to the compliance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. As at 31 March 2018, 6,075,334 shares of
the Company was allotted and issued to Mr. Fok. The number of
shares to be allotted were adjusted from 30,376,670 to 35,439,448
as a result of bonus issue pursuant to the announcement dated 25
July 2017.

Mr. Fok, being an Executive Director of the Company, is a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Accordingly, the issue of the emolument shares to Mr. Fok
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under the
Listing Rules. Details of such transaction were set out in the
announcement dated 26 September 2016 and the circular dated 26
January 2017 of the Company.

The related party transaction regarding the subscription agreement
as set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements

constitute connected transaction of the Company.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND FERRREAQATROGREBRGFHESE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING MREZR AR
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2018, so far as is known to the Directors or chief RZZE—NE=A=+—H ZEEZHLLAQATH
executives of the Company, the following entities (other than a M U TEE(EFH AR A TTHRAEKRIN)
Director or chief executive of the Company) have interests or short R AR IR K& AR B IR D H BE S 5% 3k LA LA RS ok
positions of 5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the %X&  BERREIARCKERBEES LIS K
Company which were recorded in the register of substantial 336 EREFENTERRELMANKE BTA
shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the SFO or had  &ZA&AQR] :

otherwise notified to the Company:

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity Total interests share capital
FiEEER fiigsyiil HEBITRA
RR#E/E8 #R ROBE &6 BRET BEBNEIN
(Note 1)
(MizE1)
Li Shao Yu ("Ms. Li") 3,011,748,773 - Interest of controlled corporations 3,017,325,815 61.60%
FoF([%2%t)) (Note 2) R AR ER
GEY)
5,577,042 - Beneficial owner
(Note 3) ESBAA
(M5E3)
Asia Link Capital Investment 3,011,748,773 - Beneficial owner 3,011,748,773 61.49%
Holdings Limited ("Asia Link") EREEA
SHEIEERARAR ([EH])
Central Huijin Investment Limited - 454,930,000 Interest of controlled corporation 454,930,000 9.29%
("Central Huijin") (Noted) XEHIARER
PRESREGRETAR((PRES]) (Mizz4)
China Construction Bank Corporation - 454,930,000  Interest of controlled corporation 454,930,000 9.29%
("China Construction”) (Note d)  ZHEHIAFER
PERRRTRHBRAA ((PERR]) (MizT4)
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group 385,000,000 - Interest of controlled corporation 385,000,000 6.74%
Limited ("CSFG") (Note 5) ERELINGIL S
HEIIREREREERRAA GED))
(MhELRERHER])
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

FERRRAQADRORAEBRDHHES
MERRAE (&)

Approximate
Number of Number of percentage of
ordinary underlying total issued
Name of shareholder Shares held Shares held  Capacity Total interests share capital
FrsEBR s HEBITRA
RRgs,/ 28 #R RO®E  H6 BRAT AEBNEIN
(Note 1)
(zE1)
Coupeville Limited 385,000,000 - Interest of controlled corporation 385,000,000 6.74%
(Note 5) ST IVNGL o
GED)
Safe Castle Limited (“Safe Castle”) 385,000,000 - Beneficial owner 385,000,000 6.74%
Safe Castle Limited ([ Safe Castle]) (Note 5) EulBA
(B5ES5)
Notes: Mz -

BFRESHLTIREN -_Z—\F=A=+—HE 1T
2 4,898,037,804 fx fe 1 = EAERTE -

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,898,037,804 1.
Shares in issue as at 31 March 2018.

2. These Shares were held directly by Asia Link, which was beneficially 2. HERMETHEERR  EMORFLLIR2EH

wholly-owned by Ms. Li. E=I

3. Ms. Li held 5,577,042 Shares directly. 3. T T EER 5,577,042 D

4. China Construction, through Vandi Investment Limited, which is its indirect 4. o B 2 A 8 L R 2 & Y B 4 A] Vandi Investment
wholly-owned subsidiary, held the Call Option. Central Huijin held 57.13% Limited ¥ 5 R /8 Hi#E - P EIE & 15 A B &
shareholding in China Construction. 57.13% A

5. Safe Castle Limited was directly interested in 385,000,000 Shares. Safe - Safe Castle Limited % 385,000,000 B 15 7 A B #

Castle Limited was directly wholly-owned by Coupeville Limited which was
in turn directly wholly-owned by CSFG.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or chief

executive of the Company) who have interests or short positions in

any shares or underlying shares of the Company, which would fall

to be

disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to

be ke

pt under Section 336 of the SFO.

#25 » Safe Castle Limited F Coupeville Limited B #
2 &AM Coupeville Limited AP B LR & R &
BEEREHS -

B EXPREEIN  RZEBE-—N\F=ZA=1T—H K
AR W ERTAAL(EFRARRITHAIKRSIN)
HERERANR B KARRE D A RIFE S
N B GBI XV BB SE 2 [ 58 3 0 B Z IR SRR A A A
RENEDZIORA » RBLERARBREZSF N
HIEIRDIF 336 IFREFEMN B RMAZERIORA °
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.
TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the

Company.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and determined
by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and determined
by the Board having regard to the Company’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market standards.

The Company has adopted the share option schemes and the
share award scheme as incentives to the Directors and eligible

employees.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate revenue and purchases attributable
to the Group's five largest customers and suppliers were
approximately 26% and 16% of the Group's total revenue and
purchases respectively and the revenue and purchase attributable
to the Group's largest customer and supplier were approximately
6% and 6% of the Group's total revenue and purchases

respectively.

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have

an interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITY

According to the articles of association of the Company, the
Directors for the time being of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or sustain by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the

execution of their duty in their respective offices.

The Company has taken out appropriate insurance cover in respect
of legal action against the Directors during the year ended 31
March 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 March 2018, at least 25% of the Company's issued shares were
held by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures that are consistent with the
(the "CG Code") set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The corporate governance

"Corporate Governance Code”

principles of the Company emphasize on a quality board of
Directors (the “Board”), sound internal control, transparency and

accountability to all shareholders of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
relevant code provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2018, save and
except Code Provisions A.2.1 and A.5.1:

(i) The position of chief executive officer was vacant
since 30 September 2017

On 30 September 2017, Mr. Gao Shufang resigned as chief
executive officer of the Company and the Company has not
appointed a new chief executive officer. The Company does
not have a chairman and the role of chairman was performed
by the Board collectively. Having considered the business
operation of the Group at the material time, the Directors
considered that the Board, which consists of experienced
professionals, can collectively achieve effective functioning of
the Board, while the executive Directors along with other
members of senior management of the Company are
effective in overseeing the day-to-day executive management

of the Group.

(ii) Nomination Committee not chaired by an
independent non-executive Director

The Nomination Committee is chaired by an executive
director instead of an independent non-executive director
because the Board believed that an executive director
involved in the daily operations of the Company may be
better positioned to review the composition of the Board so

as to complement the Group's corporate strategy.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

Role and function

The Board has the responsibility of promoting the success of the
Company by formulating the strategic direction of the Company
and supervising its operations and affairs in an effective manner.
Each Director has a fiduciary duty and statutory responsibilities
towards the Company. Each Director is aware of his collective and
individual responsibilities to all shareholders and that he should

give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the Company.

With the objective of enhancing shareholder value, the Board is
responsible for the formulation and approval of overall business
strategies and policies of the Group, management of the business
and affairs of the Group, and monitoring of the performance of the
management of the Group and is charged with presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of the Group's
performance, position and prospects in its annual and interim
results, other announcements containing inside information and
financial disclosures of the Company required under the Listing

Rules and other applicable rules.

The Board reserved for its decision or consideration matters
covering significant investment proposals, major acquisitions or
disposals, financial results, recommendation on appointment or
reappointment of Directors, internal control and risk management,
major capital transactions or other significant operational or
financial matters. Daily operations and management of the Group’s

business are delegated to the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EESHRARESEER(B)
(continued)
Composition AR

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three RAFHRAH  EECRFE=FRTEEL =2
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive I EHITES -

Directors.

Membership of Board Committee(s)

EEZEEZHE
Executive Directors:
BITES !
Mr. Xu Hai Ying Member of the Executive Committee
BB HITZEGKE
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. Chairman of the Nomination Committee
BESIET - cFat REEZEGERE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Member of the Executive Committee
WMITEEEKE
Mr. Fok Chi Tak Member of the Executive Committee
Lt WMITEEEKE
Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan Chairman of the Audit Committee
PREG4L ST A BEREEGERE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REEBEKE
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
FMEESERE
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing Member of the Audit Committee
MEHEE EREEEKE
Member of the Nomination Committee
REZEGKE
Member of the Remuneration Committee
FMEEEKE
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua Member of the Audit Committee
TRELE BERLZEEKE
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)
Composition (continued)

The non-executive members of the Board bring a wide range of
business and financial experience to the Board, which contributes
to the effective direction of the Group and the development of the
Group's strategy and policies and promotes checks and balances
of the management process to safeguard shareholders’ interest.
The Board will review regularly the Board’s composition and
considers that the composition of the Board is well balanced with
each Director having sound knowledge, experience and expertise
relevant to the business operations and development of the Group.
Their biographical details are set out on pages 5 to 11 of this

annual report.

Each Board member does not have any family, financial, business

or other material relations with each other.

A list of our Directors has been published on the website of the
Company and that of the Stock Exchange, and is also disclosed in
relevant corporate communications issued by the Company

pursuant to the Listing Rules.
Appointment and re-election of Directors

The appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are

governed by the articles of association of the Company.

The Company may by ordinary resolution elect any person to be a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an
addition to the existing Board. The Board may from time to time
appoint a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. If a shareholder
wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at a general
meeting of the Company, a shareholder may serve the Company a
written notice and follow the designated procedures for nomination
of Directors under the articles of association of the Company, which
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock

Exchange.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)
Appointment and re-election of Directors (continued)

At each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire by rotation, and
becoming eligible for re-election in accordance with the articles of
association. As such, every Director shall be subject to retirement at

least once every three years.

Each Director (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment with
the Company for a term of three years, subject to the retirement by
rotation in accordance with the provisions of the articles of

association of the Company.
Supply of and access to information

All Board members have full access to relevant information both at
the meetings and at regular intervals. Notices are given to all
Directors for attending regular Board meetings at least fourteen
days before the meetings. For other Board meetings, Directors are
given as much notice as is reasonable and practicable in the
circumstances. The Company Secretary assists the Board in
preparing the meeting agenda and, during which, the Directors are
consulted for matters to be included in the agenda for all regular
meetings of the Board. It has been the practice of the Board and
accepted by all members of the Board that relevant information of
Board meetings will be sent to all Directors three days in advance
of the relevant meetings or any reasonable time before such

meetings.

Board meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, by all of the
Directors present. Board minutes are prepared and kept by the
Company Secretary record in sufficient details the matters
considered and decisions reached by the Board or Committees,
including any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Committees are sent to Directors or Board Committees
members as appropriate for comments, approval and records.
Board records are available for inspection by any Director upon

request.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)
Supply of and access to information (continued)

Matters on transactions where Directors are considered having a
conflict of interest or material interests would not be dealt with by
way of written resolutions and a separate Board meeting shall be
held where Independent Non-executive Directors who have no
material interests should be present at such meeting. Directors
having a conflict of interest or material interests in a transaction
shall, before the meeting of the Board, declare his interest(s)
therein in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, and shall abstain from voting on the resolution(s) and
shall not be counted in the quorum present at such Board meeting.
Such declaration of interests will be duly noted in the minutes of

the relevant Board meeting.

The Company Secretary shall provide professional advice on
governance matters to the Directors. Members of the management
have been reminded that they have an obligation to supply the
Board and the Board committees with adequate information on a
timely basis to enable each of them to make informed decisions. All
Directors are entitled to have access to board papers, minutes and
related materials. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to the Group's senior management. In
addition, the Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice under appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expense. The Board may resolve to provide
appropriate independent professional advice to the Directors to

assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Executive Directors
seek to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues
arising at Board meetings and receive adequate and reliable

information in a timely manner.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, every
listed issuer is required to have at least three Independent Non-
executive Directors, at least one of whom must have appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The Company complied with these
requirements throughout the year ended 31 March 2018, with three
Independent Non-executive Directors, which represented more
than one-third of the entire Board; and more than one of them has
appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related

financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has confirmed
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Board is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are

independent pursuant to the requirements of the guidelines.
Liability insurance for the Directors

Appropriate insurance cover on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
has been arranged and is in force to protect the Directors and
officers of the Group from their risk exposure arising from the

businesses of the Group and potential personal liabilities.

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development

Each newly-appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the required duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules and other
relevant statutory requirements of Hong Kong and received an
orientation covering meeting with external legal adviser for a
briefing on director’s duties and obligations and meeting with
management for an overview of the Group. Our Directors are kept
informed from time to time on the latest development of any
changes to the regulatory requirements and the progress of
compliance of applicable rules and regulations by the Company as

well as business development and operation plans of the Company.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Induction, information and ongoing professional
development (continued)

In compliance with code provision A.6.5, the Company has
arranged for, and provided fund for, the Directors and the
Company Secretary of the Company to participate in continuous
professional development organized in the form of in-house
training, seminars or other appropriate courses to keep them
refreshed of their knowledge, skill and understanding on the Group
and its business or to update their skills and knowledge on the
latest development or changes in the relevant statutes, the Listing

Rules and corporate governance practices.

All Directors are required to provide the Company with their
training records on an annual basis. For the year ended 31 March
2018, all Directors have attended the training sessions arranged by
the Company. They have also attended and/or were given speech

or training materials at external seminars/training sessions.
BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees with defined terms of
reference (available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange), which are on no less exacting terms than those set out
in the CG Code to oversee particular aspects of the Company'’s
affairs and to assist in the execution of the Board's responsibilities:
o Executive Committee

o Audit Committee

° Remuneration Committee

. Nomination Committee
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Each Committee has authority to obtain external professional
advice and to seek information from employees, and the Company
will provide sufficient resources to the Committees for performance
of its duties and responsibilities. Minutes of the Committees
meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and all decisions of
the Committees are reported to the Board. To further reinforce
independence and effectiveness, all Audit Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors, and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committees have been structured with a majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors as members. Details and
reports of the Committees are set out below.

Attendance records

The Board meets regularly, at least four times each year with a
meeting scheduled at approximately quarterly intervals and
additional meetings would be arranged if and when necessary.
Details of Directors’ attendance at the Board meetings,
Committees meetings and the general meetings held during the
year ended 31 March 2018 are set out as follows:

EEZEe(F

ELZEeERERIFEXRARARERIER
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LU

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEHERY BTEERY
Executive Audit ~ Nomination Remuneration General
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee meeting
EZg® YfZE®  BNEEE REZRE  HMzZEEE RRKE
Total number of meetings BTERANY 27 11 2 1 2 2
Executive Directors: BIES:
Mr. Xu Hai Ying gl 27/27 91 NATER  NATER  NATER 22
Dr. Zhiliang Ou BEsET 21127 nm N/A TR 1 2/2 2/2
Mr. Fok Chi Tak i 21127 nm N/ARER N/A RER N/ATER 2/2
Independent Non-executive ~ BUFHTES
Directors:
Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan &A% %4 2621 N/A TEF 202 7 202 2/2
Mr. Lam Kwan Sing HEBLE /21 N/A NER 202 7 202 2/2
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua FRELE 26027 N/A RN 22 N/A TNEf N/A TN F 22

The Chairman of the Nomination Committee, member of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and representatives of the
Auditors attended the annual general meeting held on 18
September 2017 to address queries of shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

An Executive Committee was set up in June 2010 and comprises all
existing Executive Directors. The Executive Committee operates as
a general management committee under the direct authority of the
Board to enhance the efficiency for business decisions. In
accordance with its terms of reference, the Executive Committee
monitors the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and
operations of all business units of the Group and discusses and
makes decisions on matters relating to the management and day-

to-day operations of the Group.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee in May 2006 with
specific terms of reference (as amended and restated with effect
from 1 January 2016). During the year ended 31 March 2018 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprised
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming
Sun Jonathan, Mr. Lam Kwan Sing and Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua.
The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to review and to
supervise the Group's statutory audit, interim and annual accounts
of the Group and internal control system. It also acts as an
important link between the Board and the Company’s auditor in
matters within the scope of the Group audit. Meetings shall be held

at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee members held two meetings in the year
ended 31 March 2018. A summary of the work performed by the
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018 and up to

the date of this annual report included:

(@) reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
interim report and the interim results announcement for the
six months ended 30 September 2017;

(b)  reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group and ensured the compliance with relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory

requirements;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

() reviewing the effectiveness of internal control; and

(d) meeting with the auditors to discuss any significant audit
issues or key findings noted during the audit of the Group's
final results for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30
September 2017.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed by
the management. The work and findings of the Audit Committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year ended 31 March
2018, no issues brought to the attention of the management and
the Board were of significant importance to require disclosure in

this annual report.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require that proper
whistle-blowing arrangements should be put in place by which
employees can report any concerns, including misconduct,
impropriety or fraud in financial reporting matters and accounting
practices, in confidence and without fear of recrimination for fair
and independent investigation of such matters and for appropriate
follow-up action. To this end and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, the Board adopted an internal guidelines on

whistle-blowing of concerns on 21 June 2013.

In addition, the Company has also adopted a policy that subject to
prior approval by Audit Committee, no employees or former
employees of external auditor can be appointed as director or
senior executive of internal audit or finance function of the Group,
within 12 months preceding their employment by the external

auditor to enhance independent reporting by external auditor.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Nomination Committee in August 2009 with
specific terms of reference (as amended and restated with effect
from 21 June 2013) for the purpose of setting out formal,
considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of
Directors to the Board. During the year ended 31 March 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee
comprised one executive Director, namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun
Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan Sing. Its written terms of reference
cover recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
Directors, evaluation of board composition, assessment of the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, the
management of board succession and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior

management.

The Nomination Committee members held one meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2018. A summary of the work performed by
the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 March 2018
and up to the date of this annual report included:

(@) reviewing and discussing the Board's structure, size and
composition as well as the competence, experience,

academic background and qualification of its members;

(b) reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at annual general meetings;

and

(c)  assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive

Directors.

SRERBE

REEESE

RRBR-ZENF \ARZAFERESEE (K=
T-=FRNA- T HBREEFTREES)WREER
88 EAEREFSIHEFEZANIER - AFEA
BRENREF BE_Z-N\F=A=t—BILHF

EREEAFHRABIL  REZEGH-BRTE
= ABERELAMMBEIIFNTES - BIREH
BEERMEBRETAK HEABREEERER

EEEREEES  EFFESHTM  BIUENT
i%ﬁ’]ﬁiliﬁ%ﬂﬁ EEQUEATENNERS

ERERERABNEI MR EERELER -
BE_Z-\F=ZA=1+—HIFE REZE®
WE\/\%E{T REF-REZBEHE_T—\F

A=+ R FEREERARSHAHMETHT
ERERLRE

@ RERIWEFEZIRE - ABRMARK UK
EREaXENEN KR BESSRERE:

b) BWHBRFBEFAGLEZNHFERE
EWET X

REE

(@ FHEBMFATESELIE -

Annual Report 3% 2017/18 63



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBME

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy during the year.
A summary of such board diversity policy, the measurable
objectives set for implementing such board diversity policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as

below.
Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board's composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board member’s appointments will be based
on merit, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Board's composition will be disclosed in the corporate

governance report annually in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring

implementation of the board diversity policy.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continued)
Diversity of the Board

The existing Board members are of different backgrounds,
qualifications and experiences, including extensive experiences in
resources, auditing, accounting, investment, corporate finance,
project development and management. In view of the present size
and complexities of the Group's operations and the nature of the
risks and challenges it faces, the Nomination Committee considers
the Company has achieved a right balance of skills, experience,

knowledge and diversity among the present Board members.
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company set up a Remuneration Committee in May 2006 with
specific terms of reference (as amended with effect from 21 June
2013) with principal responsibility to review and give
recommendation to the Board regarding the remuneration package
of the Directors and the senior management of the Company
taking into consideration of the market practice, competitive
market position and individual performance. During the year ended
31 March 2018 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Remuneration Committee comprised one executive Director,
namely Dr. Zhiliang Ou and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Ming Sun Jonathan and Mr. Lam Kwan

Sing.

The Remuneration Committee members held two meetings during
the year ended 31 March 2018. During the year, the Committee has
discussed, reviewed the performance and gave recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages for the Directors and
management team, discussed on the proposal of employee

incentive scheme.

During the process of consideration, no individual Director will be

involved in decisions relating to his own remuneration.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the corporate governance
function, the Board and the Committees shall be responsible for (a)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;
(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to
employees and Directors; and (e) reviewing the Company'’s
compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. This corporate governance report has been
reviewed by the Board in discharge of its corporate governance

function.
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group on a going concern basis and in
presenting the interim and annual financial statements,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under the
Listing Rules. Members of the management have provided the
Board with monthly updates and sufficient information for the
Board to develop and maintain a balanced and understandable

assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

The Directors ensure the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group is in accordance with the statutory requirements and the
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure that the
publication of the financial statements of the Group is in a timely

manner.

Currently, the Company’s external auditor is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu and for the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group paid
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, HK$3,063,000 and HK$2,489,000 as
audit fees and non-audit related fees (mainly including interim
report review fee, fees in relation to corporate transactions and
taxation service fees) respectively. Members of the Audit
Committee have been satisfied with the findings of their review of
the audit fees, process and effectiveness, independence and
objectivity of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s external

auditor.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (continued)

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018 is set out in the Independent Auditor's
Report on pages 72 to 78 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL, RISK MANAGEMENT AND
THEIR EFFECTIVENESS

The Board has the overall responsibility for overseeing sound and
effective internal controls and risk management for the Group to
safeguard the interests of its shareholders and the assets of the
Group at all times. In this connection, an internal control and risk
management system has been established to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and to manage or mitigate rather than eliminate risks of failure to

achieve the Group's business objectives.

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee and
making recommendations to the relevant department management

for necessary actions.

During the reporting period, the internal audit department had
conducted reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control
system covering all material factors related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had been

delivered to all Directors for review.

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit Committee
meetings the key findings identified by the Company’s external
auditors in respect of the Group's internal controls and discussed
findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those
findings. The Company considers the internal control systems and
risk management is effective during the year under review. No
material issues on the Group's internal control system have been
identified by the Group's internal audit department and the
Company'’s external auditors during the reporting period which

required significant rectification measures.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) as its own code of conduct
for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors and all Directors confirmed that
they have fully complied with the Model Code for the year ended
31 March 2018.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Siu Kai Yin Edward, has been appointed as our Company
Secretary immediately following the resignation by Mr. Sit Hon
Wing on 27 August 2017. Both Mr. Siu and Mr. Sit possess the
necessary qualification and experience under Rule 3.28 of the
Listing Rules and are capable of performance of the functions of
the company secretary. The Company will provide fund for Mr. Siu
to take not less than 15 hours of appropriate professional training
in each financial year as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 March 2018, Mr. Siu has satisfied
the requirement of the Listing Rules for receiving 15 hours of

professional training.
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure that the investors and the shareholders
receive accurate, comprehensive and timely information of the
Group by publication of announcements, circulars, interim and
annual reports. All shareholders’ communications are also available

on the Company’s website at http://www.haotianhk.com.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides a useful
forum for shareholders to exchange views with the Board. All
Directors will make an effort to attend and the external auditor is
also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. In case of any general meeting to approve a
connected transaction or any other transaction that is subject to
independent shareholders’ approval, members of the independent
Board committee will also make an effort to attend to address

shareholders’ queries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, all votes of the

shareholders at general meetings would be taken by poll.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT
Shareholders’ right to convene extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the articles of association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings of the Company (the "EGM") shall
be convened on the requisition of any one or more shareholder(s)
(the "Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the

Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and the EGM shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and
shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses

incurred by the Requisitionist(s).
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (continued)
Putting enquiries to the Board

To ensure effective communication between the Board and the
shareholders, the Company has adopted a shareholders’
communication policy (the “Policy”), which is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Under the
Policy, information of the Group shall be communicated to the
shareholders mainly through general meetings, including annual
general meetings, financial reports, and its corporate
communications and other corporate publications on the
Company’'s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is publicly available.
Any such questions shall be first directed to Mr. Siu Kai Yin Edward,
the Company Secretary:

By post

Rooms 4917-4932, 49/F
Sun Hung Kai Centre

30 Harbour Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

By email

edward.siu@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the

shareholders’ meetings.
Putting forward proposals at Shareholders’ meeting

The number of shareholders necessary for putting forward a
proposal at a shareholders’ meeting shall be any number of
shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings at the date of the request. The request to put forward a
proposal must be made within 30 days from the date of the relevant

shareholders’ meeting.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhancing investor relations. It is committed to a policy
of open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and public investors. The Company updates its
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial
performance through its annual and interim reports. The corporate
website of the Company (http://www.haotianhk.com) has provided
an effective communication platform to the public and the

shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the constitutional document of the

Company during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RS IR

Deloitte.

BE - BMERSSEENT Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
B35 35/F, One Pacific Place
/E TiEEC8 R 88 Queensway
1,?\ ATEH—EI5E Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao Tian
Development Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 79 to 267,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter
HEETEE

B AR

FARENER

MRETERIRERMNFEEAE  RAEAH
RAVBHRRNEFTZREENEH - GLEHE
EHRMEFERGAVBERR ML AZREETR
B - BT EHELRERBHEBHOER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BAWETNMHERETSRETERE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables

W B 7 2 plE S

We identified the impairment assessment of loan receivables
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the balance to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and the use
of judgment by the management in evaluating the
recoverability of the loan receivables.

B REE R REN G BN ARREN=E - RESER
HGEAVBRREBNEZMEE - RERENLAREKER
2 P W B 1 B P M o

As disclosed in notes 4 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of loan receivables is
HK$726,001,000 as at 31 March 2018, which contributed to 14%
of the total assets. In performing the impairment assessment of
these loan receivables, the management considers the
creditworthiness, past collection history, subsequent settlement
of each borrower, the relevant pledge of assets and
guarantees.

NG A EMERNTAR2FATEE R NF=A
=+—H BWERZEEEAR726001,0008T  EIhBEE
Z14% c EEBHRWERTETRERN RN  EEE2ERS
BRAZESE  BERFESLERER BEKFEERIE
R

During the year ended 31 March 2018, allowance for bad and
doubtful debts amounted to HK$321,000 (2017: HK$6,900,000)
has been charged to profit or loss.
RBE-T-\F=ZA=1THILFE  REEEMHFH321,0008
TL(ZZ—+4F : 6,900,000 7T) B R EZAHIR °

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment
of loan receivables included:

A R E T R ER 2284

o Understanding management'’s assessment of
the credit risk of entering into loan contracts
with its customers and how the management
evaluates the recoverability of loan receivables;

s HREEEYHHEHZPIIVERSINEER
i ) 5T Al B B IR fE 40 o] BT Ak B U B AR 2 AT U]
1

o Obtaining the list of pledged assets, comparing
the value, with reference to the market prices,
of those pledged assets, on a sample basis,
with the carrying amounts of respective
outstanding pledged loan receivables;

o ENMEHEMEEINR 2REBCEREED
B S A RS AEEESRFELRE
M2 EEEREE :

J Examining agreements of loan receivables, on
a sample basis, to understand relevant terms
such as settlement terms and the existence of
pledged assets and guarantees;

e HEBEERWERZHE  UEBREEEIRE
fERGR - REREENFERERBR

o Assessing the reasonableness of the
management's assessment of the recoverability
of loan receivables by taking account of the
value of pledged assets and guarantees and
past collection history of customers; and

s FBRANEHEENMERNEBEARTFHBG
EWRESE - L E IR E YW E KA E 1T
R RE SR &

J Tracing the settlement records and subsequent
settlement to bank receipts, on a sample basis.

o  WEREPEHERENRTRIENRERE -
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Key audit matter
HEEITEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RAWETNNHERETERETER

Valuation of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

URAFPEGTEERBLABREZEHBEENIEE

We identified the valuation of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL") of the Group as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the balance to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, combined with
the significant judgments associated with determining the
carrying value.

BB AR FEFEEEZ LA ABR (AR TEAEARE
et A Bm D zemB Bz MERI RERETEE  REA
EHREGREUBRREEMEEZHESZ UREETREES
A B K I o

In determination of the carrying value of financial liabilities at
FVTPL, it requires the uses of significant judgments in selecting
the appropriate valuation techniques and use of key estimates
and assumptions, as disclosed in note 48(c)(i).
REEHREARNFEFEEEZ T ABRRZERMAGBZER
ERFENEREZNRENETAEHERAEB RERAEE
5t M RER (GRAAM 5 48(c)() PR ER) ©

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying amount of the Group's financial
liabilities at FVTPL were HK$238,893,000.

AR E B MERMT20MER - EEBUAATEHNEER
Beit ABm 2z &R A E < RE{E 7 238,893,000/8 7T °
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of financial
liabilities at FVTPL included:
BMEBAUALATEFEEESB A ABR2EREBE
2B R EE

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management who is
responsible for the valuation and the
independent professional valuers; and

e EHEEMBEZEBABRBEIZEXRMGEMDY
BRE  BEOREEHMN: &

J Obtaining an understanding from management
and the independent professional valuers
about the valuation techniques, significant
assumptions adopted, critical judgmental areas,
key inputs and data used in the valuations; and

s MEBERBUZEZEMGERMERESBATRADN
HERN - EXRE - EZHE D RIAER
ERNEEEAZRELREE &

J Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
model adopted and key assumptions used in
the valuation.

o  FHEFEMMMEEREMAEEREANERNR
REEE M o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group's financial reporting process.

B AR

Hi&H

BERRESTHHMEANRER - L0 EMBETH
REBRAWEN - BETEREREAVBHRR LI
HIEEHM RS -

HPEGEAMBRRNBERAALTREEMER &
MR THZFEMERERTATANEET SR

BARMEREMBRRNES > RANEEREH
BHME - EUBIET  EREMEARTEEA
MBBRRIBMEEHBETARBENBERNFES
AREEAEUFFESAERRADER - ERRK
MERTHITE BREMBLAEMLERFEEX
AR RAFERSZEE - A& m 0 RFDR
BER#RS

EERAEERGEMBBRRAEKENE
£

BERREFAAERBEEEGHTMASRMAN(EE
B R REECR RHED]) B E ES B E
EMRENGEEHBHRE  YHARRSRREAY
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a

going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain

solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

B AR
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wan Chi Lap.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SGEREaREMEERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 2 —Z— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FET
Revenue WA 5 330,017 206,313
Cost of sales and services & RIS (184,291) (36,725)
Gross profit EF 145,726 169,588
Other income Hib g A 6 7,012 11,777
Other gains and losses H o Woes & B 18 7 (384,123) (3,616,561)
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (226,642) (132,854)
Other expenses Hups 8 = (29,251)
Share of result of an associate SaN it i AN (769) (1,567)
Finance costs RE A 9 (79,595) (87,873)
Loss before taxation A ETE 1R (538,391) (3,686,741)
Taxation credit RIEE R 10 12,621 497,893
Loss for the year FNEE 11 (525,770) (3,188,848)
Other comprehensive (expense) income:  Efth 2@ () W -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently FJEEREE B 4E 2
to profit or loss: BmHE -
Available-for-sale investments: AHHERE
— fair value changes — AEEE (155,880) (547,388)
— impairment loss recognised — BHERREREE 1,748 74,728
— reclassified to profit or loss upon —RHERENSEEER
disposal - (53,212)
Exchange difference arising on translation & /FINEFEEL ~
of foreign operations [E X =58 20,767 (8,040)
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FREMEEHRY -
net of tax ROTEES (133,365) (533,912)
Total comprehensive expense for the year & A2 TH S 858 (659,135) (3,722,760)
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HERaREMEEKER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —ZF— \F=A=+—HBILtFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FTHET FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: FEMRFANERE :
Owners of the Company PAN/NETE SN (444,906) (3,078,901)
Non-controlling interests SRR R (80,864) (109,947)
(525,770) (3,188,848)
Total comprehensive expense for the year [E{R G N2 EF 4258 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBER A (569,116) (3,577,978)
Non-controlling interests A (90,019) (144,782)
(659,135) (3,722,760)
(restated)
(Fe&31)
Loss per share BREE 15
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —E R K #EE (B (9.11) (63.91)

80 Annual Report %k 2017/18



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AREMBRRERE

At 31 March 2018 ®=Z2— \F=A=+—H

2018 2017
ZE-N\E Tt F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iEsd FET FH&T
Non-current assets EmEBEE
Property, plant and equipment W -« BE MG 16 540,906 563,293
Prepaid lease payment B ERIE 17 33,940 31,732
Premium over prepaid lease payment FENHEENRIEZRE 18 125,102 127,822
Available-for-sale investments EH,\ ﬁ ERE 19 814,059 764,488
Financial assets designated at fair value ¥ 8T AFEFE B EELETA
through profit or loss TEE,Z%%‘L%? 20 - 27,779
Goodwill [ 21 98,914 415,164
Intangible assets W EE 22 178,650 178,650
Finance lease receivables Bh A & pE U R 23 9,529 4,241
Loan receivables JEME R 27 195,716 123,197
Investment in an associate R—HEEEREZRE 28 6 767
Deferred tax assets REFIB & B 33 4,743 6,364
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIF K 26 4,627 4,603
Deposits VEEY 2,986 5,814
Deposit paid for acquisition of WEEB B A BRI ET &
a subsidiary 24 137,761 -
2,146,939 2,253,914
Current assets TEVEE
Inventories 7E 25 22,876 8,745
Trade and interest receivables R UG BR TR N R U A B 26 177,157 147,345
Other receivables, deposits and HtEWsiE  fTek
prepayments SENN GO 26 17,997 60,884
Loan receivables FEM &K 27 530,285 665,393
Finance lease receivables BhA T & pE U B 23 6,959 3,112
Consideration receivable FEARE 30 24,980 67,680
Investments held for trading BEEERE 29 1,258,246 1,241,008
Tax recoverable AR e R IR 2,278 1,359
Prepaid lease payment AR ERE 17 365 329
Pledged bank deposits B IRITIF 26 15,000 44,661
Bank balances, trust and segregated SRITHERR - ET R
accounts BYERF 26 44,998 32,400
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIES 26 781,431 816,372
2,882,572 3,089,288
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R E M H IR R R R

At 31 March 2018 R=Z2—N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
ZE-N\E T tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
Current liabilities MEAE
Trade payables BRI 31 76,634 61,390
Other payables, deposits received HipENZIE - B WE 2
and accruals KrEsH AR 31 54,571 57,079
Borrowings BE 34 606,580 742,982
Secured notes BIRFZE 32 155,840 150,331
Obligations under finance leases B A TH EAE 35 4,340 3,877
Financial liabilities at fair value through WA AF{EFE BHELET A
profit and loss BazeomasE 20 238,893 319,350
Other liability HEMAE 36 114,420 -
Tax payables ERIE 3583 6,807
1,254,811 1,341,816
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,627,761 1,747,472
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAERRBAEE 3,774,700 4,001,386
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE
Borrowings BE 34 247,005 196,037
Secured notes BRI EE 32 350,000 -
Obligations under finance leases BhEFHE e 35 8,341 3,015
Other liability HihBE 36 - 106,490
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBEEE 33 105,920 134,360
711,266 439,902
Net assets BEFEE 3,063,434 3,561,484
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AREMBRRERE

At 31 March 2018 ®=Z— N\F=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iEsd FET FAT
Capital and reserves BN Rk

Share capital &N 39 48,980 41,862
Reserves Ex= 40 2,742,650 3,282,127

Equity attributable to owners RAFEE ANEEER
of the Company 2,791,630 3,323,989
Non-controlling interests IEPE IR = 271,804 237,495
Total equity EZS4aEE 3,063,434 3,561,484

The consolidated financial statements on pages 79 to 267 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22

June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Fok Chi Tak
DIRECTOR
FE

EEWTENHGAVBRRCHEFEN _F
—NFRAZ T HAERRIRETE  XhTE

ERERRE

Xu Hai Ying
)
DIRECTOR
-
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 gz —=

—NF=ZA=1t—RLFE

Share Total equity
option and attributable
Statutory emolument Asset Put to owners Non-
Share  Share  Warrant  surplus share revaluation  Special Translaion ~ Other  option Acumulated  of the ~controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve profits(loss) Company interests equity
BRER L%
JRER iRR4 HBRG EEEf TEGE  RhEA EAARG
Bx  RHEE fife fif fife fiff  KHEE EXRE ZEERE B (BB REEE FBRER ERER
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000
Thn  TEn  TEn  Thr  TEn TR Thr  TEn TR Thr TR TR TR TER
(note ) (note b) (otec)  [noted
(Hita) (Hizb) (Wtc)  (Wed)
At 1 Apri 2016 RZF-~ERA-A 343 3647206 386850 3559 420 112240 (5,754) (1210 92041) 5238 1552984 6659881 208248 6868129
Loss for the year EhER - - - - - - - - - - (3078907 (3078901)  (109.947) (3,188,848)
Other comprehensive expense £ #2EHR - - - - - (91,030) - (8,040) - - - (oeorny (3483 (53391)
Total comprehensive expense ~ FRZAFT A%
for the year - - - - - l91,031) - (8,040) - - (3078901 (3577978) (144782 (3722,760)
Share options lapsed BRELH - - - - (3,654) - - - - - 3654 - - -
Issue of new shares upon exercise {76 AREREETHRA
of warrants 5378 625877 (386850) - - - - - - - - W40 - 44405
lssue of emolument shares (note 39 %ﬁmwmm 62Uy - - - - - - - - - L]
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 41) WEEKTBAR (Kiztd - - - - - - - - - - - - 18450 128450
Capitalinjection from non-controlling —E B2 23 Eﬁx
interests of a subsidiary (rote 36)  #EAEE (3£ 36) - - - - - - - - (5,490 - - B00  4H59 40089
Recognition of equitysettled  BARALELN Rl
share-based payments NS - - - - o7t - - - - - - o7t - 871
At 31 March 2017 RZF-tE=A=1-F 62 42552 - 3539 1287 631389 (5,754) (9250 (97531) 5238 (1522263 3323989 237495 3561484
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - - - - (444906) (444906)  (80,864) (525770)
Other comprehensive Ep2E(RR)b&
(expense) income - - - - - (142,077) - 17867 - - - (1242100 (9,155) (133,365)
Total comprehensive ER2E(EY) hEeE
(expense) income for the year - - - - - (142,077) - 17867 - - (444906) (569,116)  (90,019) (659,135)
Share options lapsed BRELH - - - - @37 - - - - - 437 - - -
Issue of ew shares upon bonus ssue T REFTEEHRA
(note 39) (fi5£39) 6976 (6,976) - - - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of emolument shares note 39) &7 ER( (3 39) 102 4858 = = = = = = = = - 5000 - 5000
Change inthe Group's ownership - ZEEREAENBAR
interest in existing subsidiaries  FRiERI2E) - - - - - - - - N5 - - 757 124328 156,085
At 31 March 2018 R=F-\F=f=1-F 48,980 4273404 - 3539 800 489312 (5754) 8617  (65774) 5238 (1966732 2791630 271,804 3,063,434
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 2 —Z— N\F=A=+—HILFE

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations of the People’s Republic
of China (“"PRC"), before distribution of the net profit each year, each of
the Group's subsidiaries established in the PRC shall set aside 10% of its
net profit after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve. The reserve fund
can only be used, upon approval by the board of directors of these PRC
established subsidiaries and by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. During the years ended 31 March
2018 and 2017, there was no transfer from accumulated profits to the
statutory surplus reserve since the Group’s PRC subsidiaries incurred net
loss.

Special reserve of HK$5,754,000 represents the difference between the
nominal amount of share capital issued by Winbox (BVI) Limited and the
Company and the nominal amount of the share capital of the acquired
subsidiaries and Winbox (BVI) Limited respectively arisen from a group
reorganisation occurred in prior years.

Other reserve represents (i) the difference between the fair value of the
capital injections from non-controlling shareholders and the carrying
amount of the subsidiary attributable to the non-controlling interests and
(i) the value of the put option arising from HTM subscription (as defined
in note 36) issued by the Company. Details are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Put option reserve represents the fair value of the put option issued by the
Company on date of issue, 13 May 2015.

REFEARLNE (THEDBRERRERRE K
SEEPEKRIZHEMERQ R GFIABERTR LT
10%1E5TE B RERITADIRAT - &
RREERFBERIEMER  EREZ SN R BRI
MMBARMNESE RAMKELE - 22— \F
RZZB—tF=ZA=+—HLLFE BRAEENT
MBARELSER AT ESHEARMENERE
ETE BB

RBTEFEETEESHAESNSRERA5,754,0007%
JC ° J5¥E Winbox (BVI) Limited K 2R &) #) B 317 I AN
B ERE U BB B B A &) & Winbox (BVI) Limited B AN I {E 2
MEEMERE-

H bR () R B3R RARBUT & 2 A T EE IR
HEGEWBRRZREABIEZR  RAARETAAR
SREERBERCERRMEI)MEE ZRGHEZ
BIE - fHBRRERE B MRME36 -

RO REEA AR BT 2 RASERETAE T
—AFERA+T=ZHZRAFE-
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Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —ZF— \F=A=+—HBILtFE

2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BT
Loss for the year FNEIE (525,770) (3,188,848)
Adjustments for: BATEIEFE -
Income tax FTiS®t (12,621) (497,893)
Interest income MEMKA (1,249) (7,564)
Finance costs A& R AR 79,595 87,873
Loss on early redemption of secured notes RRELAEEER Y EIE 700 2,959
Other expenses HibBA - 29,251
Share of result of an associate AHh— BB E A REE 769 1,567
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment %)% - BE MR EITE 63,535 13,225
Impairment loss on property, W - BE MR EREEE
plant and equipment 9,100 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment FEf1H &R IE R 85 622 337
Amortisation of premium over prepaid TERH B FRIE 2 (B
lease payment 2,720 2,720
Dividend income from available-for-sale Al E R E R B A
investments (780) (780)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ER A REEE
investments 1,748 86,532
Share-based payments VABR AR FE A 3R 5,000 3171
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEMRENKE
plant and equipment (519) (98)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE RIS RE R
investments - (53,212)
Reversal of allowance for bad and BB RIEEIREE
doubtful debts (9,795) -
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBERBE 921 -
Fair value (gain) loss on financial assets/ AAFEAAEB AL ABRZ
liabilities at fair value through THEE ABENQTE (KRS EBE
profit or loss (77,679) 468,986
Impairment loss on loan and interest e E R ERE 2 REEE
receivables 511 8,111
Impairment loss on inventories FERERE 5,582 -
Impairment loss on goodwill AR E R 1R 316,250 -
Unrealised fair value loss in BIEEBERENARERATE
investments held for trading B8 154,881 2,098,005
Issue costs of bonus share issue — BB B R B AL PR BT 2 BE TR AR
of a subsidiary 447 -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FMERERER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 2 —Z— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\E T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Operating cash flows before movements in LEELEPINKERERE
working capital 13,968 (945,658)
Decrease in inventories FE R 13,567 3,646
Increase in trade and interest receivables JE Uk BR 3 N FE U 1) B n (20,943) (64,150)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, HipE W EIE « 5T R
deposits and prepayments TERFIER D (3 0n) 44,565 (9,057)
Decrease in loan receivables FEE O 68,331 28,552
(Increase) decrease in investments held for BIEEERE (€ m) R
trading (157,257) 1,521,128
Increase in trade payables JE A BR FRIE A0 - 6,987
(Decrease) increase in other payables, Hib eI - EWGET e &
deposits received and accruals FEETFIE CRid) 80 (6,574) 21,826
(Increase) decrease in finance lease receivables Bi& & FE Wz IE (3L 00) 54 (9,135) 502
(Increase) decrease in bank balances, RITHERR - FRERE YRR
trust and segregated accounts (32 hn) w2 (12,598) 7,986
Net cash (used in) generated from operations 3& (FT) FT{SHIE & F58 (66,076) 571,768
Finance costs paid for money lending business W& S 1481 E Ak A& (5,741) (13,349)
Finance costs paid for securities investment BHREEBREAIRERAR
business (2) (514)
Income tax paid EAPREH (18,391) (16,197)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM OPERATING REXK (TR ISMREFE
ACTIVITIES (90,210) 541,708
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SARSREE

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 &z —%

—NF=ZA=1t—RLFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\E T tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ks FET FH&T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Purchases of property, BAWE - BELRB
plant and equipment (71,483) (24,101)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEMREMSIE
plant and equipment 2,061 1,202
Placement in pledged bank deposits BFEEMRITER (24) (9,463)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR E R TR 29,661 128,428
Deposit paid for acquisition of subsidiary U ET B AR FTiT5] & (137,761) -
Consideration paid for investment in BER—HEE T2 REZ
an associate ERRE = (2,334)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEEYE - BEMREAHE] €
plant and equipment (1,093) (5,232)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments & E n]{£ H&E&EE& (275,202) -
Proceeds received from redemption of BOEFEARAFEFEAEHEE L
financial assets designated at fair value HABRY SREEBHIE
through profit or loss 25,000 -
Dividend income received from I B A] 4 S 18 A AR B
available-for-sale investments 780 780
Net cash used in acquisition of WS B AR TR & F%8
subsidiaries 41 - (791,945)
Proceeds from disposal of HE R E R AR EERIE
available-for-sale investments 69,752 75,806
Collection of consideration receivable Wml & B AR R ERRE
from disposal of subsidiaries 35,440 -
Interest received 2 2 1,249 7,705
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING REED AR FE
ACTIVITIES (321,620) (619,154)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBETRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 2 —Z— N\F=A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
ZE-N\E Tt F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
{iEsd FET FH&T

FINANCING ACTIVITIES L& EE
Interest paid BEARFLE (61,488) (38,721)
Proceeds from issue of secured notes BITEERRIERTE A 505,840 -
Proceeds from disposal of shares of HE—RH B QR MG, TS FIE

a subsidiary 35,927 -
Borrowings raised g e 1,037,414 1,579,993
Repayment of borrowings BREE (1,122,848) (1,408,221)
Proceeds from share placing of e & — IR 2 BIAR 15 P15 3R

a subsidiary 124,000 -
Expenses on placing of shares Bl & —MWEB AR RMDAMAX

of a subsidiary (2,630) -
Expenses on issue of bonus shares — M B A R A TALAR 9 F 2

of a subsidiary (447) -
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon 1T R AE BB 21T HAL (D

exercise of warrants FRiS 08 - 244,405
Proceeds from HTM Subscription REZREERBEEMNGEHE 36 - 311,561
Payment on early redemption of REEDEEBRE 2R

secured notes 32 (155,308) (77,493)
Repayment of obligations under EBEMEHEEERME

finance leases (5,408) (6,047)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  Bt¥&5E 8 i85 & 548 355,052 605,477
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MEREMER

For the Year ended 31 March 2018 &2 —ZF— \F=A=+—HBILtFE

2018 2017
—B-N\FE CF L
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT Tt
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND RERRELEYORD) BMFHE
CASH EQUIVALENTS (56,778) 528,031
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REDZRERRESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 816,372 295,782
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE Ex2s %
CHANGES 21,837 (7,441)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF REZZRERRELEEY
THE YEAR REPRESENTED BY BANK ERTERERS
BALANCES AND CASH 781,431 816,372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

GENERAL

Hao Tian Development Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate and ultimate holding company is Asia Link Capital
Investment Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands ("BVI"”), and the ultimate controlling
shareholder is Ms. Li Shao Yu (“Ms. Li"). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information section

of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and provision of management service to its
subsidiaries. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set

out in note 45.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

—RER

EXREREEARAR(FARADEREHE
MR AEHRRER DR REBRORE BB
ABRSGMBERAB([BMRM) LT - HEER
REER AR RN EBELERE ((KBE L
BDEMKL coHalEZERERAA (DR
Bl REEERERAFTIFLE(EL
T  ARBZEMMPELERTELEBR
W B WERANFER [RABER] —F0 -

AR I EEBRREZERERSENE AT
RHUEBRE - KB AR 2 T EXBHNW
450

REBGZEMEHREABT((ET)) 275
MABTLMABRRBZNEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

92

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in current year.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements

to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the

disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
financial assets if cash flows from those financial assets were,
or future cash flows will be, included in cash flows from

financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flow; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or
other business; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange

rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 47. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not
disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart
from the additional disclosure in note 47, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on consolidated

financial statements.

2.
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94

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs and interpretations in
issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs and interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Financial Instruments!

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related Amendments'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle!

Transfer of Investment Property’
Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for

financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group

are:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income

generally recognised in profit or loss.

2.
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96

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

. In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Debt instruments classified as loan receivables, trade and
interest receivables, other receivables, deposits, consideration
receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trust and
segregated accounts and bank balances carried at amortised
cost, these are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, these financial assets will continue to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the application
of HKFRS 9;

Unlisted fund classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at fair value as disclosed in note 19: the fund does not
qualify for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS
9, the Group will measure these securities at fair value with
subsequent fair value gains or losses to be recognised in
profit or loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, investments
revaluation reserve of HK$4,702,000 related to these
available-for-sale investments will be transferred to
accumulated profits at 1 April 2018.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Classification and measurement: (continued)

Listed equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investments carried at fair value as disclosed in note 19: these
securities qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9, however, the Group plans not to elect the
option for the designation and will measure these securities
at fair value with subsequent fair value gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss. Upon initial application of HKFRS
9, investments revaluation reserve of HK$484,610,000 related
to these available-for-sale investments will be transferred to

accumulated profits at 1 April 2018;

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale investments
carried at cost less impairment as disclosed in note 19: these
securities qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI
under HKFRS 9 and the Group will measure these securities at
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods with fair
value gains or losses to be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve. Upon initial application of HKFRS 9, the fair value
change relating to these securities would be adjusted to

investments revaluation reserve as at 1 April 2018.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue
to be measured on the same bases as are currently measured
under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group's financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)
Impairment (continued)

The trade receivables of the Group do not contain a
significant financial component and hence impairment will be

measured based on lifetime expected credit loss.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by Group as at 1 April 2018 would be slightly
increased as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected
credit losses provision on loan receivables, trade and interest
receivables, other receivables, deposits, consideration
receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank balances, trust and
segregated accounts and bank balances. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model
would reduce the opening accumulated profits and increase
the deferred tax assets at 1 April 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts

and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.

Annual Report 43k 2017/18

FERAFMAIEREMBRELEN(EFEY
BmEER ) REBET (B)

ERPBBREENEIRESMIA(E)
HBUfE ()

RN AR B YR B A B AW
B AEN AR ERERFTERE -

REBEARREZNFE - HAKEARRAREY
EEBRER  MASER - \FMUA—
BT RN RHREERSERIRREES
FEPERF O HAN R S BE LM - =
ZRANERER - BRI EKRNE - B
EKEIE - 7T BURARE  CERRITE
o RITER - ERERBIUBRPANRITE
MIEMEEERES - RRBEEBERAE
REE—FRERRI R T \FHA—H
MEIRFHER - WIEINEERIAEE -

ERUBREE
A

BIZE1SHEBEFEHN 2

BRI BRELERE 1552 M - HblE—18
BE-2AEARBERTPAOMELEZIRA
AR - B HREERIE 155 AR AGI
REHENE G ERE 185 s - ARG
ZERIE 11 RREA O RARRRE 2 WAERIE
3l



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue

recognition:
. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the

contract
° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the

performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing

application guidance.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective

reporting periods.
HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a
model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability
have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for

short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

1 00 Annual Report %k 2017/18
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for own use while other
operating lease payments are presented as operating cash
flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16 by the Group, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement where the Group is a lessee. The application of
HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group presents right-
of-use assets separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be presented if

they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either

as an operating lease or a finance lease.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As set out in note 42, total operating lease commitment of
the Group in respect of leased premises as at 31 March 2018
is amounted to HK$32,171,000. Upon the adoption of HKFRS
16, the directors of the Company expect that the commitments
in the future in respect of leased premises with the terms of
more than twelve months will be required to be recognised in
the consolidated financial statements of the Group in the
future as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities and the
directors of the Company do not expect the adoption of
HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting policy

would result in significant impact on the Group's results.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$7,246,000 as at 31 March 2018 as rights
and obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16,
such deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of
such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost and such
adjustments are considered as additional lease payments.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be

included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as

indicated above.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other amendments to HKFRSs and the
interpretation will have a material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRS issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained

in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. Fair value under HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement is an exit price regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-
based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

. has exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-

controlling interests.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity transactions,
balances, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated

in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented

separately from the Group's equity therein.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's relevant components of
equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the proportionate share
of net assets attributable to the non-controlling interests are
adjusted after re-attribution of the relevant equity
component, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised

in profit or loss as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits

respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below);

and

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are

measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction

basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period, and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than operating

segment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently there is indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each

asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and services provided in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes

and returns.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the

goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Finance lease interest income including handling fees (if any)
represents interest income from financial leasing business, is
allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group's net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Service income generated from provision of transportation

and other services is recognised when services are provided.

Commission income on securities dealing and broking,
futures and options dealing and broking and bullion contracts
dealing are recorded as income on a trade date basis when

the relevant contract notes are executed.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's rights to receive payment have been established.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than art works as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,

if any.

Art works are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate

accounted for on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their

expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in

profit or loss.
Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
the associate used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group's
share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment in an associate (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
an associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate,
any excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss in the period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to sell)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is

regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that
are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at
cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on

tangible and intangible assets below).

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates

of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the relevant asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss
that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of
return on the Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and such costs are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised

as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost acquiring land
held under operating lease, are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a

reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of

the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease tam on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is

generally classified as a finance lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 Hi = = Z —

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at
the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other

comprehensive income.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated

in equity under the heading of the translation reserve.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes a
foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in

the period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit

in the cost of an asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
(continued)

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after

deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying
amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion

in the cost of an asset.
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse

in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is

included in the accounting for the business combination.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

3.

FESHEEGE)

BiE (48)

BB BEREEN ERRIZBAEEE
HRmEHREESEEREEENBEREE
BT A MSHAHBER -

B R RFE TR TR N R A FER - HEfRE B
Hitt2HRam R ERNESRANAB R
BARIERSN - EULIER T - B REE TR IB IR )
AR EMEAREEAN BRI SRR - M
BIEASRIE TR AR B R A VT ARK - B
BEEBENLEHEHOART -

ﬁ4

Mg

\

TR R R E E PR E S -
AR EEE R R (WBF) B % TA AR
R§57F HBERA R REHRERRNOEH
B - RN TR o WRR
FEI 3T R (21 SRR A A R S
PR ©

ETWMTH

m—EEEERKATARS
AEREENEBBENE
HER -

HEXXRIRT RIS
B ERRIRERA

Annual Report %k 2017/18 121



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets
at FVTPL, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time
of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period

to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments, other than those financial assets classified
as FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or

losses.

122 Annual Report %%k 2017/18

FESHEEGE)

eEIA(E)

TREERTRABVMIRATENE - WE
HBETEREENERABUARTESER
HEHABRaENEREERSBBERIN)
HEEBENORZRARITHEREIMASBRE
EXEBREBNAFE  INEREELSH
BENQFHEMR GRERME) » WEARF
EFfEREB L AEENEREERTRA
BHEEERLNZSKRAE - GEIRRIERAER o

EHEE

FEENSRMEED RARATEFEAHE L
AABENEMEE  BERRBUFRIEN K& A]
HEESREE - "HRRAREREEN L
REBH - WHRTIFHRRBRETE - ©REENPT
EAREENRR S A NEERER RBUEE
R o AR BEFHRANT SRR IE G HEL N
MARNEENERMEEEE -

BEBRFE %

ERMEERFTESBEENBHRARARR
HEME BN WANTTE - BREMEDR
MBS R EENTRFHR(ER)
BREHIE A AR RRS WA (BREBRER
MEBR—AIVMECHRCRERRE
T RBRAAREM G ESRITE) BERE V)
HHERIREFERF XK o

B BANATEFERREFAEENE
BEENNSWAGAREFRI  BEFTA
B SR AR B BRI R ELAERER



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 BiZ =T — \F=HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading; or (ii) it is designated as at FTVPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has

a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHBERGE)

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets. Fair value

is determined in the manner described in note 48.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including deposits, trade and interest receivables,
other receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables,
consideration receivable, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances, trust and segregated accounts and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. Equity securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unlisted equity securities whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of
available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on available-for-sale
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established. Other
changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale financial
assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of asset revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the asset revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured (i.e. unlisted equity securities)
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of the reporting period (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have

been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below

its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment

could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in

interest or principal payments;

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 90 to 180 days, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

126 Annual Report %%k 2017/18

FESHEEGE)

SRMIA(E)
EREERE

TREE(NATFEFEEES(FARELZ
EREBEERIN RREPRFERE B RELD
R MAEZBRBERANSHATRMEERTE
EH—ARZRENHCREEMNMGRRR
TRERIFE  AeREERERDHEE -

BARHERARAN S - ERRANATE
AERFEREERERA - SERRAAE
SELT R

RAEHEMEREEMS - MENTEEEA
B

o EBITARXRZETEINBRENRERE
%

o EH MBMESIERFSRASER
o ERABARKESETVBES =X

o RERMEERERTSE KR
oo

BETLmMEERR (WMEIREER) ME - WaT
BARKRERRE L EESITIREREERITH
B - BRFUBESNEERERE2E
REEBERRERS  HENTEBERES
BFHEEH0E 180 B RN EIE N - LA E
JE A 5k T 6 B 7 R ) 2 R s it 7 A A L ) AT
Bz -



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, including those available-
for-sale equity investments carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment

loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to

profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset (other than those
carried at cost less accumulated impairment) is considered to
be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss in the period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment

not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to
impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of asset

revaluation reserve.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
instruments in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial

liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter

period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis,
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, for

which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at

FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

(i) the amount of obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

(i) the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading; or (ii) it is designated as
at FTVPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

repurchasing it in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-making; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as

hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for
trading(or contingent consideration that may be paid by an
acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;

or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The
net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liabilities. Fair value is

determined in the manner described in note 48.
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other payables
and accruals, borrowings, secured notes and other liability are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method.
Warrants

Warrants issued by the Company that will be settled by a
fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments are equity instruments. The net
proceeds received from the issue of warrants are recognised
in equity (warrant reserve). The warrant reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium accounts
upon the exercise of the warrants. When the warrants are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in the warrant reserve will be transferred to

accumulated profits (losses).
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in

profit or loss immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Call option on subscription of the shares of the Company

Call options on subscription of the shares of the Company
written to a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, which
will be settled other than by exchange of fixed amount of
cash for a fixed number of shares in a subsidiary is treated as
derivative and is recognised at fair value upon initial
recognition. Any changes in fair value in subsequent reporting

dates are recognised in profit or loss.

Obligation arising from put options on shares of a
subsidiary written to a non-controlling shareholder

The gross financial liability arising from the put option is
recognised when contractual obligation to repurchase the
shares of a subsidiary is established even if the obligation is
conditional on the counterparty exercising a right to sell back
the shares to the Group. The liability for the share redemption
amount is initially recognised and measured at present value
of the estimated repurchase price with the corresponding
debit to the non-controlling interests. In subsequent years,
the remeasurement of the present value of the estimated
gross obligation under the written put option to the non-

controlling shareholder is recognised in profit or loss.
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the

risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligations
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding

adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be

transferred to accumulated profits (losses).
Share award scheme and emolument shares

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a

corresponding increase in equity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEETHBERGE)

(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

Share award scheme and emolument shares (continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative

expense reflects the revised estimate.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value

of money is material).
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are discussed below.
Impairment assessment of loan receivables

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amount of total outstanding
loan receivables in respect to the money lending business
was HK$726,001,000 (2017: HK$788,590,000). The Group
assesses the recoverability of the loan receivables on an
individual basis, when there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss on loan receivables, by considering the
creditworthiness, past collection history, subsequent
settlement of each borrower and relevant pledge of assets
and guarantees. For impairment testing purpose, the amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the loan receivable’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows or a change in facts and circumstances which
results in downward revision of future cash flows, are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise in future
financial periods. During the year ended 31 March 2018,
allowance for bad and doubtful debts amounted to
HK$321,000 (2017: HK$6,900,000) has been charged to profit

or loss.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

Carrying value of financial instruments not quoted in
an active market

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying value of the Group's
financial liabilities at FVTPL (2017: financial assets designated
at FVTPL and liabilities at FVTPL) were determined by
valuation technique as these financial instruments do not
have a quoted market price. The directors of the Company
use their judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied. In determining the carrying value of
these instruments, assumptions are made based on currently
available market data adjusted for specific features of these

instruments (see note 20 for details).
Impairment assessment on goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belong. Determining whether impairment needs to be
provided requires an estimation of future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash generating units. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
a change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise. Details of the recoverable amount calculation

for cash generating units are set out in note 21.
Estimated impairment loss of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of the intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that they have suffered an
impairment loss respectively. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets are estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

(continued)

Estimated impairment loss of intangible assets
(continued)

Determining whether the intangible assets are impaired
require an estimation of the recoverable amount of the
respective cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the
intangible assets have been allocated. Recoverable amount
of the respective CGU is determined based on higher of value
in use calculation and fair value less cost to sell. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculations are those
regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to service fee and rental income and direct costs. Where the
actual cash flows are less than expected, a material

impairment loss may arise.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY 4.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARDIER
2018 2017
—EB-N\FE T —tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Interest income generated from B R E BRE 2 A B IR A
money lending 118,006 138,141
Commission income generated from BEffm - HEREHLELHIZ
commodities, futures and AelA
securities brokerage 11,524 7,617
Revenue generated from retailing of ABE R ETERIZ KA
men’s and women's apparels 34,618 9,323
Rental and other service income generated [ 2 SEH#M [ R SRR 8 6 275
from construction machinery and sales of FRER 2 FH & B2 EAth AR 755 Uk A
construction materials business (Note a) (fizxa) 117,870 20,327
Trading income generated from construction B MM MLV HE 275
machinery and sales of construction AL & S (FiEEb)
materials business (Note b) 47,999 30,905
330,017 206,313

Notes:

(@)  Amount represents revenue generated from leasing and sub-
leasing of machinery and other service income.

(b)  Amount represents revenue generated from sales of machinery and
spare parts.

(@)  ZEEEBEEREEBMESZ WS R E MR
TEUA

(b) ZEWEAHEEMEEBRTHEE 2K -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

Summary of revenue and gross proceeds from the

WARDEBER (F)

BWARKREHEFERERE ZTENE

sales of investments held for trading REZHE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T+t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Revenue WA 330,017 206,313

Gross proceed from the sale of investments KA HEHIEEZTRE 2

held for trading FriS SR E R 574,003 674,697
Total At 904,020 881,010

The Group is currently organised into below operating

divisions and carried out by the following subsidiaries:

(@)  Money lending division carried out by Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited (“Hao Tian Finance”) and Hao Tian
Credit Company Limited

(b)  Securities investment division carried out by Hao Tian
Management (Hong Kong) Limited (“Hao Tian
Management”) and Esteem Ocean Limited

() Trading of futures division carried out by Hong Kong
Energy & Mining Investment Management Limited

(d) Commodities, futures and securities brokerage division
carried out by Hao Tian International Bullion Limited,
Hao Tian International Futures Limited, Hao Tian Asset
Management Limited, Hao Tian International Wealth
Management Limited and Hao Tian International
Securities Limited ("Hao Tian Securities”)

(e) Construction machinery and sales of construction
materials division carried out by Hao Tian International
Construction Investment Group Limited (“Hao Tian

International Construction”) and its subsidiaries
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 Z = — \F=HA=+—HILtFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSIER ()
(continued)

Summary of revenue and gross proceeds from the WARRBHERFEEREZMENRE

sales of investment held for trading (continued) WEOBE (&)

()  Retailing of men’s and women’s apparels division ) BEERZEZESP HEEHTRD
carried out by Fujian Nuogi Co. Ltd., (“Fujian Nuogqi”) BERAR(BEET ) RENBARL
and its subsidiaries =

These operating divisions are the basis of internal reports ZEREDMDAEEEZ LD A REHE
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed B AREBWTES(NETBLEERKE)STE
by the executive directors of the Company, being the chief HEH UDERBERESHS BT HESHE 2
operating decision maker, in order to allocate resources to FIE o

segments and to assess their performance.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the chief HREFELEERREVETHRENITEER
operating decision maker does not regularly review segment B RUEZNHIBEERAE -

assets and liabilities.
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSBER (&)
(continued)
Segment revenue and results DE W Rk A
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results TXAAREBREE R 2Wy HBE D 2 W
by operating and reportable segment. REBEI
For the year ended 31 March 2018 BEZ-_FE-N\F=ZF=+—HIFE
Construction
Commodities, ~ machinery  Retailing of
futuresand  and salesof ~ men'sand
Money Securities  Trading of securities  construction women'’s
lending  investment futures  brokerage materials apparels Consolidated
B BEHRM
HER REE BER
HE& BHERE HEEE BHEL MREE TREE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TET TR FEL FEL FEL
Gross proceeds fromsaleof ~ REHEREEERE
investments held for trading 2 iS5 E4E - 574,003 - - - - 574,003
Segment revenue PEME 118,006 - - 11,524 165,869 34,618 330,017
Segment result HBLY 8198 (145149 (3793) (12168  (200701)  (158516)  (438343)
Other income HA 6,626
Other gains and losses Hip s R EE 81,353
Central administration costs R R{THE A (107,663)
Share of result of an associate DG —BENFIEE (769)
Finance costs BERAK (79,595)
Loss before taxation BRAIEE (538,391)
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017

5.

WA RS EBER (F)

7 RB U aE B B4R (48 )

BE_T—tF=A=+—HIFE

Construction

Commodities, machinery  Retailing of

futuresand  and sales of men'’s and

Money Securities Trading of securities  construction women's
lending  investment futures brokerage materials apparels  Consolidated

R R,

BER Qs BER
HE BHRE HEEE BHER WRHAE TETE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAR FAR TEL THEL THEL THL THL

Gross proceeds fromsale of ~ REHEBEEERE

investments held for trading 2 TS 5VE4AE - 674,697 - - - - 674,697
Segment revenue Db 138,141 - - 7617 51,232 9,323 206,313
Segment results DREE 108,252 (3,060,503) (16,210) (14,214) 13,427 4,567 (2,964,681)
Other income HiA 1,777
Other gains and losses Hip s R ER (540,256)
Central administration costs R R{THER (74,890)
Other expenses Hibpx (29,251)
Share of result of an associate 25—kt & A A48 (1,567)
Finance costs BERAK (87,873)
Loss before taxation B AIEE (3,686,741)

All of the segment revenue reported for both years were from
external customers. The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3.

Segment results represent the profits earned or losses
incurred by each segment without allocation of certain other
income, certain other gains and losses, central administration
costs, other expenses, finance costs and share of result of an
associate, except for those directly related to operating
segment. This is the measure reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

P2 MIEFE 2 A 5 AU e g 5k 8 SR
BEP - ABKED B2 BRERK I
Az AL B & BERAR o

DEEEEZ D HERDEE TEMEA - &
THMEEMEE  PRITBEER - EMFH
X RERARD G —HBEAREREZER
THREUZ B M HESE 2 B - ERKEDHE
BEABEERIN - AR EERKFERRA
TBLERREREZIA -
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

5.

WA RS EBER (F)

Other segment information HihnBER
Construction
Commodities, ~ machinery  Retailing of
futuresand ~ andsalesof ~ men'sand
Money ~ Securities  Trading of securities  construction women's Segment
lending  investment futures  brokerage materials apparels total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BEER
B BE RESNR BER
HE& BERE HEEE REZER HEXH REBE AR L) &8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén TR TEn TR TER TEn TER TEn TER
For the year ended g2 5-)1F
31 March 2018 ZATT-AILEE
Amounts reqularly providedto  EERMEF T ELE
the chief operating decision ~ REHENE
maker but not included in PEERE
the measure of segment TFitAZEE:
profit or loss:
Interest income FIBMA - - - - - - - 1,249 1,249
Share of result of an associate A~ EBEDAEE - - - - - - - 769 769
Gain on disposal of property,  HENE - BER
plant and equipment RERNE - - - - 466 26 492 27 519
Impairment loss on property, ~ #1% * B k&G
plant and equipment HEEE - - - - 9,100 5 9,100 5 9,100
Depreciation Vit ] - - - - 50,320 8,127 58,447 5,088 63,535
Allowance for bad and doubtful & &
debts - - - - 921 - 921 - 921
Reversal of allowance forbad ~ AERZH A
and doubtful debts - - - - 9,795 - 9,795 - 9,795
Finance costs BEANK 5,741 - - 2 7,630 5,235 18,608 60,987 79,595
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WARSIER ()
(continued)

Other segment information (continued) HiappIpaEr (B)
Construction
Commodities, ~ machinery  Retailing of
futresand  andsalesof ~ men'sand
Money Securiies  Tradling of securities  construction women's Segment
lending ~ investment futures  brokerage materials apparels total  Unallocated ~ Consolidated
BERR
BnodE REEH 2
HE  BRRE HEEE RESER HERR RREE o¥ed Ak 54

HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TER TEL TER TEL TER

For the year ended HE-T-t%
31 March 2017 ZR=1-AIEE

Amounts reqularly provided to Eﬁﬂh‘ﬁi?fx 2B
the chief operating decision R BE"
makerbutnotindudedin  EHUEXR
the measure of segment A ]_‘W\Z%%E :

profit or loss:

Interest income FIBMA - - - - - - - 5737 5731
Share of result of an associate 25 —THBA AT EE - - - - - - - 1567 1,567
Depreciation E - - - - 7235 696 7931 5,294 13,225
Finance costs BERK 20,069 514 - 9 978 - 2,590 66,283 87,873
Gain on disposal of property,  HEHE « BER

plant and equipment RERNE - - - - 9% - 9% - 9%
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RARZBER(E)
(continued)
Geographical information HEER
The information about the Group's revenue by location of AREBIZBBREETE 2L LB E D 2 A
operations of the relevant group’s entities and the Group's RAEEZEEMEMEE D ZFERBEEL
non-current assets by geographical area in which the assets EREFBOT
physically are located is detailed below:
Revenue Non-current assets (note)
['ON IERENE 2= (FIEE)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F ZB-NF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT FET FAT
Hong Kong B 295,399 196990 847,847 912,565
The PRC F 34,618 9,323 270,418 410,677
330,017 206,313 1,118,265 1,323,242
Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, M3 EMBEETBEAMRBEERE  BEURTE
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, loan STERHES I ARRCEREE  BRER
receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits and RMEBERYGRIA - BEFRITFERBELERIE
deferred tax assets. BE -
Information about major customers BREIEREFZEHR

There was nil (2017: one) customer contributing over 10% of

total revenue of the Group and are as follows (note):

MELEAEEHBARAIBAENEF(ZF
—tF —R) ()

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+t5F

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A 25 A -1 30,209

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group.

Note: Revenue from money lending business.
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OTHER INCOME 6. HflgA
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Interest earned on bank deposits SRAITIF SR BREN 2 1) 8 1,249 5,737
Interest earned on financial assets EEAAFEFEBEEE L AEE
designated at FVTPL e REEMRIZF A = 1,827
Sundry income FETEWA 4,983 3433
Dividend income from available-for-sale KEaHEEREZREWA
investments 780 780
7,012 11,777
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7.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

7. HitREREE

2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fair value loss on investments BIEEBREN A FEEE

held for trading (148,942) (3,076,305)
Fair value gain (loss) on financial assets/ AT EFEBREEZ (A

liabilities at FVTPL BENEREE AED

N ERE (BE) 77,679 (468,986)
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE - BERZENRZE

plant and equipment 519 98
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB MERENREEER

plant and equipment (9,100) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HERHHERE MY

investments - 53,212
Net foreign exchange gain (loss) bE 5 e (618) )88 6,114 (26,978)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A ERENRERE

investments (1,748) (86,532)
Loss on early redemption of REEBELEHKAERE

secured notes (note 32) 518 (MizE32) (700) (2,959)
Impairment loss on loan and U & 3 N B R E R 1R

interest receivables (notes 27 and 26) (FF5E 27 2. 26) (511) (8,111)
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIEZIRBUE (921) -
Reversal of allowance for bad and B EIRIZEREER

doubtful debts and receipt of U ER AR A )& (B 5E)

related interest (Note) 12,961 -
Refund of costs incurred for FFEARK AR K (BT EE)

a litigation (Note) 2,358 -
Impairment loss on inventories FEREER (5,582) -
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 21) EEREEE (it 21) (316,250) -

(384,123) (3,616,561)
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7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (continued) 7.

Note: The Company impaired a trade receivable due from a customer of
HK$8,885,000 due to the uncertainty of recovery of the receivable
in previous years. The Group filed litigation against this customer.
On 11 July 2017, the Court of Appeal ruled in favour of the Group
and the customer has to pay the unsettled trade receivable
HK$8,885,000 and HK$3,166,000 interests on the unsettled trade
receivable to the Group. The Group was also entitled to receive the
costs of the appeal in the sum of HK$2,358,000 from the customer.
The amount was fully settled during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Besides, the Group also received HK$910,000 long-outstanding
trade receivables from customers. The amounts were written-off in
prior years.

8. OTHER EXPENSES 8.

As detailed in note 41, the Group incurred professional fee of
HK$16,386,000 and HK$12,865,000 in relation to Clear Lift
Acquisition and Fujian Nuogi Acquisition (as defined in notes
41B and 41C) respectively, which were charged to the profit
or loss during the year ended 31 March 2017.

H 5 e 5 18 (48)

Bt © NIRRT REE 2 T AT IS IR K - i
I AN A B E U — 5 & P A 8 UK BR 5K 8,885,000 75
TAELRE - AEBEHZREPRILFA - R
T—tF+LA+—B LFREEHTALEER
- ME P AZ KRB R E AR 8,885,000 7T
hn A AN 5 B R 18 12 R IR BR 3K 3,166,000 7 TT A Fl
B REBE A #RE P UE 52 F 2,358,000
BT BANBEERBEE_ZE—N\F=A=1+—
Al FERHEN -

Uboh - AEE T TR E BEF M RAREENE
U AR 72 910,00078 T © 7% & B £ 1B £ 4 8 2 B

Hpa<

WA 41 FrEFil - NEE S BIBLIE R W =
BREEFAURBEFHE(EERMITIBR
41C) E 4 E ¥ B 16,386,000 T &
12,865,000 70 * ZEBRANREE_T—+tF
=A=+—BIEFENRIBER -

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. REKAE

2018 2017
—E-NE§E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Interest expense on borrowings EEZMERX 71,339 79,899
Interest expense on other liability HihBBE2MERAE 7,930 7,930

Interest expense of obligations under REREREZFERYT
finance leases 326 44
79,595 87,873
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10. TAXATION CREDIT 10. BIEER
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAT
Hong Kong: BB
Current tax BIEAF I8 15,614 18,354
Overprovision in prior years i FE RS (1,416) @1
14,198 18,313
Hong Kong: EE
Deferred tax (note 33) RAETR IR (M5 33) (26,819) (516,206)
Income tax credit PRSTE R (12,621) (497,893)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BEBFERIEMESE 2 Bt BRBEN 2
assessable profit for both years. 16.5%5TH °
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the Hih R ERRAES 2 RIBVRE @ RVAER
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. ZRITHEGH -
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10. TAXATION CREDIT (continued) 10. BRER (B)
The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss FARBEREGEBR REME2ERERA
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or ZBREBATEBIRERMNT -
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2018 2017
—E-NE ZZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Loss before taxation R A E R (538,391) (3,686,741)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% & RIS 16.5% 518 2 Fi1E (88,835) (608,312)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAHBFAZ 2 RS2
for tax purposes 77,061 110,776
Tax effect of income not taxable HARBIMA 2 R 2
for tax purposes (17,675) (15,420)
Overprovision in respect of prior years W FE RS (1,416) @1
Tax effect of estimated tax RERGEIEE R B2
losses not recognised 17,706 14,845
Tax effect of share of results of an associate D —EL AR EE 2 BIE 2 127 259
Tax effect of different jurisdictions TRBLEER 2 BB E 180 -
Others Hi 231 -
Taxation credit for the year FAFRIER R (12,621) (497,893)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$550,230,000 (2017: HK$442,921,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of HK$28,745,000 (2017: HK$38,570,000)
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining HK$521,485,000 (2017:
HK$404,351,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. All tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

RZZE—N\E=ZA=+—8 AEEEXHH
i T8 5 $8550,230,0008 T( — T — + F ¢
442,921,000/ 7T ) A] AR SE R 2O& ) - B 5t
Z % 5 828,745,000 (= T — 1 F:
38,570,000 8 7T) ERIELEFIBE E - BAR R
FRE AT TERIME - BB FIER 2 521,485,000
BT (ZZ— 4 : 404,351,00058 70 ) HERIELE
MIBEE - TERBERYERRLE -
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11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 11. FREE
2018 2017
—EBE-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Loss for the year has been arrived FREEB TSR TS IERER
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZERTE & 3,000 2,134
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment ICANRIE-$- L §is 622 337
Amortisation of premium over prepaid TR EFIE 2 m B 5
lease payment 2,720 2,720
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses R AR 2 FEKRA 47,383 15,205
Depreciation of property, plant and Y RE MBS
equipment 63,535 13,225
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BE MR BN RERE
equipment 9,100 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of THRYEZKLHEEES
rented premises 24,962 20,702
Staff costs: BIARAK :
Directors’ emoluments =E=WE 10,994 6,399
Chief executive's emoluments TR AR & 1,221 1,594
Other staff costs Hh B TR
— salaries, bonus and other allowances — ¥ R4 M E A ERL 117,572 48,347
— retirement benefit scheme — RIKEFIFTEIH R
contributions 3,145 1,535
— share-based payments — AR FE A AR - 6/1
132,932 58,546
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EBERTHEZMS
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors, ENRENTARASES THRAKESR
chief executive and senior consultant of the Company were as BERz#MEemT
follows:
2018 2017
“E-0\E EtF
Retirement Retirement
Salaries Performance benefit Salaries benefit
and other based scheme Emolument and other scheme  Emolument
Fee all e b contributi shares Total Fee allowances contributions shares Total
#eR mERREE  BHER ek RKER

wE  AfEe ZRA HEMR RERS 4B e ARl HEAR ZBRD &8
HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TR TR TR TR FiEn TiEn TAL TAL TAT TAT TET

Executive directors HrEs
Xu Hai Ying note b) <188 (itb) - 600 - - - 600 - 600 - - 600
Zhiliang Ou (note b) B (Fitb) - 600 50 - - 650 - 650 - - 650
FokChiTak ("Mr.Fok")  EZE([B%4£)
(note b) (Fizb) - 399 176 32 5,000 9,204 - 2091 18 2500 4,609
- 5,196 226 32 5,000 10,454 - 3,341 18 2,500 5859
Independent non-executive B 3117 E
directors
Chan Ming Sun, Jonathan ~ [44% 180 - - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Lam Kwan Sing WER 180 - - - - 180 180 - - - 180
Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua BT 180 - - - - 180 180 - - - 180
540 - - - - 540 540 - - - 540
Sub-total INGE 540 5,196 226 32 5,000 10,994 540 3,341 18 2,500 6,399
Chief executive THES
Gao Shufang (note ¢) EEUIGED) - 1,212 - 9 - 1,221 - 1,582 12 - 1,504
Senior consultant/ BREE/ERRE
controlling shareholder
Ms. Li (note a) Ft(fizta) - 11,000 1,280 18 - 12,298 - 2,301 18 - 2319
Total B 540 17,408 1,506 59 5,000 24,513 540 7,224 48 2,500 10,312
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12.

13.

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:
(a) Ms. Li is a controlling shareholder of the Group.
(b)  The emoluments of executive directors of the Company, including

Mr. Xu Hai Ying, Mr. Zhiliang Ou and Mr. Fok were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group. The emoluments of remaining directors of the
Company were for their services as directors of the Company.

(c) Mr. Gao Shufang was appointed as the chief executive of the
Company on 15 August 2016 and he resigned as the chief executive
of the Company on 30 September 2017.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors or chief executive of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors or chief
executive of the Company has waived any emoluments during

both years.

EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2017: two) were director, the chief executive or
senior consultant of the Company whose emoluments were
included in the disclosures in note 12 above. The emoluments

of the remaining two (2017: three) individuals were as follows:

13.

12. EERITHRAREME (B)

FaE
@ FREIRAEEZBERE -

b) ARANATEL(BEFEELRLE BERE
ERBERE)ZHERABRERARTARAEEE
BEBHESRENREMES - KRRRWHRT
EEZHMANSEREEARRAEEMREZR
TMmER ©

(© SEARERN_E-—RFNA+TRAEZERK
RAZITBEH R —F—tFNA=THE
EARRBZITHAE -

RMEFEAR  AEBEXEAARROEFE
SRITHAE NS FERINAL K B AR
B BB SR BE AR (E - RAEFEALEAR
AINEBEERTRAHRBRETCIHE -

BEM<

RAEERE&RSME AL =ZH(ZF
—tF MB)RARAES  THRARIES
R A e 2 FBER EXME 1235 -
HEHBEMEB(ZT—1F: =) AT zHEw
T

2018 2017

—E2-NE T —tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FETT

Salaries and other allowances e N H {2 2,597 6,399
Discretionary or performance based bonus  BJI5siiZRIREF 2 IEAL 183 275
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERIET B 35 54
2,815 6,728
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13. EMPLOYEE'S EMOLUMENTS (continued) 13. EEME(E)
The emoluments were within the following bands: Ble T ToIEE s A :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
Number of Number of
employees employees
EEAH EE A
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77T £ 1,500,000 7 7T 1 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /7L 2 2,000,000 7T 1 -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T % 2,500,000/ 7T - 2
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T & 3,000,000 4 7T = 1
During both years, no emoluments or discretionary bonus NREERER  AEETER FTSEEE A
were paid by the Group to the above highest paid individuals + BN s BB FEAT VBB N A 2 B 5 A B
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as B SV E o B R A (E o

compensation for loss of office.

14. DIVIDEND 14. BE
No dividend was paid or proposed by the directors of the ARATNEENFAEEYES HHEEERE
Company for both years nor has any dividend been proposed B GERE R R I SR BT B o

since the end of the reporting period.
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15. LOSS PER SHARE 15. SREE
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable RATHEEAEEERERNREFESENZT
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: FIEHEETE -
2018 2017
—E-N\FE T —tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Loss BB
Loss for the purposes of basic and diluted ~ FIAGTESRER L #EEEE 2
loss per share (loss for the year BB (N A EIES AELZ
attributable to the owners of FAEE)
the Company) (444,906) (3,078,901)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
(restated)
(Fe=51))
Number of shares R BB
Weighted average number of ordinary AU EBRERNEEEE
shares for the purposes of basic and AR INAE T 5 £
diluted loss per share 4,884,056 4,817,265
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the HE_Z—+HF=RA=+—HILFE &
purposes of calculating basic loss per share for the year BREREBRZ ZBRMETHHESIELH
ended 31 March 2017 has been adjusted to reflect the impact B URBMR -_Z—t+F A - +HBARA
of bonus issue of the Company’s shares took place on 25 July RINAIRREIT 2 RHE -
2017.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the computation of BE-_T—)\F=ZA=+—HItFE HE&
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the RESEER T EBRRSTEARAEARITRELZ
Company'’s outstanding share options and emolument shares BREREBRD  EARJITEZSERE
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss KRR EEREREERD o
per share.
For the year ended 31 March 2017, the computation of HE—_ZT—+tF=-A=+—HILFE FHEE
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the REEE BT ERRSTEARARARITREZ
Company'’s outstanding share options and emolument shares BREREBRD  EARJITEZSERE
since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease in loss KRR O EERERERRD o
per share.
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y%  BERRKE
Leasehold Furniture,
land and  Leasehold fixtures and Art Motor
building improvements  equipment works vehicles  Machinery Yacht Total

HELHE  HEWE KA RE
L &5 % R#fE g1 m RE B it st
HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TEL TET TEL TETL TiET

CoST BA
At 1 April 2016 RZE—"ENA—A - 4,153 3,016 18,796 9879 - 65,033 100,877
Exchange adjustments [EXAR (6) (12) (65) - (175) - - (258)
Additions NE - 1,980 2,786 161 1,423 17,453 298 24,101
Reclassification to ENNEERE
inventories - - - - - (7,983) - (7,983)
Disposals HE - - (29 - (1,467) - - (1492)
Acquisition of subsidiaries  UzEE B A )
(note 41) (GEZ) 171,864 1,222 881 - 4,742 300,767 - 479,476
At 31 March 2017 RZT—+F
=A=t+-H 171,858 7,343 6,593 18,957 14,402 310,237 65,331 594,721
Exchange adjustments BN A% 7,246 132 179 - 270 - - 7827
Additions NE 6,704 2,897 1,387 - 631 64,419 218 76,256
Reclassification to ENNRERE
inventories - - - - - (36,834) - (36,834)
Disposals HE - - (1,040) - (3,040) - - (4,080)
At 31 March 2018 RZB-NE
=ZR=t+-H 185,808 10,372 7,119 18,957 12,263 337,822 65,549 637,890
DEPRECIATION AND FERRE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2016 RZE-"FNA—-A - 3,029 1,546 - 4,323 - 9,777 18,675
Exchange adjustments ER AR - - (26) - (58) - - (84)
Provided for the year FRkEE 1,035 179 795 - 1,395 6,469 3,352 13,225
Disposal k= - - 1) - (377) - - (388)
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F
=A=t+-H 1,035 3,208 2,304 - 5,283 6,469 13,129 31,428
Exchange adjustments (B} 5% 314 2 107 - 129 - - 572
Impairment loss REEBR = = - - - 9,100 - 9,100
Provided for the year FREE 10,293 764 1,200 - 2,378 45,504 3,39 63,535
Reclassification to ENNEERE
inventories - - - - - (5,079 - (5,079
Disposals HE - - (583) - (1,989) - - (2.572)
At 31 March 2018 R=B-NE
=ZR=1+-H 11,642 3,994 3,028 - 5,801 55,994 16,525 96,984
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2018 R=B-NF
=A=+—1° 174,166 6,378 4,091 18,957 6,462 281,828 49,024 540,906
At 31 March 2017 RZZ—+&
=A=t+-H 170,823 4135 4,289 18,957 9,119 303,768 52,202 563,293
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. V¥ BMERRZRE(E)

(continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than art works) over
their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of
their estimated residual value, using the straight-line method,
at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the lease terms

Leasehold improvements 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% to 25%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%
Machinery 10%

Yacht 5%

Art works are stated at cost less any identified impairment

loss (if any).

The leasehold land and building of the Group are held under
medium-term lease in Hong Kong and amortised over the

term of lease of 30 years.

As at 31 March 2018, the carrying value of machinery and
motor vehicles includes amount of HK$151,864,000 and
HK$2,537,000 (2017: HK$115,438,000 and HK$3,652,000) in
respect of assets held under finance lease arrangement,
respectively. The liabilities arising from finance lease
arrangements were either classified as borrowings or
obligation under finance leases as at the end of reporting
period. During the year ended 31 March 2018, HK$9,100,000
(2017: nil) impairment loss has been provided for certain of

machinery.

As at 31 March 2018, leasehold land and building with a
carrying amount of HK$6,296,000 (2017: HK$6,316,000) to
secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

17. BRHEERE

The prepaid lease payment comprises: FENEERIESRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong BERIINEE L 34,305 32,061

Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEmEBRNSTR -

Current portion BERER > 365 329
Non-current portion JERNERER > 33,940 31,732
34,305 32,061

The leasehold land is amortised on a straight-line basis over

the remaining term of the lease.

MHE TR T BIA B SRR -

18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 18. FEANHEEFIEZRE
HK$'000
FHET
COST RS
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 and 2018 RZZE-RFHEA—B —ZT—+F
r—E-N\F=ZA=1+—H 133,261
AMORTISATION 1 o4
At 1 April 2016 RZE—XRFWMA—H 2,719
Provided for the year F N A 2,720
At 31 March 2017 R-_ZE—+F=H=+—H 5,439
Provided for the year F N 2,720
At 31 March 2018 N=-E-NE=A=+—8 8,159
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 March 2018 R=-F-—NE=A=+—H 125,102
At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—t+tF=A=+—H 127,822
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18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT 18. BHHEEREBEZRE(E)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group acquired
the entire interest of Access Profit Global Enterprises Group
Limited (“Access Profit”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Access Profit Group”) at a consideration of
HK$150,000,000 from Sunshine Zhong Xing Capital Holdings
Limited (“Vendor"). The principal asset of the Access Profit
Group is a plot of land located in Urumgji, the capital city of
the Uyghur Autonomous Region of Xinjiang in the PRC. The
land is designated for logistics and warehousing development
purpose. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, it is
probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the
Group as a result of engaging in the logistics and
warehousing development on this land. At the date of
acquisition, the excess of the fair value of the land,
determined based on a valuation performed as on 31 March
2015 by Roma Appraisals Limited, over the amount prepaid
by Access Profit Group when it acquired the land use right, is
recognised as premium over prepaid lease payment in
accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible Assets.

At the date of the completion of the acquisition, the Group
recorded HK$18,131,000 and HK$133,261,000 as prepaid
lease payment and premium over prepaid lease payment
respectively. The premium over prepaid lease payment is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of

the leases of the prepaid lease payment of 49 years.

As detailed in the circular issued by the Company on 23
January 2015 (the “Logistics Circular”), the Vendor
undertakes, amongst others,

(i) the net profit after tax of Access Profit Group for the
year ending 31 December 2018 is not less than RMB25
million (the “Guaranteed Profit”), the Vendor agrees
and undertakes to pay the Group a compensation in the
amount equivalent to the shortfall between the actual
net profit after tax and the Guaranteed Profit of the
Access Profit Group; and
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

18. PREMIUM OVER PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT
(continued)

(i)

in case the valid permit for commencement of the
construction works or the land title certificate or any of
the requisite permits, licenses, approvals, authorisations,
consents, registrations and filings referred to the
Logistics Circular is not obtained, or made as the case
may be, by the Access Profit Group by 31 December
2018, the Vendor agrees and undertakes to pay RMB25
million to the Group as compensation and the parties
agreed to unwind the transaction, whereupon, the
entire issued share capital of the Access Profit will be
transferred to the Vendor without consideration and
HK$150,000,000, representing the consideration paid by
the Group, will be returned to the Group.

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

. ANHEER

B ISR M

—N\F=ZA=1t—HLLFE

RIR 2 5w (48)

WM ERTER_-_Z—N\F+=A
=+ —BABSSHETERTERTmE)
W) K T 2 B B SE TR TET Al
BRI EEFE LT MBS ETAIE
RRRR - O - B AR BRRER
AlEFRBTAHABERAEEZNAR
#% 25,000,000 7C fE B E - M E] 475 [
EERRS Bt IMEEZE2HE
BOIRAKEEERTET R
150,000,000 7t (IHE R A E B L2
RE)BERE TAER -

19. AIHHERE

2018 2017
—E-NF —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT T
Available-for-sale investments include: AHEEERERRE -
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, REBLETHRAEAES -

at fair value BAFE 463,977 694,310
Unlisted fund investment, at fair value ELFMESKRE - EBATE 237,994 -
Unlisted equity securities, at cost FEETIRAE S - KA 405,145 363,235
Less: accumulated impairment loss W RENREEIE (293,057) (293,057)

Unlisted equity securities, at cost less FEETRAES - KA
accumulated impairment loss BRETREE R 112,088 70,178
814,059 764,488
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19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 19. AItHERE(E)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group invested
HK$233,292,000 to a fund which is principally invested in
listed securities.

During year ended 31 March 2018, the Group invested
RMB33,555,000 (equivalent to HK$41,910,000) into a private
entity, which is indirectly holding of 0.15% of electronic bank
in PRC.

Fair values of listed equity securities are based on quoted

market bid prices in the active market.

Unlisted equity securities represent investments in unlisted
equity securities issued by three (2017: two) private entities.
The business of these companies is investments holding. They
are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value measurements is so significant and the
probabilities of the various estimates with the range cannot
be reasonably assessed that the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has pledged available-for-
sale investments HK$58,878,000 (2017: nil) and HK$405,098,680
(2017: HK$136,266,000) to secured notes and secure bank
loans granted to the Group. Details are set out in notes 32
and 34.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSET DESIGNATED AT FAIR 20. EEUAFEFEBHBLFTAERE
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/ ZEMEE UAFETEEES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE FTABEzEREE
THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2018 2017
—E-N\F Ik Sl S
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT FH&T
Financial assets designated JEENAFEFEBHEE
at FVTPL AR EREE
Jimei Bond (note i) SEESH (W) - 27,779
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: AT EFEEEEL
FFABRZERARE
CSFG Option (note ii) AR L 5 mh B A (BRED - 1,381
HTF Warrants (note ii) SR RBEE (i) 11,750 33,180
Option arising from HTM EREERBEEMELE
Subscription (note iii) 2 BRRE (B 5T i) 227,143 284,789
238,893 319,350

Notes:

On 5 November 2015, the Group subscribed for an unlisted 8%
coupon convertible bond issued by Jimei International
Entertainment Group Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange ("Jimei Bond") with principal amount of HK$25 million at
a consideration of HK$25 million. The Jimei Bond is denominated
in HK$ and will mature on 2 December 2018. The Group had the
right to convert the Jimei Bond to ordinary shares of Jimei
International Entertainment Group Limited, at any time before the
maturity date, at a conversion price of HK$5 per share. Jimei
International Entertainment Group Limited may also redeem part
or all of the Jimei Bond at any time before the maturity date at
principal amount. The Group designated the entire Jimei Bond as
financial assets designated at FVTPL at initial recognition.

During year ended 31 March 2018, Jimei International
Entertainment Group Limited redeemed the Jimei Bond at
principal amount of HK$25 million.

FaE

RIZB-AF+—-ARR  AEEREHREXE
BREEBEARAR (—HRBRMETZAR)
172 A& /525,000,000/8 T 2 JF LT 8E B
EraEs ((REESF]) - K E%25000,000
BT EXREFTIAETERHEL BN =T~ N\F
TZAZHEE - AEEAENEHA AR
MEERESRSEIHEXEFBRAEXH
FIREEBBERAR CEAR - REBBIRESE
B ER QR INATR R B AT R RRA S HE

o2 EERES - AEERY) T HERE K
EHERBEFETAXFETEEEE AR

BEZ—/\F=ZA=+—HILLFE £XBE
IRGEE B B IR A R B A £ %8 /3 25,000,000 % 7T
MEXES -
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20. FINANCIAL ASSET DESIGNATED AT FAIR 20. EEUAFEFEEESLIAER
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/ ZEMEE UQAFEFEEHSL
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE AFABRmZEMAE(E)

THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued) fE - (#8)

(ii) During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group granted the (i) HE-_Z—X"FZA=+—"HLFE ££ER
CSFG Option and HTF Warrants (as defined and detailed in note —EZBUEZIRHEFBILESRERSELS
32) to an independent third party. The fair value of the CSFG R BRI E (EERFHIBERME32) - PR
Option was calculated using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. HeREBSHENQAFTENERA BB ETE
The inputs into the valuations were as follows: BRAGTHE o HENBAZBIBNT -

CSFG Option At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017

HEILREREE R R-Z—-N\F WZZE—tF

=A=+-8 =ZA=+-8

Share price of China Shangdong Hi-Speed FRILERERSHEEFRA A

Financial Group Limited (“CSFG") (TFELREHER ) 2 RE HK$0.300 % 7T HK$0.330% 7T

Strike price B HK$1.440 % T HK$1.440 77T

Risk free rate (note a) B R R (M a) 0.962% 0.682%

Expected life (note b) TEEAEFHR (Mt st b) 0.286 years 1.286 years

Expected volatility (note c) FEHR R 8 (M aEc) 31.350% 85.000%

Notes: Mz -

(a) Risk free rate is determined by reference to the yield of the (a) B I R Ty 2= F B HARE A TE HR
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to HEAUNEEINELSRBENKRET
the expected life of the option.

(b) Expected life is the expected remaining life of the option. (b) TEHAAF B EARE O TE EA ISR 15 -

() Expected volatility is estimated by calculating the historical © TFEHREDLHEPELREHERNOR
daily share price volatility of the stock price of CSFG. B R B E s B R 8 m (E H st -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSET DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(contin

ued)

The fair value of the HTF Warrants was calculated using the

Binomial Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the valuations were

20. EENDAFEFEBEEB{LTARS
ZEMEE UL TEFEEESL
sFABBECEREE(E)

FHE © (48)
(ii) (®

SRUBRBEEFEORFEDER AT
EREAEE - HENBAZRNT

as follows:
HTF Warrants At 31 March 2018 At 31 March 2017
SRR BARER R-ZB-N\F RZE—+F
=ZA=+-8” =ZA=+—A
Equity value (note a) fREEE (MiTa) HK$0.828 & 7T HK$1.125 77T
Risk free rate (note b) SRR (D) 0.964% 0.683%
Expected life (note c) TEEAGFEA (Mt o) 0.291 years & 1.291 years F
Expected volatility (note d) TEERR IR (MisEd) 24.033% 24.078%

Notes:

(a)

Being equity value of Hao Tian Finance determined by
reference to the net asset value of Hao Tian Finance as at 31
March 2018 and 2017 respectively with adjustment on
marketability and minority discount.

Risk free rate is determined by reference to the yield of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to
the expected life of the warrants.

Expected life is the expected remaining life of the warrants.

Expected volatility is estimated by reference to the volatility
of other companies which shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and engaged in similar industry of Hao Tian
Finance.

@ ERUBZEEBEDESEZRUBS
IR —E-NFR-F—LF=ZA=+—
Bz EEFEGURBIER D EITRED
AR M E

b) ERBRFIERDESEFREZREFNE
HEPRRUNBRINEEZSRIBHRRE
e

(@  TAHFHERBEENASRGES -

(d) EHREIESERONE R LT R

WETREIRPBRUZEBZHEMR
AR fhET o
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20. FINANCIAL ASSET DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THOUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iii)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group issued HTD
Option to Vandi (as detailed and defined in note 36B), an
independent third party. According to the HTD Option Deed (as
defined in note 36B), Vandi has the right to subscribe up to
389,940,000 shares, representing 9.53% of the issued share capital
of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of shares
upon exercising the HTD Option, of the Company at an exercise
price of HK$0.8 per share (adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and
HK$0.69 per share after completion of the Year 2017 Bonus Issue)
(the "HTD Option Price”). Upon the exercise of the HTD Option,
the HTD Option Price will be settled by: (i) cash; (i) transfer of Hao
Tian Management's shares owned by Vandi at a fixed price of
US$48,721 per Hao Tian Management share; or (i) a combination
of payment of (i) and (ii).

The option arising from HTM Subscription carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position as financial liabilities at
FVTPL.

The fair value of the HTD Option was calculated using the Monte-
Carlo Simulation Model. The inputs into the valuations were as
follows:

20. EEE

UAFEFEEHRTARS

ZEMEE UL TEFEEESL
sFABBECEREE(E)

FEAE -

(iii)

(#)

BE-_T—+F=ZA=+—"BLEFE KE£EM
B 5 = 75 Vandi BT HTD B4 (FEIE e R
FE36B) o IRIRHTD B2 1% (% R sE368B) -
Vandi B EZTHEETROSET(REXN =T
—HFEAIAREETT1E % A 454,930,000 A% A% 19 K
f20697% ;L) ((HTDH B |) RE & 2
389,940,000 R AR A& + HHERAQRRHTD
BT E BRRERBITROEBAZE
BITRR AN 9.53% » MAT{EHTD B 1% - HTD Hi#E
B EATAREMN ()RS () REEEFK
SREERMABT21 ETEEVandiEBEZER
B ¢ B (i) B (i) AR 2 R -

EREERBEEMES ZHEZARFEFE
BEZ(CH ARG Z 2RABERGREMBHARRNR
RADIER ©

HTD #i# 2 A FETE AR RERFE G
& MENBABEOT

At 31 March 2018
R-Z—-N\F
=R=t-—~H

At 31 March 2017
R-F—tF
=A=+—8

Equity value of Hao Tian Management (note a)

Stock price of the Company ARRIRAE

Strike price 1TE(E

Risk free rate (note b) ERBRFE (MiFb)
Expected life (note c) FEHRFH (st c)

Expected volatility of the Company (note d)

Notes:

(a) Being equity value of Hao Tian Management determined by
reference to the net asset value of Hao Tian Management as
at 31 March 2018 and 2017 respectively with adjustment on
marketability and minority discount.

(b) Risk free rate is determined by reference to the yield of the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to
the expected life of the option.

() Expected life is the expected remaining life of the option.
(d) Expected volatility is estimated by calculating the historical

weekly share price volatility of the stock price of the
Company.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

21. GOODWILL 21. B8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
The amount arises on acquisition of: WEEA TN EBRELSE
(i)  Hao Tian International Construction (i) Z2XBEFEEE (HTa)
(Note a)
— Original amount (note 41B) — RS 5 (MfiFE41B) 271,670 271,670
— Impairment loss — REEE (172,756) -
98,914 271,670
(i) Fujian Nuogji (Note b) (i) tEEsE (Miskb)
— Original amount (note 41C) — REe5(MIFE410) 143,494 143,494
— Impairment loss — REEE (143,494) -
- 143,494
Total carrying amount HBEREE 98,914 415,164
Notes: BiRE -
(a) The recoverable amount of Hao Tian International Construction has (a) SXREBRER AT E £ 58 T ER B (GEM

been determined based on a value in use calculation prepared by
an independent valuer, Avista Valuation Advisory Limited
(“Avista”). That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period with a discount rate of 12.7% (31 March 2017: 12.8%). Cash
flows after the five-year period are extrapolated at 3% (31 March
2017: 3%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the unit's past performance and
management'’s expectations for the market development. An
impairment test in relation to the goodwill allocated to Hao Tian
International Construction and the related intangible asset has
been performed by the Group. Due to the unfavorable market
situation, the directors of the Company reduced the budgeted
revenue estimation, which caused the carrying amount of Hao Tian
International Construction as at 30 September 2017 exceeded its
value in use based on cash flow projections. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$172,756,000 was recognised to goodwill
allocated to Hao Tian International Construction during the current
year. As at 31 March 2018, the recoverable amount as determined
by the market price of Hao Tian International Construction exceeds
its carrying amount, no further impairment is required.

FEmTEEAERAR ([ XER ) FRRERE
BZEETE SHEHEAFERALCEREBIZI
127%(—E—+FE=F=+—H :128%) BiR =X
AENRFMREEMENRERERN - AF
BRSO RBHT A (ZE—+F=A=+—
H:3%)EERXR - FHEBHENS —BHEER
HAEEWARERNZE  JHiRZEBEZRER
IMEREBEHMSERZEHETE - AEBERY
il 72 REBRER LAABEREENEEETR
BRI - ERAFITR - ARRESFEBEW
Aflst BEREREREIR-_Z—tFNA
—tHMEREEERAEREBEeREEANTEN
FREE - At AEEERIEE2RERE
A B AERE 172,756,000 T c R=F
—N\F=ZRA=+—H BHEXEBREZNHTEE
EMAKESERAEEEE Rt BEE—4
AE
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21. GOODWILL (continued) 21. BE(E)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The recoverable amount of Fujian Nuogi has been determined
based on a value in use calculation by management. The key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted revenue
and gross margin, which is determined based on management’s
expectations for the market development.

During the current year, the directors of the Company reassessed
the financial budgets of the existing business of Fujian Nuogqji,
taking into account the Proposed Nuogi Transaction (as defined at
below). After the budget reassessment, the carrying amount
allocated to Fujian Nuogi as at 31 March 2018 exceeds its value in
use based on cash flow projections. Accordingly, an impairment of
HK$143,494,000 was recognised to goodwill allocated to Fujian
Nuogi during the current year.

Proposed Nuoqi Transaction

On 6 November 2017, Fujian Nuogi, Zhong Hong Holdings
Group Limited, a company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands (“Zhong Hong"”) and Mr. Hu Yulin entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “Sale and Purchase
Agreement”), pursuant to which Fujian Nuogi has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and Zhong Hong has
conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued share capital in
Zhong Hong International Limited (the “Target Company”),
a company incorporated in the BVI (the “Proposed Nuogqi
Transaction”). The consideration payable by Fujian Nuogi
shall be HK$1,053,024,128 and shall be satisfied by Fujian
Nuogqi by allotment and issue to the Zhong Hong of
1,541,878,659 new H Shares (the “Consideration Shares”),
credited as fully paid, at an issue price of HK$0.6829 per
Consideration Share.

Assuming the Consideration Shares are fully issued, the
shareholding interest of the Company in Fujian Nuogi will be
diluted from 59.93% to 17.00% and the Proposed Nuogqi
Transaction will constitute a deemed disposal of the Company

under the Listing Rules.
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22.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

GOODWILL (continued)
Proposed Nuoqi Transaction (continued)

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction is also subject to a number

of conditions precedent, including, in particular:

(@) the grant of approval by the Stock Exchange to the
resumption proposal and the resumption of trading in
the H Shares of Fujian Nuogj;

(b)  the Chinese Securities Regulatory Commission granting
the approval(s) necessary for the issue and allotment of

the Consideration Shares; and

(c)  the Executive of the Securities and Futures Commission
granting a waiver to Zhong Hong to the effect that
neither Zhong Hong nor any party acting in concert (as
defined in the Code on Takeovers and Mergers) (the
"Takeovers Code”) with it will be obliged to make a
general offer for the shares of Fujian Nuogi under the
Takeovers Code as a result of the allotment and issue of

the Consideration Shares to Zhong Hong.

The Proposed Nuogi Transaction was yet to be completed up

to the date of this report.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BHE(E)

ayp
/|

2B X5 (5

purls

e )
EFEw A RS IMARE T RRIGHEERE
FAEE  EREE(LER)

(@) MXAMHEERREERERFTZIHE
WEEE :

b) PTEHEFEBEEZESREITREH
REROHREVEIE : K

© BRIPEEBRERZEGZHNITAR
AP EENE#RS  BUER EREFER
— BT AL (ERRARKERAH
SR (TWB <P RID) S B AR A h ZBC#
REITRE R AR T WS <7 R sh A&
A IR R E R

BEARERY  ERRTRIHRTK °

22. BLEE

2018 2017
—EB-N\E =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
The amount represents: FHASER

Customer list and the securities brokerage & 575 8 M B 5 K40 R R
licenses (Note i) (K3E) 11,000 11,000
Brand name (Note ii) an b8 4 8 (BT 1) 167,650 167,650
178,650 178,650
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

0]

(ii)

HK$11,000,000 of the total amounts represents amount paid for the
customer list and the securities brokerage licenses acquired by the
Group, which amounted to HK$7,500,000 and HK$3,500,000
respectively, through its acquisition of Hao Tian Securities.

The recoverable amount of intangible asset has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period with a discount rate of 11.8% (2017:
13.9%). Cash flows after five years period are extrapolated at 1%
(2017: 1%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the units’s past performance and
management's expectations for the market development.

HK$167,650,000 of the total amounts represents for the brand
name acquired by the Group through its acquisition of Hao Tian
International Construction. The directors of the Company consider
the brand name acquired has indefinite useful life. The recoverable
amount of the intangible asset has been determined based on
basis detailed in note 21.

23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

22.

MR

@

B/IEE(E)

# % %711,000,00078 TLHE 7R 5 7 B UHE R K E
% M # 15 £ % 9 51| /7,500,000 7% 7T & 3,500,000
B2 EPBEERBFE LR 2 25 -

BREEZARESENDERGHEEREEE
Eo BT EARREEERRZEA18%(=ZF
—tH 5 139%) R KRG EN A FHMRAE MG
MRERETRE - AFRZFESREHRERI%(=
T—tF %) EEER - EREEFENS —H
TERJIR/VERARENE - HIRZEMBE
ZRALEREBEMSRRAHET -

48550 167,650,000 BT EEAREE B BIE R RE
BRARBMUE 2 RIEETE - ARREERA - AT
BRZmEERAERAGATH BHEEY
AT S EB T E R 21 il 2 BB T -

23. BERERWNIA

2018 2017

—B-N\F CZZT—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Non-current finance lease receivables JERNER g & H & FE U SR IR 9,529 4,241
Current finance lease receivables B EA gt & 72 & FE Y F I8 6,959 3,112
16,488 7,353

Leasing arrangements

Certain of the Group's machinery are leased out under

finance leases. All leases are denominated in HK$. The term

of finance leases entered into ranges from 1 month to 5 years

(2017

: 3.9 years to 5 years).
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23. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Amounts receivable under finance leases

23. MEHERWIEE)
BEHERRRESHE

Minimum Present value of

lease payments lease payments

BEHEEMRK HEMNRRE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—tF ZEB-NFE —ZT—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET FET FE&T

Not later than one year TER—F 8,042 3,468 6,959 3,112
Later than one year and not ~ EBER—FETNERAF

later than five years 10,226 4,518 9,529 4,241

18,268 7,986 16,488 7,353

Less: unearned finance income & : AR BRERHIEEE UL A (1,780) 633) N/ATER N/ATERB
Present value of minimum SEEKEENZRE

lease payments receivable 16,488 7,353 16,488 7,353

The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31
March 2018 range from 4.55% to 10.20% per annum (2017:

4.55% to 7.47% per annum).

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection with

finance lease arrangements or contingent lease arrangements

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=1+—B edEHEZER
MENFFEAS5%E1020%( ZFB—+ 4 :
FEASSBETLT%) °

RBEHR  ARBEYEEAREREL L
A E L P 2 RERFISREER T ARLRE -

of the Group that needed to be recorded as at the end of the

reporting period.
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24. DEPOSIT PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF A

25.

SUBSIDIARY

On 20 January 2018, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
acquire the entire share capital of 55 Mark Lane S.A R.L. (“55
Mark Lane”), a company incorporated under the laws of the
Grand Duchy of Luxembourg with limited liability, for a total
consideration of GBP 130,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,402,422,000) (the “55 Acquisition”). A
non-refundable deposit of GBP 12,770,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$137,761,000) was paid by the Group during
the year ended 31 March 2018. The details of the 55
Acquisition are set out in the circular issued by the Company
on 22 March 2018.

55 Mark Lane is holding a mixed-use property in London,
United Kingdom and the 55 Acquisition has been completed
on 12 April 2018.

The initial accounting for the 55 Acquisition is incomplete at
the time the consolidated financial statements of the

Company are authorised for issue.

4. WEEHEBRBARNETE

RZZE—N\F—A=Z+H REEHE—ZBEL
FEZARNEBEENS  UWEKE-HRBEERE
KA B &L 2 MK S &9 B BR A 755 Mark
Lane S.A R.L.([55 Mark Lane ) Fy 2B A -
# £ & A130,000,000% (5 B &
1,402,422,000%8 7T) ([55WEBEEE]) - HEZ
T N\F=ZA=+—HLFE AKEE I
AR 8 5] £12,770,000% (48 & B 4
137,761,000 7T) - BRASS MEFIEHFFIEH
RARRRZZE—N\F=A=Z+AMHED
LK o

55 Mark Lane B LB ml —HBEE A&
¥ SSlBEEEN-_Z—)/\FNA+-HR
W °

S5 B ERM YL RERARRERE M
RN HE T BB 1 RS2 RK ©

INVENTORIES 25. 78
2018 2017
ZEB-N\FE T —tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Consumables and others SHFEm M EAfh 6,433 3,895
Machinery A 559 1,203
Spare parts BEREH 1,333 815
Construction materials B 12,518 -
Men’s and women's apparels SRRE 2,033 2,832
22,876 8,745
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HtRBEMEE
Trade and interest receivables FEWERR R ER AR E
2018 2017
—e-N\EF Tt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT

Trade receivables from clients arising from LA TNIEBEE 2 B BUWEER

— construction machinery and sales of — SR N SRR
construction materials business HE X 81,595 74,261
— commodities and futures brokerage — EmkHERLD 321 6,029
— securities brokerage — BHELL 41,263 403
— retailing of men’s and women's apparels — BRLLZETE 97 4,614
Margin and other trade related deposits ATIA B EE 2 ERRE LS R
with brokers and financial institutions SRIMIEZRBSR
arising from Hih EERBIRS
— commodities brokerage — EmEs 2,435 14,208
— futures brokerage — HB&e 1,170 -
— securities brokerage — BALEAD = 156
126,881 99,671
Interest receivables in relation BB EBE B EIF R
to money lending business 50,276 47,674
177,157 147,345
As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group's trade and RZTE—NF=ZRA=1+—H ' FEBEREKER
interest receivables were receivables of HK$14,558,000 (2017: N FEUF B B 45 14,558,000 7T ( Z T —+4F -
HK$22,280,000) denominated in the currency other than the 22,280,000/ 70) HEWGRIE » THIASEE TR
functional currency of the respective group entities. MeeEEIAIN 2 BHEEHE -
The Group allows an average credit period of 0-30 days to its AN [H 55 Bl 1) 2 SE A 2 2 SR W R 8 FE T DA
trade customers arising from construction machinery and MBERTETEEHFNEFREFH0E30
sales of construction materials business and 0-90 days for HAROZENRNEEH MEFREZESR
retailing of men’s and women'’s apparels business. The credit A gREPNEAERRERPHNERSES
period provided to customers can be longer based on a AR ZBPER -

number of factors including the customer’s credit profile and
relationship with the customers.
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HbFEBEemMEE (B)
(continued)

Trade and interest receivables (continued) FEW AR I FE R B (48)
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables from T RS MR B R R R R H &
client arising from construction machinery and sales of KBARBREZETEXBEEZBKWES
construction materials and retailing of men’s and women's Rk (MR RS RIBRRAH 22
apparels business, net of allowance for bad and doubtful DT
debts, presented based on invoice dates at the end of the
reporting period:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
0-30 days 0-30H 37,852 44,968
31-90 days 31-90 H 20,408 21,286
91-180 days 91-180 H 8,059 5,728
181-365 days 181-365 H 13,496 3,541
Over 365 days HhiE 365 H 1,877 3,352
81,692 78,875
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the EERIEAHEFA - AEEFEEEEFE
potential customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by EEERBEFPATEERSE - EPHREN
customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed BEHEN  AEERERERERFEICE - &
regularly. The Group has policy for allowance of bad and DEREESZBIEHEBAREB O @K
doubtful debts which is based on an evaluation of the RERBOMTER 25 R EREBHEEE
collectability and aging analysis of accounts on every PREEFBEBGRR SR EEH 2 MRz o

individual trade debtor basis and on management’s judgment
including creditworthiness and the past collection history of

each customer.

172 Annual Report %%k 2017/18



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® £ X% E &£ EAHR A A)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)
Trade and interest receivables (continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivable balances were
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$43,840,000
(2017: HK$33,907,000) which were past due for which the
Group had not provided for allowance for bad and doubtful
debts. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no further provision is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these
receivables was 103 days (2017: 72 days).

Aging of trade receivables from clients arising from
construction machinery and sales of construction materials
and retailing of men’s and women’s apparels business which

are past due but not impaired:

6. HtRBERMEE (B)

FE W B R % R WL B (7))

AEBCEWNERAEHRDERLAREERAER
43,840,000/ 75( = Z — 4 : 33,907,000 7T)
ZIEMWER - HEEIH - MAKELAELER
BEREE BIRBATER  ARREERAE -
HRZEERNEEERTERESAET)
BESNWE B EHRE - At BERZS
EARELE — SR - AEEWERZS AR
FA ARG - ZERKRR 2 TR A
1038 (=ZZ—+F:728) °

AR R R B R R B R K
BTERBEE Y DBBERAET BIRES
B IR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

Overdue: B
1-90 days 1-90H 20,794 21,877
91-180 days 91-180 H 10,004 7,262
181-365 days 181-365 H 11,447 1,438
Over 365 days B8 365 H 1,595 3,330
43,840 33,907
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Trade and interest receivables (continued)

HttRBemEE (8)

FE U B R % PR WL B (78

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIBIRRELE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FE&T
At beginning of the year REF] 16,339 -
Impairment losses recognised ERREEE 921 -
Amount written-off as uncollectible PR 4 52 Y (3] 1 i 85 B0 5 58 (3,214) -
Recovery of bad debts Y [E] 4z AR (8,885) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries 10NN - 16,339
At end of the year REFK 5,161 16,339

For those commodities, futures and securities trading clients,
it normally takes two to three days to settle after trade date of
those transactions. These outstanding unsettled trades due

from clients are reported as trade receivables from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities, futures and securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their investments
to the Group for credit facilities for commodities, futures and

securities trading.

The settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing

houses are usually one to two days after the trade date.

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising from
the commodities, futures and securities brokerage business
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of directors, the
aging analysis does not provide additional value in view of
the nature of commodities, futures and securities dealing

business.
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)
Trade and interest receivables (continued)

Credit is extended to brokerage clients on a case-by-case
basis in accordance with the financial status of clients such as
their financial conditions, trading records, business profile
and collateral available to the Group. Clients trading in
commodities and futures and obtaining securities margin
financing from the Group are required to observe the Group's
margin policies. For commodities and futures, initial margins
are required before trading and thereafter clients are required
to keep the equity position at a prescribed maintenance

margin level.

Interest in relation to money lending business is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding (see note
27) and at effective interest rate applicable. Settlement of
interest receivables is in accordance with the terms stated in
agreements entered with its customers ranges from 1 month
to 6 months (2017: 1 month to 6 months).

As at 31 March 2018, HK$8,546,000 (2017: HK$8,389,000)
interest receivables in relation to money lending business was
past due of which HK$2,835,000 was settled up to the date of
report.

At 31 March 2018, the Group had determined approximately
HK$190,000 (2017: HK$1,211,000) of interest receivables as
together with their respective loan receivables of HK$321,000
(2017: HK$6,900,000) (note 27), individually impaired
respectively as the debtors were in financial difficulties.

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments

Other receivables and deposits comprise amounts receivable

from third parties and recoverable within one year.

Included in the Group’s other receivables, deposits and
prepayments are the funds deposits to financial institutions
for securities investment and trading of futures purposes of
HK$4,735,000 (2017: HK$44,985,000).

6. HtRBERMEE (B)

FE W B R % R WL B (7))

REEFPZEERAREEP ZWHIRE S
TUER  BEREPZMEIRR - XF0H
EBEARATER T AEE ZEME - LER
mMHEREENA R A A REERESFRES R
B2EPHABTARBZRESHE - LA
mEHEME REEMARBNVZRES -
HEREPZBRBRFERENRESKF

BEREEBZFEN2ENAEELSH(R
MiaE27) I A EERBBRAERFETE -
FEMA B IR IR R S ETRI L 2 R FTE
FUEAAZ6EA(ZZE—t&F  1EAAREA)
ZHIRAEE -

RZF-\F=A=+t—H BEREXHZ
FE Y2 F 58,546,000 (= T — £ F:
8,389,000/ 7T) L H - H 12,385,000 8 T E
EAmEAPOEH -

RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 BREBAMK
Mg ANEBBEET4190,0008 T (ZF—+
1,211,000 7T ) 2 JE ORI S 5 R E 321,000
BT (ZZ— 4 : 6,900,000/87T) 2 A REREK
B (ME27) BERIRE -

HttBWRE - fI € REANRE

H A EYRIB R ] & B IE U E =75 SRIA KT
R—FRREHFRIE

AEBZ A EKIE - 5l KRB ZIERE
TR TFEREBIEEFRERMEEERAR Y
& & 7] ©4,735000% w( = & — &£ F:
44,985,000 7T) °
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26. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS 26. HbFEBEemMEE (B)

(continued)

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
(continued)

Other receivables, deposit and prepayments of HK$1,440,000
(2017: HK$18,080,000) are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits

As at 31 March 2018, bank deposits amounting to
HK$19,627,000 (2017: HK$49,264,000) have been pledged to
banks as security, carrying effective interests range from 0.3%
to 0.52% (2017: range from 0.3% to 0.54%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with original maturity date less than
three months, carrying effective interest at 0.2% (2017: 1%)

per annum.

The bank balances and cash of HK$396,311,000 (2017:
HK$7,270,000) are denominated in currencies other than the

functional currency of the respective group entities.
Bank balances, trust and segregated accounts

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients” monies arising from its
normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as bank balances, trust and segregated
accounts under the current assets section of the consolidated
statement of financial position and recognised the
corresponding trade payables (note 31) to respective clients
on the grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation
of clients’ monies. The clients’ monies as bank balances, trust
and segregated accounts is restricted and governed by the
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules under the

Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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LOAN RECEIVABLES 27. BEWWERK
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERx FETT
Non-current: JEENER -
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables HEM - ERETEFERER
(Note) (PfH5E) 192,615 120,870
Unsecured and guaranteed, EEAREER
fixed-rate loan receivables FEU B E FIRE R 3,101 2,327
195,716 123,197
Current: BNER
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables B - EWETENERER
(Note) (BFaE) 362,004 507,480
Unsecured and guaranteed, BEEAREER
fixed-rate loan receivables JEUE EFIEER 168,281 157,913
530,285 665,393
726,001 788,590

Note: The loan receivables are secured by properties and equity
securities held by the borrowers.

Included in the Group's loan receivables are debtors, with carrying
amount of HK$86,520,000 (2017: HK$47,450,000) which are past due
at the reporting date. The loan receivables are secured by
properties and equity securities pledged to the Group. The Group
assessed the recoverability of these loan receivables and concluded
that the risk of non-recoverability of the amounts is minimum, and
no impairment is considered necessary except for HK$321,000
(2017: HK$6,900,000) of loan receivables which were individually
impaired during the year ended 31 March 2018 as the debtors were
in financial difficulties.

R

R EFABTRAST B Y KRR R o

REE 2 EWE B IEREE 486,520,000 7% 7T
(=T — 44 1 47,450,000870) 2 EWEETR - B
BRIERRE BB A - BKERUIERTA
SENYMERBRABLHEER - AEEFTEZS
FERERNARERE  TRAXSSETAK
EHRBBE  BREE—_T—-NF=ZA=1+—
B 14 A{E B (E 9 RE Y B 5K 321,000 4 7T (=
T — 4 1 6,900,000/ 70) 4 - HEEITRIE
I T B RAME S A B G A B R
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28. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

28. R—EBEQRAZRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Ik Sl S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cost of investment in an associate R—REE R EHIRE 2 KA 2,334 2,334
Share of post-acquisition loss and DiENEEEEREEE R
other comprehensive expense HEtEmAx (2,328) (1,567)
6 767
Principal
Country of  place of Proportion of ownership
Name of entity registration  business by the Group Principal activity
BEREEE =TS TEEXEMY FIEEMSEEELLS FEX®
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—tF
Fujian Province Qingliu County PRC PRC 49% 49%  Manufacturing and
Jiuli Youzhi Co., Limited s 2] trading of Camellia
("Jiuli Youzhi”)* Oleifea related
BEAFERBNFEAE products.
BRAR (AR HEREEBE
MHEER °
# One out of three directors of the entity is appointed by the Group. # RER-ZEFEP—RIEAAERZE-ESF

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has significant influence
over this entity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

28. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

On 27 May 2016, Hao Tian China acquired 49% of issued
equity interest of Jiuli Youzhi for a total consideration of
RMB2,009,000 (equivalent to HK$2,334,000).

Summarised financial information of material
associate

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's
associate is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the
associate's financial statements prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

8. R—HEBERATA 2RE(E)

RZE—A"FRA=+tH Z2RFEKEAN
FMAE 2 49% B B1TlRE BREAARE
2,009,000 7T (F2E 7 2,334,000 7T ) ©

ERBENTNUBENBE

ERAKEBENR cMBERNBEHS
T UTHBERBZHENREZ BB RE
EARE 2B L R R ERERAMIIRZ 28

2N EE MR ERNZSHRAMFHRRAR -

Jiuli Youzhi
NREE
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Current assets RENEE 7,011 6,771
Non-current assets EREEE 6,793 3,067
Current liabilities mEaE (13,792) (8,273)
Revenue WA 2,299 888
Loss and total comprehensive expense FANEEREZEMXEHE
for the year (1,569) (3,198)
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28. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 28. A—REHELATZ2RE(E)

Summarised financial information of material BEABEQATNUEERBE(B)
associate (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information EXHE S E R B BN AR A B TSR R N ER
to the carrying amount of the interest in the associate BB S AR ERREAEYRAT

recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Jiuli Youzhi
FuRI S B

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Net assets BEFE 12 1,565
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7N [# fr G R 25 2 51 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest AEE RS 2 RHE 6 767
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

B ISR M

—N\F=ZA=1t—HLLFE

29. HEEERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Investments held for trading include: HEEBERERRE
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, NEE LR RAES

at fair value /NS 1,258,195 1,237,200

Derivatives listed outside Hong Kong, REBRIN ETHHITETER
at fair value (Note) RN TFAE (5 51 3,808
1,258,246 1,241,008

Note: Amount represents the fair value of the Group’s outstanding
position of trading of futures related to commodities and currencies
as at 31 March 2018 and 2017.

Fair values of listed investments held for trading were based

on quoted market bid price in the active market.

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group's investments
held for trading, carrying amount of HK$628,580,000 (2017:
HK$675,501,000), HK$418,740,000 (2017: HK$459,380,000) and
HK$204,800,000 (2017: nil) (the “Pledged Shares”) are
pledged to secure banking facilities of HK$621,604,000 (2017:
HK$600,000,000) with a term of twelve months, the secured
notes and a securities margin loan respectively. The Pledged
Shares as security will be released upon the full repayment of
the loans. Details of the secured notes, the banking facilities
and the securities margin loan are disclosed in notes 32 and

34 respectively.

et : ZEBEAKEAR - \FR-_F—LF=A
=St -REBESREZAFRANEEEZA
FA -

FEEE FTRENDTEDREERTISH
mHEEARENE -

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 " st AKREEEFE
BEERE ZREEESD B/ 628,580,000 7 (=
T — £ 1 675,501,0007 7T ) * 418,740,000 7%
7t = T — + 4 :459,380,000/8 7T ) &
204,800,000 B L (ZZE—+F : ) 2B (1B
KRG ) B AR+ @A ZR1T
B & 621,604,000% w( = T — £ F:
600,000,000 70) * BEFREREFELFRES
B - EERERMDIERERENEFEHRESR
#EER - BEARERE  RITEERBEHFR
BEERZHFBDRIBERMFE32 &34 -

Annual Report %k 2017/18 181



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

30. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE 30. EWHKE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Consideration receivable in respect of: EWERBATIEE ZRE :
Menggang Group Disposal SEREEHESRR 24,980 67,680

On 7 September 2011, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party not
connected with the Group, Inner-Mongolia Shuangxin
Resources Group Co., Ltd. (the “Purchaser”). Pursuant to this
sale and purchase agreement, the Group agreed to dispose
of Wuhai City Menggang Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Menggang
Group”) (the “Menggang Group Disposal”), which operated
the Group's coal mines in the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous
Region in the PRC (the “Inner-Mongolia Coal Mining
Operation”), for a cash consideration of RMB1,503,000,000
("Total Consideration”). The Menggang Group Disposal was
completed on 30 May 2012. The Total Consideration shall be
satisfied by four installments: RMB781,560,000 by completion;
RMB420,840,000 by 90 days subsequent to the completion;
RMB225,450,000 by 180 days subsequent to the completion
and the remaining RMB75,150,000 by fifteen months
subsequent to the completion. On 19 November 2012, the
Group and the Purchaser entered into a supplemental
agreement in relation to the Menggang Group Disposal,
pursuant to which the Group and the Purchaser agreed to
reduce the Total Consideration by RMB75,000,000. Such
reduction shall be settled by deducting the third installment
by RMB40,000,000 and deducting the final installment by
RMB35,000,000.
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RZT——FNA+H AEEHE-—FZHEARE
Bl EEE s B E - ARRaEMEREE
BRABTEADIVEE S - RENESE
ek - AEEEE AR 1,503,000,000 T2
AeRE(EREDLESEMEERERR
RNEREMBAR (5 [SEEE]) ((KBE
BHESE))  SEEELEAEENTER
ShEsRsEE((RRHEREE]) - 58
SEHEEEHER -Z—ZFRA=-THRE
B o BRERESNED BNRZN : REX
A JE S A5 AR 781,560,000 7T ¢ #4 52 X 18 90
A A2 A B # 420,840,000 7T ¢ R 5EA 14 180
H A AR 225,450,000 7T R ek 8 +
BAARZ T2 AR 75,150,000 ° R =
T——F+—A+hB FEEHEEFEIL—
NEBESESEEHESFE BRhE - Bt
AEEHEFREBEAREBERIARE
75,000,0007C ° BB #HEBIRME =25
HA 3R A R 540,000,000 7T &2 FR B 15 — £
ERfSF 3R R # 35,000,000 TLIE S ©
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30. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued)

On 6 December 2012, the Purchaser received a notice (the
“"Notice”) from the tax bureau of Wuhai City Hainan District
in the Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region (the “Tax
Bureau”), pursuant to which, the Tax Bureau requested the
Purchaser to withhold additional business tax of RMB80
million. The directors of the Company are of the view that
such additional business tax is not applicable to this
transaction. Hence the Group negotiated with the Tax Bureau
and finally the Tax Bureau revoked the Notice on 3 April 2013.
However, the Purchaser continues to withhold this RMB80

million.

On 16 May 2013, an arbitration (the “First Arbitration”) was
filed by the Group to China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission (the “Commission”) to claim this
unsettled amount. On 8 August 2013, the Purchaser provided
its written defence to the Commission and argued that the
Notice issued by the Tax Bureau did not clearly state that
additional business tax is not applicable to this transaction
and the Tax Bureau’s revocation of the Notice could not
remove the obligation for the Purchaser to withhold and pay

the additional business tax.

On 30 August 2013, the final installment of the Total
Consideration, RMB40,150,000 has been due. On 8 October
2013, the Purchaser filed a counter arbitration (the
“Counterclaim”) request to the Commission and claimed that
the Group had failed to fulfil certain terms and obligations in
accordance with the sale and purchase agreement. Due to
this non-compliance, the Purchaser has to incur additional
costs before the Menggang Group's coal mines could be put
into operations. Therefore, the Purchaser withheld the final
installment of the Total Consideration and claimed an
aggregate compensation amount of approximately RMB65

million (approximately equivalent to HK$82 million).

On 13 January 2014, the Group filed another arbitration to
the Commission to claim the unsettled final installment (the
“Second Arbitration”).

30.

FEW B (%8)

R-ZE-—"F+-ARB BEFBEREHER
BSETEMEMEER(HRER]) XEBM
(TZB@A]) - Bk - B RERE TR
&2 AR 80,000,0007C © RARIEERR
ERBENEEBRL NERRARS - Al - &
SEHERFERETHE ERERAR_F
—=FMA = BREEZEM - AT B ME
TEHNZZE A K% 80,000,000 7T ©

RZZE-—=FAAtXB  AEEZAPEEH
BREEESHEEZES(ZEE D REME
(TERFE])  AROZERENSE - R
Z—=F/\ANB BEFCRZEeRHES
E R ERE B 2 2B AL &SRS
TRMNEERE TERARARZ S - MR BHE
B A TR R BT TR R SRR IME R
ZEE-

RZE—=FNA=1+H BREZZE £
o B A R % 40,150,000 T Bl Hl e A =&

—=F+ANB  BIRZEGRERMHE
F((REED WEBAEEAREREE S HE
BIETBRRREML AREAERNEE
BAREAEE 2 BREIIRAZBRITETE
EFBINKA - Bt - EFMPRREZHE—
E0HNARTREBEEBLENARE
65,000,000 7T (18 7 4982,000,000 /& 7T ) °

RZZE—NFE-—A+=H AEEBRANEE
SREMHERERENKE—FLHAKT=
RIBE) -
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CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued)

On 27 June 2014, the decision of the First Arbitration was
concluded by the Commission. The decision is in favour of
the Group and the Commission ordered the Purchaser to
settle the unsettled portion of the third installment of RMB80
million and dismissed the Counterclaim. The Purchaser,
however, filed a litigation to the Beijing Second Intermediate
People’s Court (the “Beijing Court”) to request the Beijing
Court to set aside the decision made in the First Arbitration

and applied to temporarily suspend the Second Arbitration.

On 22 September 2014, the Purchaser revoked its request

about the temporarily suspension of the Second Arbitration.

On 23 October 2014, the Group requested the Commission
to re-open the Second Arbitration. On 18 December 2014,
the Beijing Court rejected the request from the Purchaser to

set aside the decision made in the First Arbitration.

On 6 February 2015, the Group has submitted a mandatory
enforcement application to Ordos Intermediate People’s
Court (the "Ordos Court”) to execute the decision of the
First Arbitration (the “First Execution”), which requires the
Purchaser to settle the remaining portion of the third
installment of RMB80 million. On 22 September 2015, RMB20
million (approximately HK$24,358,000) as part of unsettled

portion of the third installment was received by the Group.

On 22 March 2016, the Purchaser applied to the Mongolia
Autonomous Regional Higher People’s Court (“Inner-
Mongolia Court”) to temporarily suspend the First Execution
and the decision of the Inner-Mongolia Court is in favour of

the Purchaser. The First Execution is temporarily suspended.
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30. CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued) 30. ERRE(E)

On 30 March 2016, the Group filed an appeal to the Inner-
Mongolia Court and requested to set aside the decision on
temporarily suspending the First Execution. The appeal was
dismissed on 5 May 2016. As a result of the suspension of
execution, the execution procedures for enforcing the court
order for the remaining RMB640,000,000 unsettled portion of
the third installment are yet to take effect. According to
opinion by the Group’s legal counsel, it is anticipated that
enforcement of execution may be able to be resumed
following final resolution of the New Civil Claim (as defined

below).

On 3 August 2015, the decision of the Second Arbitration was
made by the Commission. The decision is in favour of the
Group and the Commission ordered the Purchaser to settle
the unsettled final installment of RMB40 million. On 8
September 2015, the Group has submitted a mandatory
enforcement to Ordos Court to execute the decision of the

Second Arbitration (the “Second Execution”).

Following the Second Execution, on 29 December 2015, the
Purchaser settled the final installment of RMB40 million and
withheld the Enterprise Income Tax of RMB10 million, which
previously the Group provided and included in tax payable.
Net cash inflow from this settlement was RMB30 million
(approximately HK$36,027,000). Overdue interests, penalty
and relevant arbitration expenses of RMB4,115,000
(approximately HK$4,896,000) were received by the Group
from the Purchaser and were recognised as other income
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

On 21 August 2014, the Purchaser, however, filed a litigation
(the “New Civil Claim”) to the Inner-Mongolia Court and
claimed for an aggregate amount of approximately RMB103
million (approximately HK$131 million), based on similar facts
under the Counterclaim. On é February 2015, the Group
received a writ of summons from the Inner-Mongolia Court
regarding this litigation dated 29 December 2014. On 8 May
2015, the Group submitted an application of objection to the
jurisdiction at the Inner-Mongolia Court (the “Objection”).

RZZE-—XREZA=+H AEBERARTE
FriRh B3 - EXBBEEEYEERNTEZ
Hiko PR ZZT—"FRAARBAWEKE - A
REENT  NITHEBE=Z5 BNHB TR
LHEE I AR 60,000,000 7T 2 AR ES 2
TREFHAESR - REAEEEZERZE
B BE AT URERTRERE(EER
T ZEEEFIRBEABERAT -

RZZE—RAFNA=ZB  ZESBHELZRMH
ﬁZﬁﬁ éﬁaﬁmﬁil%ﬁ NIA=3=s)
YN AERZEZE -ESHNFRARE
40,000,0007T e RZZE—RHFNLANA * K&
BB RSP % AT AR R — 1D 3 ST T FR FB LA
PWIT R E 2 EA(TZRBITE]D -

T-HFE+=A=1+h
EvEE%E é HOoOBHNRARE
40,000,000 W FE M B E M E MR AR K
mmmmmﬂﬁ%mmK%lﬁkﬂﬁA%H
MIEA) - RAMBEZRERANFEAARE
30,000,000 7T ( #936,027,000 7T ) » B = =

—RNFE=ZA=F+—HILFE - i%ﬂg~§
K8 B R X AR #4,115,000 7T (
4,896,000/ 7T ) AL B B B 77 W HLIE #E R
HAgA -

#)
Y]

R RZZE—MENA=-+—8B  EARAA
SR ERR ((HRBRE D) RERKRR
BzHEUEERRBIATEL AR 103,000,000 7T
(#7131,000,000 L) s RZZET—RHF AKX
B AEERIIASGEBRZFRZ B
BZE—NFF+ZAZFTNAZFARK - R
T-RAFAANA  AEERRAS HERRE
EEREFRE(RR]D -
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30.

CONSIDERATION RECEIVABLE (continued)

On 2 June 2015, the Inner-Mongolia Court dismissed the
Group's Objection. On 7 August 2015, the Group filed an
appeal to the Inner-Mongolia Court and reaffirmed its
Objection. On 25 December 2015, the Inner-Mongolia Court
dismissed the Group’s Objection. The Inner-Mongolia Court
commenced the hearing of the New Civil Claim case on 13
April 2016 and completed on 20 June 2016. On 7 July 2017,
the Inner Mongolia Court dismissed all claims submitted by

the Purchaser against the Group under the New Civil Claim.

On 15 September 2017, the Purchaser appealed the Inner
Mongolia Court’s decision on the New Civil Claim to the
Supreme Peoples’ Court of the PRC and the appeal is being
reviewed by a collegiate panel convened by the Supreme
People’s Court. On 12 January 2018, the Group successfully
obtained the judgment of the Inner-Mongolia Autonomous
Regional Higher People’s Court ordering that the suspension
of First Execution be lifted.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, RMB40,000,000 was
received by the Company under the First Execution. As at 31
March 2018, the remaining unsettled consideration of
RMB20,000,000 (or equivalent to HK$24,980,000) (2017:
HK$67,680,000) was included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as consideration receivable.

In view of the Notice having been revoked by the Tax Bureau,
the decision of the First Arbitration, Second Arbitration, the
Beijing Court and the Inner Mongolia Court, the directors of
the Company considered that the Group had fully complied
with the terms of the sale and purchase agreement. After
taking legal advice, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group has a meritorious ground on the
arbitration and litigation, so the risk of not able to recover the
amount is minimal, and no impairment loss is required as at
31 March 2018.
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OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 31. HttEema s
Trade payables FEA BR X
2018 2017
—E-N\E —IZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Margin and other deposits payable to Em - HEREFELEEY
clients arising from commodities, EREFZRES REMES
futures and securities brokerage 11,754 48,470
Trade payables to brokers and clearing o PEMBFELEEZ
houses arising from commodities, JET 4t A E FTER R
futures and securities brokerage 42,092 1,303
Trade payables arising from construction R KRR E EREE
machinery and sales of Z FERTERR
construction materials 21,980 8,050
Trade payables arising from men’s and SRRICEES 2 ENER
women's apparel 808 3,567
76,634 61,390

The settlement terms of payable to brokers, clearing houses
and securities trading clients from the ordinary course of
business of brokerage in securities range from two to three
days after the trade date of those transactions. Margin and
other deposits received from clients for their trading of

commodities and futures contracts were payable on demand.

Trade payables arising from construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business and men’s and women's
apparel principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases. The normal credit period taken for trade purchases
is 0-45 days.

RIBFATESELEGELZBRNER  #E
kEERAFZEPERANBERRBZER
SHEMAZE=A -MEmEAEEHNEE
ZEPYBzREEZ REMREANTPER

RHEE

X

AW M ZEMHHERBURIBERLEK
ELZRNERIECRESIBEZHREERE
HE-BEHBEZ - REEHR/OE4L5H -
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31. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES . HitRseme s (&)

(continued)
Trade payables (continued)

An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables arising from
construction machinery and sales of construction materials
business and men'’s and women'’s apparel business at the end

of the reporting period presented based on the invoice dates

P R (4

REB NI E IR B R M2 MR HE
EBARBRRZEEHELE Z EARRIBE
BHEAMZIZ KRBT

is as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
0-30 days 0-30H 17,188 7,338
31-60 days 31-60H 2,698 2,383
61-180 days 61-180 H 1,987 1,274
181-365 days 181-365H 769 177
Over 365 days iR 365 H 146 445
22,788 11,617
The trade payables of HK$19,005,000 (2017: HK$21,290,000) fE 1 BR 319,005,000 ;o — & — + F:

are denominated in currencies other than the functional

currency of the respective group entities.
Other payables, deposits received and accruals

Other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for

ongoing costs.

Included in the Group's other payables, deposits received
and accruals are other payables of HK$7,275,000 (2017:
HK$702,000) denominated in the currency other than the

functional currency of the respective group entities.
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32. SECURED NOTES

32. REAR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERx FE&T

Non-current: JEENER :
— SN3 Notes (note ¢) — B=MAEEFERE (HEc) 350,000 -

Current: BPER -

— SN1 Notes (note a) — B—HEERER (Hita) = 150,331
— SN2 Notes (note b) — B AERFEE (WHiEb) 155,840 -
155,840 150,331
505,840 150,331

Notes:

On 6 July 2015, the Group entered into a subscription agreement
(the “SN1 Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third
party (the “SN1 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the SN1 Subscription
Agreement, the Group agreed to issue and the SN1 Subscriber
agreed to subscribe for notes (the “SN1 Notes”) in the aggregate
principal amount of up to US$30,000,000 (or approximately
HK$232,499,000). The maturity date of the SN1 Notes is two years
after the issue date. The SN1 Notes bear fixed coupon rate at 9%
per annum. As at 31 March 2017, the SN1 Notes were secured by
certain of the Group's investments held for trading with fair value of
HK$459,380,000. During the year ended 31 March 2018, the pledge
was released after the Group fully redeemed the SN1 Notes.

Pursuant to the SN1 Subscription Agreement, the SN1 Subscriber
had the right to request the Group to redeem the SN1 Notes in
whole or in part at the sum of (a) the principal amount outstanding
on the SN1 Notes; (b) the outstanding interest up to the date of
redemption; (c) any default interest; and (d) any other outstanding
amount due but unpaid under that SN1 Notes at any time but no
later than 45 days before maturity. Hence, the SN1 Notes were
recognised as current liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

BiRE

RZZE—RAFLANE  AEEHR-LBHIUE=
FE—OEEREZBRBADITURERZ
((HE-—0DHEERERIABHR) - REFZ—0HH
BEHEZERE RS A AEEREHTME—HE
ERZERABARNERBACBLERS A
30,000,000 3= 7T ( 3% #9232,499,00078 7T ) 2 Z #
([F—0REEREE]) F—MHERREREZE
HBERBTHEEMT - E—HBEAZRLE
FoOBEEEMAERAL - RZT—+F=A
=t—8 E-NEEARESBINAEE QT
8 7%3459,380,0008 T 2 & TRIFEBER E K
W-BE_Z-\E=ZA=Z+—RALLEE  RA
SEERRELE—HBERFZRE  EIFS R
[Sé&\o

BREE-NAERRERBEGE  F—HHER
EEREARRERAEERERETNGENEL
HA+RRR@QF-HEEAREZ HAREE
e D EEBEE AP HAREENS (@
EAMHBRAE  RAOEB-—NAERZRBRTEH
BAXMNZEAEMHREESE I ANED S
MRAOF—DAERRE - Bt F—HAE
REBEREAFBIRRBR AL RE BE T AR

&
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o ©
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32. SECURED NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

As part of the SN1 Subscription Agreement, the Group entered
into a call option deed (the "CSFG Call Option Deed”) and a
warrant agreement (the “HTF Warrant Agreement”) with the SN1
Subscriber. Pursuant to the CSFG Call Option Deed, the SN1
Subscriber was granted a right to purchase up to 80,729,170 shares
of CSFG at an exercise price of HK$1.44 per share (the “"CSFG
Option”). The SN1 Subscriber was entitled to exercise the option
at any time before 14 July 2018.

Pursuant to the HTF Warrant Agreement, the SN1 Subscriber was
granted a right to subscribe in aggregate up to a maximum amount
of US$15,000,000 worth of the shares of Hao Tian Finance (the "HTF
Warrants”) in the period from the grant date of the HTF Warrants
until three years after such grant. The exercise price will be
determined (i) if the HTF Warrants are exercised before the
consolidated audited accounts of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2017 are delivered by the Group, the net assets value per
Hao Tian Finance share as at 31 March 2016; or (ii) if the HTF
Warrants are exercised after the consolidated audited accounts of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are delivered by the
Group, the lower of (a) the net assets value per Hao Tian Finance
share as at 31 March 2016; or (b) net assets value per Hao Tian
Finance share as at 31 March 2017.

As at date of issue, the fair value of the SN1 Notes, the CSFG
Option and the HTF Warrants were HK$188,198,000, HK$24,253,000
and HK$20,048,000 respectively.

The SN1 Notes represented the present value of the contractually
determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the rate of
interests, on initial recognition, of instruments of comparable credit
status and providing substantially the same cash flows, on the same
terms, but without the CSFG Option and the HTF Warrants. The
effective interest rate of the SN1 Notes was 21.157% per annum.
The SN1 Notes also included the value of the early repayment
option as the option was closely related to the host debt
instrument. The SN1 Notes were classified as financial liabilities as
defined under HKAS 39 and were carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at amortised cost in accordance with
HKAS 39.
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32. FERRE(BE)
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(a)
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RRE-NAEERRERBHA LD AEH
BHE B ERRERE AL RERREZE
(THhELREREBRRBNERE ) LRRER
e ([ RREBRRERHE]) o BIEPELR
CREERBEIERE  F-OEEREERRE
ABRRERTEESR 1 M4ETBEDBEILERES
RSB 2 &% 80,729,170 Ay ([ EIIL R &/
EEBED  FEHAEARBREAGEN
T N\FL A+ B AERIRREITE R -

REBEZRUBRBREE RS £ HBEERRRE
REARBRERBRESRYBREEE 2 B
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{15,000,000% 70 2 2RI BB ([ RRE R
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32. SECURED NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The CSFG Option and the HTF Warrants were carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position as financial liabilities at
FVTPL. The fair values of the CSFG Option and the HTF Warrants
were detailed in note 20(ii).

During the year ended 31 March 2018, an imputed interest on the
SN1 Notes of HK$3,700,000 (2017: HK$21,791,000) was recognised
as finance costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the SN1 Notes with the
carrying value of HK$154,608,000 (2017: HK$74,534,000) were
redeemed at the principal amount of HK$155,308,000 (2017:
HK$77,493,000). Loss on early redemption of secured notes of
approximately HK$700,000 (2017: HK$2,959,000) was charged to
profit or loss.

On 10 October 2017, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement (the "SN2 Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “SN2 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the
SN2 Subscription Agreement, the Group agreed to issue and the
SN2 Subscriber agreed to subscribe for notes (the “SN2 Notes”) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to US$$20,000,000 (or
approximately HK$155,840,000). The maturity date of the SN2
Notes is one year after the issue date. The SN2 Notes bears fixed
coupon rate at 8% per annum. As at 31 March 2018, the SN2 Notes
is secured by certain of the Group's investments held for trading
and available-for-sale investments with fair value of HK$418,740,000
and HK$58,878,000.

The SN2 Notes is classified as financial liabilities as defined under
HKAS 39 and is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at amortised cost in accordance with HKAS 39.

32. FERRE(BE)

BE - ()

(a)

(#&)

TEIR S RSB N R R B RBREEAR
FEFAEEZ ARG ERAERGETT
RRBEAFIER - PRILREMEBSRERER
BT RR R HE 2 X B A AR B 3E 20() ©

BHE-_Z-N\E=ZA=t+—HULEE £
HAZEE 2 (HEF 2 3,700,000/8 T (—F—+H4F -
21,791,000 7C) ERERE B R EM 2 E KGR

HE-_Z—)\F=ZA=+—RHULtFE FEEA
154,608,000 7T ( =& — 4 : 74,534,000/ 7T)
HE— (A RIRERD RS 5 A 155,308,000
(=T —+ 4 : 77,493,000 7T) B A - {2 A1HE
oA A EZ 518 47700,000/8 T (T —+H4F -
2,959,000 7T) BEt A ©

R-TB—+F+A+H AEEE—ZBIFE=
FIE—RERFREBIABADT IRE RS
(HE-OHEREZBIABHR) - REFZ-0OFH
BHEZERERS  ARBREFTME_HNE
EAZERABARNERBACBLERS A
20,000,000 3= JT ( Bk #7155,840,0007% T ) 2 2 #&
(B EERER]) - E_NEERZEZE
HARBTHEE T - E_HBERAZRLE
Fep v EEEEAEFE - R=ZT—N\F=A
=t—H8 FZOHEERBREBUAERQNFED
71l & 418,740,000 7% 7T & 58,878,000 7T 2 & T 1
EEBIRE R SR EEER -

E_HRERRBESRRET BRI ERIE 395 E

TEEZCRARE TREFERAEREINR
RESHK AR B B BIOR RR AFIER -
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32. SECURED NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

On 10 January 2018, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement (the "SN3 Subscription Agreement”) with an
independent third party (the “SN3 Subscriber”). Pursuant to the
SN3 Subscription Agreement, the Group agreed to issue and the
SN3 Subscriber agreed to subscribe for notes (the “SN3 Notes”) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$350,000,000. The
maturity date of the SN3 Notes is five years after the issue date
without repayable on demand clause. The SN3 Notes bears fixed
coupon rate at 9.75% per annum. As at 31 March 2018, the SN3
Notes is secured by the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary
of the Company.

Pursuant to the terms of SN3 Subscription Agreement, the Group
may redeem the SN3 Notes within five years from the issue date.
The redemption amount of the SN3 Notes will be: i) 103% of the
principal amount if the redemption is made on the date falling the
first anniversary of the issue date; ii) 106.35% of the principal
amount if the redemption is made on the date falling the second
anniversary of the issue date; iii) 110.15% of the principal amount if
the redemption is made on the date falling the third anniversary of
the issue date; iv) 114.35% of the principal amount if the
redemption is made on the date falling the fourth anniversary of
the issue date; and v) 119.1% of the principal amount if the
redemption is made on the date falling the fifth anniversary of the
issue date.

The effective interest rate of SN3 Notes is 12.68% per annum.
The SN3 Notes is classified as financial liabilities as defined under

HKAS 39 and is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at amortised cost in accordance with HKAS 39.
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33. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets

33. EEBEEERAE

RAFEARERNETEZRLEHA(AE) EBER

recognised and movement thereon during the current year: HEEBIMT
Fair value
adjustment
on property,
plant and
equipment
Fair value and
change of intangible
Accelerated investments assets on
tax held for acquisition of
depreciation Tax losses trading  subsidiaries Total
RUEE
Wi A R B
M - BE
BE  RREUR
I BEEREr HBREEZ
BERE BEEE AVESH 2 ATEHAER ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FHET FHT
At 1 April 2016 R-ZZE—RFMA—H - - (567,335) - (567,335)
Acquisition of subsidiaries s s O 8 2 R) (Fft 2 41)
(note 41) (29,393) 5,080 - (52,554) (76,867)
(Charge) credit to profit KBz (k) E R
or loss (note 10) (MfzE10) (1,388) 1,284 516,310 - 516,206
At 31 March 2017 RZT—+tF
—g=+-g (30,781) 6,364 (51,025) (52,554) (127,996)
Credit (charge) to profit RiE=ER (0kR)
or loss (note 10) (FEE10) 2,023 (1,586) 21,253 5,129 26,819
At 31 March 2018 RZZ2—N\F
=A=1+—8H (28,758) 4,778 (29,772) (47,425) (101,177)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

TR BmEM S 2 BERBRENN

2018 2017

—B-N\F T tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

F@xT FHET

Deferred tax assets EEFIBE B 4,743 6,364
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE (105,920) (134,360)
(101,177) (127,996)
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34. BORROWINGS 34. BE&
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank overdrafts — secured (note a) RITBES — B (Kisxa) = 19,825
Bank loans — secured (note b) SRITER — BT (Mistb) 394,355 373,085
Corporate bonds and notes — unsecured hEEFLRER — BEH
(note c) (fizEc) 162,550 164,550
Securities margin loans — secured (note d)  FHRFSER — BT () 148,000 320,412
Other borrowings — secured (note e) Hintg & — HHEM (fite) 108,680 61,147
Other borrowings — unsecured (note f) Hihfgs — mEm () 40,000 -
853,585 939,019
Carrying amounts repayable JEBEZ BRE SR
(based on the scheduled repayment (WBIEETWEHATE 2
dates set out in loan agreements): TEEEEBE) -
Within one year —F 7R 547,685 688,971
More than one year but not exceeding BB —FERBBRE
two years 57,355 34,790
More than two years but not exceeding HAMFERBETLF
five years 244,776 170,666
More than five years BRI F 3,769 44,592
853,585 939,019
Less: Amounts due within one year D A il
shown under current liabilities: MEAE S :
— the carrying amounts of bank loans — M BRI 2SR TR
that contain a repayment on ZRITERZEETRE
demand clause (shown under B RiEaE) -
current liabilities) but repayable: MEZBR AT B BBEE -
Within one year —FZN 508,163 642,185
More than one year but not HBIR—FERBBMF
exceeding two years 18,220 11,509
More than two years but not R ERBRTE
exceeding five years 36,906 27,910
More than five years HBimnF 3,769 14,592
567,058 696,196
— carrying amounts due within — WM B RRER
one year without repayable BRIGER 2N —F
on demand clause Z AR BRE TR 39,522 46,786
606,580 742,982
Amounts shown under non-current liabilities 5| A3ER B & &2 &% 247,005 196,037
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34. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 March 2017, the bank overdrafts were secured by pledged
bank deposits of HK$20,231,000. The bank overdrafts carried
floating rates of Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR")
plus 1% or 1% per annum below prime rate, i.e. effective interest
rate of 2.43% to 4% per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's bank borrowings approximately
of HK$20,000,000 (2017: HK$20,000,000) were secured by pledged
bank deposits of HK$15,000,000 (2017: HK$15,000,000). The bank
borrowings carried floating rates of prime rate plus 1% (2017: 1%)
per annum, i.e. effective interest of 6% (2017: 6%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's bank loans and other banking
facilities approximately of HK$56,590,000 (2017: HK$91,085,000)
were secured by leasehold land and building of HK$6,296,000
(2017: HK$6,316,000) and pledged bank deposits of HK$4,627,000
(2017: HK$4,603,000). The bank borrowings carried floating rates
ranged from 3.5% to 4.88% (2017: 3% to 5.59%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's bank borrowings approximately
of HK$70,000,000 (2017: HK$70,000,000) were secured by the
Group's investments held for trading of HK$270,000,000 (2017:
HK$297,000,000). The bank borrowings carried fixed rates of 6.5%
(2017: 6.5%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's bank borrowing approximately of
HK$247,765,000 (2017: nil) was secured by the Group's investments
held for trading and available-for-sale investments of HK$358,580,000
and HK$405,098,680. The bank borrowing carried interest at HIBOR
plus 5.6% per annum.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's bank borrowings approximately
of HK$50,000,000 were secured by pledged bank deposits of
HK$9,430,000, available-for-sale investments of HK$71,500,000 and
investments held for trading of HK$1,472,000. The bank borrowings
carried floating rates of HIBOR plus 2.7% per annum, i.e. effective
interest of 3.11% per annum.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group's bank borrowings of
HK$142,000,000 were secured by certain assets of the Group,
including the Group's available-for-sale investments of
HK$64,766,000, investments held for trading of HK$377,029,000,
and the entire issued share capital of the Group's subsidiaries, Hao
Tian Finance and Guo Guang Limited. The bank borrowings carry
floating rates of HIBOR plus 2.7% per annum, i.e. effective interest
of 3.76% per annum.

34. EE(E)

GER

RZB—LF=RA=+—0 RITEXTHEE
#RER 71378 20,231,000 8 TTAEHE IR o $R1THE X IA
FHREZFERTAZERE((BBRITEER
B IM%HREBEFFN LR 1%HE - IR
BRRREF243% 2 4% °

R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—8  AEENRTEES
#720,000,000 7% 7T (== —+4 : 20,000,000 7T)
LA 3SR 1717 51 15,000,000 7 ( Z T —+4F -
15,000,000/ 70 ) {EHE 1  SRITEELLUFBIFIXR G
FIREEBEFNEIMN%BTE - MERFEETFS
(ZT—+LF 1 6%) °

R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 AEENRTER
o EAh 3R 1T B & 4956,590,000/8 7T ( — T —+4F ¢
91,085,000 7t ) LA & £ Hb [z 1 5 6,296,000 7
(=T —+£%F 1 6,316,000 70) & B KFRITIF
304,627,000 7T (2017 & : 4,603,000 7T ) 1K
1 o SRITIEE ORI ARG FIR35% E4.88% (=
T+ 3% E559%)5HE °

RZZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 ANEENRITEE
#970,000,000 % 7t.( ==& —+4F : 70,000,000 % 7T)
AR B #EE T84 270,000,000 (=%
—-+4F 1 297,000,000 7T ) EHL 1 o SRITIE B BA
BEEMEGFL65% (T —+F : 65%)5t 8 °

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 AEENRITEE
#9247,765,0008TT (ZF—tF &) UAEEE
1B B 1% & 358,580,00078 7T & A it £ 18 &
405,098,680 A TLIEIR I - SRITIE BT IREBE
TTRIZEFRBEIM5.6%FTE ©

RZZ—+F=A=+—8 AEENRITEE
#950,000,000 7 7T LA B 3K #7 R 17 17 5% 9,430,000 7
JC ~ A &84 71,500,000 7T R iE B B IR
& 1,472,000 B TCIERIR - SRITHEBENFBFIRE
FRBBRTRERBSN27%:E - EEF
KAEFGF3IN% -

R-B—tF=ZA=1+—0 ARENRTEE
142,000,000/ TLAAR R EE TEEFEEMR - EH
EFEAR S B ] gt B4R K 64,766,000/ 7T © F{E
B EIRE 377,029,000 B T RAEEMMBARZR
BB REXERATNZHEHTRA - RITEE
R B H R GFIREBRITRAERSN27%5
B BEBRMNEKSEF376%
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34. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

The borrowings are unsecured, carried fixed rate ranges from 3.25%
to 7.5% per annum (2017: 2.25% to 7.5% per annum) and will
mature in year 2018 to 2023 (2017: year 2017 to 2023).

As at 31 March 2018, amount represented loan facilities received
from securities broking house and were secured by investments
held for trading of HK$204,800,000. The entire loans were
repayable on demand and carried fixed interest rate of 3.75% per

annum.

As at 31 March 2017, 750,000,000 shares of Hao Tian International
Construction held by the Group were pledged to a securities
broking house. The entire loans were repayable on demand and
carried fixed interest rate of 8% per annum. The pledge was
released during the year ended 31 March 2018.

It is the Group policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles and
machinery under financing arrangement. The Group entered into
financing arrangement with several financial institutions, pursuant
to which the Group transferred the legal title of certain machinery
of the Group to these financial institutions at net consideration of
HK$87,817,000 (2017: HK$46,551,000). The Group is obligated to
pay monthly instalments in accordance with respective agreements.
Upon the maturity of the lease, the Group is entitled to purchase
back the machinery at cash considerations in accordance with
respective agreements which are expected lower than the market
values of respective machinery. Despite the fact that the
arrangement involves a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted
for the arrangement as a collateralised borrowing at amortised cost
using effective interest method, in accordance with the substance
of the arrangement.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

34. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(e)

(continued)

The lease terms range from 3 to 5 years (2017: 3 to 5 years) under
sale and leaseback arrangement. Interest rates underlying all
arrangements are either fixed ranging from 7.14% to 11.97% per
annum (2017: ranging from 7.50% to 11.97% per annum) or variable
ranging from 5.49% to 9.82% per annum (2017: ranging from 6.69%
to 9.65% per annum) at respective contract dates. None of the
leases include contingent rentals.

34. EE(E)

BeE - ()

(e)

(&)

BIEERAERZH  AENTIESFE(ZT—+
F3ESF) - IAABALTHNFERESEHA
HEE  FMRATI4%E1NI7% (T —+F ¢
FHIET 50%E11.97%) S AFFI%E5.49% £ 9.82%
T FRR669%E9.65%) - HEHT
BRELAES -

Present value of minimum
lease payments

BREHENRRE
2018 2017
e —E—t5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Principal amount: REEE
Within one year —F27R 42,399 27,660
Within a period of more than one year but BB FERBERE
not more than two years 34,513 15,731
Within a period of more than two years but B A RBB RS
not more than five years 31,768 17,756
108,680 61,147
Less: Amount due for settlement within T B A REIEREE
12 months (shown under WFIB G AEREERE)
current liabilities) (56,675) (27,660)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months R+ 8 A& BB E H IR 52,005 33,487
Other borrowings are effectively secured by the underlying assets HibtE B hAEME E 165,787,000 T (=T —+
of HK$165,787,000 (2017: HK$107,057,000) as the rights to the £ 1 107,057,000 7T ) 1EB ZUE IR -+ 1t Ty B A
leased assets would be reverted to the lessor in the event of default EAEEERET  AHEEEENENSERT
by repayment by the Group. HHEA -
Amount represents a borrowing from a director of a subsidiary of 6] SHEAREANAMBARIEENERE - BESE
the Company. The borrowing carried a fixed interest of 2% per FIREFENE 2% E - EIER B RARBRIRER

annum, unsecured and without repayable on demand clause.

Included in the Group's borrowings are borrowings of nil
(2017: HK$126,742,000) denominated in the currency other

than the functional currency of the respective group entities.

BRI -

AEEEERREASEEERMINEEB AN
MEESEMNZTT(ZZT—HF 1 126,742,000
BILEE -
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35. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

. BEHEERE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+t5F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MIERABROWAE
Current liabilities nEBE 4,340 3,877
Non-current liabilities EREAE 8,341 3,015
12,681 6,892

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles
and machineries under financing arrangement. The lease
terms ranged from 3 to 5 years (2017: 1 to 5 years). Interest
rates underlying all obligations under finance leases are either
fixed ranging from 8.68% to 9.35% per annum (2017: 2.17% to
11.27% per annum) at respective contract dates. None of the

leases include contingent rentals.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

35. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 35. MERERE(E)
(continued)

Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments
RIEAENT REHENRZRE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—EB-N\F ZTtF =B-N\F T LF
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TR TAT

Obligations under finance FES R A FH & AIE -
leases payable:
Within one year —FZA 4,776 4,225 4,340 3,877
Within a period of more than 88— {B KBB4
one year but not more
than two years 3,846 1,648 3,445 1,571
Within a period of more than @M 4B KiBIBRE

two years but not more

than five years 4,906 1,483 4,896 1,444
13,528 7,356 12,681 6,892
Less: future finance charges o BERE S (847) (464) N/AFTER N/ATER
Present value of lease HEAE2RE
obligations 12,681 6,892 12,681 6,892

Less: Amount due for B A+ @B REIHER

settlement with twelve BiEiE

months (shown under B EREEE)

current liabilities) (4,340) (3,877)

Amount due for settlement R+ @A &BEIHEREFIE

after twelve months 8,341 3,015
Obligations under finance leases are effectively secured by EASEEBIEFNBRT HEBEENER
the underlying assets as the rights to the leased assets would BEELAA  WREHEETERUAEHEE
be reverted to the lessor in the event of default of repayment B o
by the Group.
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36. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY

(A) During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group's
interests in Hao Tian International Construction was
decreased from 80.79% to 62.50% as a result of the

following transactions:

()  On 21 April 2017, the Group disposed of
57,947,000 shares of Hao Tian International
Construction at an average price of HK$0.62 per
share in the secondary market (the “Secondary
Market Disposal”). Upon completion of the
Secondary Market Disposal, the Group's interests
in Hao Tian International Construction was
reduced from 80.79% to 75%; and

(i) On 26 May 2017, Hao Tian International
Construction completed the Placing of
200,000,000 shares of HK$0.62 per share to
independent third parties (the “Placing”) and the
Group's interests in Hao Tian International
Construction was reduced from 75% to 62.50%.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group owns 62.50% of
issued share capital of Hao Tian International

Construction.

As the above transactions do not result in the
Group losing control over Hao Tian International
Construction, they are accounted for as equity

transactions.
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36. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued)

(B)

Hao Tian Management

On 22 May 2016, Hao Tian Management, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a subscription agreement (the "HTM Subscription
Agreement”) with Vandi Investments Limited (“Vandi”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which, Vandi
agreed to subscribe for, and Hao Tian Management
agreed to issue, 821 new ordinary shares for a
consideration of US$40 million (equivalent to
HK$311,561,000) (the “HTM Subscription”). The HTM
Subscription was completed on 23 August 2016. Upon
the completion of the HTM subscription, Hao Tian
Management remains as an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and will be owned as to
approximately 92.41% and approximately 7.59% by the
Company and Vandi respectively. As part of the HTM
Subscription Agreement, upon the completion of the
HTM Subscription, the Company entered into a call
option deed ("HTD Option Deed”) with Vandi,
pursuant to which, the Company granted a call option
to Vandi to subscribe up to 389,940,000 shares of the
Company (the "HTD Option”) at an exercise price of
HK$0.8 per share (adjusted to 454,930,000 shares and
HK$0.69 per share after completion of the Year 2017

Bonus Issue, as defined in note 39).

The difference between the increase in non-controlling
interests of HK$45,579,000, the cash consideration of
HK$311,561,000, and the aggregated carrying value of
the option arising from HTM Subscription of
HK$271,472,000, i.e. HK$5,490,000, has been debited to
other reserve at initial recognition.

36. AEERMBARZERSE Hit
aEGE)

(B)

RREHE

MR-_ZB—XNERA-+-RB ARFZ
ME2ENBARZEREEMABIE =
77 Vandi Investments Limited ([ Vandil)
AVRER R ((RREERBHE] -
B VandiAERE  MEAEERE
17821 B im A% - (B % 40,000,000
FEC(ABE R 311,561,000 7T) ([RXE
BERBEE])  ZAEERBEEER
ZE-RFNAZF=ZAEK - REX
ERREEETRE  ZREENDAXR
RAZHEEIZEMBRR  WHAR
AR Vandi 7RI £992.41% K £7.59%
- EARRERRBE R D
REMZRERRERIER - AQFHE
Vandiz] 3 — 3 7288 Bi 2 4% ([HTD 88
ERE ] - Fit - AR AR VandiE R
BEE - DIRTTEESROSATLRER
% 389,940,000 % 4~ A &) f% 15 ([HTD £
B (RER St EELANETER
28 5 454,930,000 B% 3% 17 &2 & 12 0.69 7 7T
(E&RMFE39)) -

JF 22 A% 25 12 Hn45,579,00078 ¢ - WL
RAE311,561,000 8 THEXEERES
T8 fT/EE 4 2 BRRE AR TEN (B 4258 271,472,000
BT =5 H15,490,00087C 0 E R
SRR AEL M ERE o
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36. CHANGE OF GROUP’S INTEREST IN
SUBSIDIARIES/OTHER LIABILITY (continued)

(@)

Hao Tian Finance

On 9 April 2015, Hao Tian Finance, entered into a
subscription agreement (the “First Subscription
Agreement”) with Rui Sheng Global Holdings Limited
("RSGHL"), an independent third party. Pursuant to the
First Subscription Agreement, RSGHL agreed to
subscribe for and Hao Tian Finance agreed to issue,
Hao Tian Finance's new shares at a consideration of
HK$100 million (the “First Subscription”). The First
Subscription was completed on 13 May 2015.

As part of the First Subscription Agreement, the
Company granted RSGHL a right with a consideration of
HK$1.00 that on the occurrence of Hao Tian Finance
and the Company fails to have all the shares of Hao Tian
Finance to be listed on either the Main Board or the
GEM of the Stock Exchange within three years after the
completion of the First Subscription (the "Event”), i.e. 8
April 2018, RSGHL shall have the right to request the
Company to purchase all or part of the shares at a price
of HK$1.15 per share (the “"HTF Put Option”) at any
time within three months after occurrence of the Event.
As at date of issue, the present value of gross liability of
HK$91,291,000 of the HTF Put Option has been
accounted for as other liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The effective interest
rate of the other liability is 8.00% per annum.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, an imputed
interest on the other liability of HK$7,930,000 (2017:
HK$7,930,000) is recognised as finance costs in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
As at 31 March 2018, the present value of the other

liability is HK$114,420,000 (2017: HK$106,490,000).

On 9 April 2018, the HTF Put Option was exercised by
RSGHL.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees of the Group in
Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held separately in
an independently administrated fund. The Group has chosen
to follow the minimum statutory contribution requirement of
5% of eligible Hong Kong employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the cap of HK$1,500 per month. The

contributions are charged to profit or loss.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by respective local governments. The subsidiaries
are required to contribute a specific percentage of their
payroll costs to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified

contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group
to the schemes and cost charged to profit or loss of
HK$3,186,000 (2017: HK$1,565,000) represent contribution
paid or payable to the schemes by the Group at rates

specified in the rules of the schemes.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2018, the Group provided corporate
guarantees and performance guarantee amounting to
approximately HK$330,000 (2017: HK$2,262,000) and
HK$11,200,000 (2017: HK$11,200,000) to banks in respect of
obligations under finance leases and the Group's obligations
under contracts with certain third party customers. Under the
guarantees, the Group would be liable to make payments to
the banks if the bank is unable to recover the amounts under
these finance leases from these customers or the Group failed
to perform the relevant obligations to these customers. As at
31 March 2018, no provision for the Group's obligation under
the guarantee contracts has been made as the directors of
the Company considered that it was not probable that the
repayment of the finance lease obligations would be in
default and it was not probable that a claim will be made

against the Group.

37.

38.

RIREREHE

AEERAAEARENBEBZAERERRY
—IEEHIEATREE & ([ZET8]) - ZEE
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M — B ERERREMRK -
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39. SHARE CAPITAL 39. BA&
Nominal value Number of Share
per share shares capital
BREE RGEE [N
HK$ HK$'000
BT FAT
Ordinary shares Eimik
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017 R=-Z-XEMA—A -
and 31 March 2018 —E—+tF=ZH=+-H
k—Z2-NF=A=+—H 0.01 50,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER
At 1 April 2016 RZE—~"FHA—H 0.01 3,642,348,316 36,423
Shares issued upon exercise TERBREEERIT 2
of warrants (note a) R&tp (Bt a) 0.01 537,743,800 5,378
Issue of emolument shares BITRERG (MiTb)
(note b) 0.01 6,075,334 61
At 31 March 2017 RZE—+F
ZA=+—H 0.01 4,186,167,450 41,862
Issue of shares by bonus issue KR BITRIT 2D
(note ¢) (&) 0.01 697,694,575 6,976
Issue of emolument shares BITRERG (Mb)
(note b) 0.01 14,175,779 142
At 31 March 2018 R-E-NF=A=1+—H 0.01 4,898,037,804 48,980
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39. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital for the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

(a)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, a total of
537,743,800 new ordinary shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each were issued upon the exercise of
537,743,800 warrants at HK$0.4545 per share.

On 26 September 2016, the Company entered into a
director’s services agreement with Mr. Fok covering
period from 27 September 2016 to 26 September 2019.
Pursuant to the announcement dated 25 July 2017, a
bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share for every
six existing shares was approved and issued, 41,514,782
shares (2017: 36,452,004 shares) of the Company will be
allotted and issued to Mr. Fok during his service period.
The aggregate value of these shares is HK$15,000,000
which was determined by reference to the Company’s
average share price of the last ten consecutive trading
dates immediately prior to 27 September 2016, i.e.
HK$0.4115. Details of which are set out in the
Company's circular issued on 25 January 2017. The
services agreement was approved by the shareholders
on 17 February 2017, 14,175,779 shares (2017: 6,075,334
shares) has been allotted and issued on 28 March 2018.
If Mr. Fok ceases to be an executive director of the
Company before the allotment dates specified in the
circular, his entitlement will be calculated on a pro rata

basis.

On 19 April 2017, the directors of the Company
proposed a bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share
for every six existing shares held. The bonus issue was
approved by the shareholders on 5 July 2017 and
697,694,575 bonus shares were issued on 25 July 2017
("Year 2017 Bonus Issue”).

All the shares which were issued during both years rank pari

passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

B ISR M

—N\F=ZA=1t—HLLFE

39. BRA(E)

ARABE-_ZE—NER_F

—t¥=A

=t—BILEEZRARBEENT -

(a)

RRBEFERARTZMBERNNAE T EERE

HE-Z—+tHF=A=+—HILFE"
& $£537,743,800 IR G AR E{E0.01 BT 2
A BV AR 2 R 537,743,800 17 7R IR
WEFEIR R 0.4545 B T ETT(E M 81T -

RZE—RFNLAZ+B AAFH
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—E-RFNAAZTtEtHE=ZZ— jli

NAZ+"BHE - REBH A=
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415147820 Ik A ( = & — & F:
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#15,000,0007% 7T+ E T2 E AR QA
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—+tF—AZ+RAFIEZBEEA - Z
BREHBECERER-_Z—+F=A
FHBHE - 141757798 (— T —+4F ¢
6,075,334 ) RO ER=ZFE—NF=A
T N\AEREERET  BELEERB
EKE E L% B HA AT N B IR TR A BT
EE - FESHRNMGIRLOETE

R-ZE—LtFWOA+IA KRARES

BRERREBANRREG RN EE R
B ZEEETAR  BER -_T—LF
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40. RESERVES 40. #1E
Share premium IR 138
2018 2017
—B-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of year RE 4,275,522 3,647,206
Issue of emolument shares BITRENRD 4,858 2,439
Issue of new shares upon exercise 1T R B RS B TR (D
of warrants - 625,877
Issue of new shares upon bonus issue EALAR BT M A TR AR D (6,976) -
At the end of year REL 4,273,404 4,275,522
Warrant reserve RREEREE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of year REY] - 386,850
Exercise of warrants 1T R E - (386,850)
At the end of the year RELR - _
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. f#& (&)
Statutory surplus reserve EERGREE
2018 2017
—B-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
At the beginning and the end of year RERFL BE580) 3,539
Share option and emolument share reserve ISR EE 12 S B IR 10 1
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T
At the beginning of year RER] 1,237 4,220
Transfer to accumulated profits upon PG U BB AR R S B &= R A
forfeiture of share options lapsed (437) (3,654)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based R AL E LR MH A
payments = 671
At the end of year MEH 800 1,237
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40. RESERVES (continued) 40. f##& (&)

Asset revaluation reserve EEEMHE
2018 2017
—B-NE —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At the beginning of year REF) 631,389 1,122,426
Fair value changes on available-for-sale AEHEREN N FEED
investments (155,880) (547,388)
Reclassification adjustment to RRAEBBREN S EAEZES
profit or loss on impairment loss 1,748 74,728
Reclassification adjustment to RHEERERDFAEEER
profit or loss upon disposal - (53,212)
Share to non-controlling interests DG FEE R 2 12,055 34,835
At the end of year REL 489,312 631,389
Special reserve AT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
At the beginning and the end of year REY M F 4R (5,754) (5,754)
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40. RESERVES (continued)

Translation reserve

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

40. f##E(E)

B 5

2018 2017
—F-N\F T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
At the beginning of year REY] (9,250) (1,210)
Exchange differences arising on BRE BN EBEENEL ZHR
translation of foreign operations 20,767 (8,040)
Share to non-controlling interest DL FEIEIRE R (2,900) -
At the end of year MELH 8,617 (9,250)
Other reserve Hith &
2018 2017
ZB-NF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
At the beginning of year REH] (97,531) (92,041)
Capital injection from non-controlling SRR T E
interests = (5,490)
Change in the Group's ownership NEBRREHB R Bk
interest in existing subsidiaries 31,757 -
At the end of year RELH (65,774) (97,531)
Put option reserve PhHARE RS
2018 2017
—B2-NE —ZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
At the beginning and the end of year REF R F L 5,238 5,238

Annual Report %k 2017/18 209



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(A) Acquisition of Hao Tian Securities

On 8 August 2016, the Group acquired the entire issued
share capital of Hao Tian Securities from an
independent third party at a consideration of
HK$29,158,000. This acquisition was accounted for using
the purchase method. Hao Tian Securities is engaged in
the provision of securities brokerage service in Hong

Kong.

Consideration transferred

41. WEEKHEBLQE
(A) WERXES

RZFE-RNENANA  REBUKE
29,158,000/ LM BILFE =77 Wi = RFE
HZEWOBETRA - WKEEERDZ
WEEANR - RRBEFNEBLEFRM
B AL IR o

BEZEAE

HK$'000
FAT
Cash Be 29,158
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B BWERITER LR (18,833)
Net cash used in acquisition WHERTAIR & F5 10,325
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date RUEARBIEEERERZAE :
of acquisition:
HK$'000
T
Property, plant and equipment W - BB RERE 125
Intangible assets B EE 11,000
Deposits e 200
Trade and other receivables U B R R L A Uk R 2,259
Bank balances, trust and segregated accounts IRITHER - ERARBULERR 40,386
Bank balances and cash IRTTAER IR S 18,833
Trade and other payables JRE A R R e L fth R AF SR IE (43,636)
Tax payable JERT TR 1R ©)
29,158

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts
of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted
to HK$2,259,000 at the date of acquisition.
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B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(A) Acquisition of Hao Tian Securities (continued)

(B)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Hao Tian
Securities contributed HK$852,000 to the Group's
revenue and HK$2,940,000 to the loss for the period
between the respective date of acquisition and 31
March 2017.

Acquisition of Hao Tian International Construction

On 6 February 2017, the Group acquired 75% issued
share capital of Clear Lift Holdings Limited
(subsequently changed its name to Hao Tian
International Construction) (“Clear Lift Acquisition”)
from an independent third party at a consideration of
HK$5%2,500,000.

On 13 March 2017, the Group further acquired 5.79%
issued share capital of Hao Tian International
Construction at a total consideration of HK$45,778,000
under the general offer required by Takeover Code (the
“Clear Lift General Offer”). As at 31 March 2017, the
Group held 80.79% of total issued share capital of Hao

Tian International Construction.

As Clear Lift General Offer was triggered by Clear Lift
Acquisition, they were considered as one single

acquisition.

In determination of the total consideration transferred
in this transaction, the consideration paid in Clear Lift
Acquisition and Clear Lift General Offer were

considered together.

41. WEBKBAR (B&)

(A)

WiBRXES (18)
WIBH A EBFE T E

HE-_Z—tF=A=+—HLFE"
SRBENGWERHPE T —tF=
A=+—BAMmA & E &R 852,000 %
TEURA K2 2,940,000 7% T 18 -

WiE R XEIBRER

RZZE—EFZASE  AEBURE
592,500,000 7 7T 14 8 37 55 = 77 U B Jem it
TEZRERAB(HEAESMEEB AR
REIFR R ) 2 75% 0 21T AR ([ B
BEE]) -

R-T—+tF=ZA+=0 ~AEBERE
WHETAREZ2EZHUNBRE
45,778,000 8 i — HULHE R KRB BR #EE%
Z579% BETRAN(ERZ2EEN]) -
R-Z—tF=ZF=+—8 A£EE
BEXEREREHTRALE
80.79% ¢

MRS R 2 4 T i e B S E IR A
Sl MRERRA—RE—WERIE -

REFTELRSPCEEZARER
RieRKBERRER2AZHENZ
RES—HEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(B)

Acquisition of Hao Tian International Construction
(continued)

This acquisition was accounted for using the acquisition
method. Hao Tian International Construction is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in construction machinery and sales
of construction materials business, including rental of
construction machinery, trading of construction
machinery and spare parts, and provision of repair and

maintenance and transportation services.

Consideration transferred

41. WEBKBAR (B&)

W RRERER (E)

It B IR E R BEE AR - R KRB
BRA-MREZEBRARLENEAA
T RN FREMM IR HE R -
BREEEZEKM ZEEMEERT
I E MRS IR SERRT -

EBEARE

HK$'000
TAT

Cash B4

638,278

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$16,386,000
were excluded from the consideration transferred and
were recognised as other expenses during the year
ended 31 March 2017.
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(B)

B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

41. WEBKBAR (B&)

Acquisition of Hao Tian International Construction (B) WERXBEIEER(E)

(continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date RKEARHRIEEEREREE :
of acquisition:
HK$'000
FAT
Property, plant and equipment L N 378,700
Intangible assets mRAE 167,650
Deferred tax assets RIETHIEE E 5,080
Finance lease receivables EE R E R W RIE 7,855
Inventories FE 1,169
Trade and other receivables A MR 5 R At M R TE 51,880
Tax recoverable QL EERE 1,766
Pledged bank deposits BRI TIF R 4,597
Bank balances and cash RITHEMREIRS 88,216
Trade and other payables JEAF BR R R L fth A F00E (28,624)
Borrowings BE (77,656)
Obligations under finance leases AE SRR (74,08¢)
Deferred tax liabilities REHEAE (72,697)
Tax payable e IE 71
453,779

The fair value of the trade and other receivables
acquired amounted to HK$51,880,000 at the date of
acquisition. The gross contractual amount of those
trade and other receivables acquired amounted to
HK$52,226,000 at the date of acquisition. The best
estimate at acquisition date of the contractual cash

flows not expected to be collected amounted to

HK$346,000.

FAUES B AR B U E R R R A fE
UL B 7 A F 1B 451,880,000 T © #%
5 050 P A PR 0 B L At FE W R TR 2 42
& A& TR UEE B H1 /&R 52,226,000 8 7T ©
REEBAE  6ReRE 2 & EMT
80 & Uk B 346,000 78 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. W8

(B) Acquisition of Hao Tian International Construction

(B)

(continued)

BB AR (48)

W RRERER (E)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WEEHELECHE
HK$'000
FAT
Consideration transferred EEERE 638,278
Plus: non-controlling interests o SERER R R 87,171
Less: net assets acquired B BB B EFE (453,779)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEEE 2 HE 271,670

The non-controlling interests in Hao Tian International
Construction was measured by the proportionate share

of the carrying amount of its net assets.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Hao Tian
International Construction:

RERBEERZR 2 FFERER IR E
HEEFEZREEILIHE -

WIBERXBEIRERELZ R HMHFHE -

HK$'000

FAT

Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE 638,278
Acquisition-related cost paid BT 1 is FIBARRIAA 16,386
Bank balances and cash acquired BB RITEBR LIRS (88,216)
566,448

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Hao Tian
International Construction contributed HK$51,232,000
to the Group's revenue and HK$12,925,000 to the profit
for the period between the respective date of
acquisition and 31 March 2017.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(€

Acquisition of Fujian Nuogqi

On 22 July 2016, the Group entered into a restructuring
agreement with Fujian Nuogi, a company incorporated
in the PRC and with its H-shares listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (“HT China Restructuring
Agreement”). Pursuant to the HT China Restructuring
Agreement, the Group conditionally agreed to
participate in the restructuring of Fujian Nuogi through
acquiring 51% of equity interest of Fujian Nuoqi for a
total consideration of approximately RMB151,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$174,540,000) (the
“Fujian Nuoqi Acquisition”). The Fujian Nuogqi
Acquisition was completed on 5 September 2016. As at
5 September 2016, the Group held 51% of the total
issued shares of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 26.1 of the Takeovers Code, the Group
was required to make mandatory unconditional cash
offers to all shareholders of Fujian Nuogi (other than the
Group and parties acting in concert with it) (the
“General Offer”). Pursuant to Rule 26.4 of the
Takeovers Code “Restrictions on control by offeror”,
the Group was restricted to appoint its nominee or
persons acting in concert with it as director of Fujian
Nuogi or exercise its voting rights in Fujian Nuogi until
the offer document for the General Offer (the "Offer
Document”) had been posted.

The directors of the Company were of the view that the
Group did not have control or significant influence over
Fujian Nuogi prior to the appointment of the Group's
nominee or person acting in concert with it as directors
of Fujian Nuogi and the Group may not exercise its
shareholders’ voting rights in Fujian Nuogi until the
Offer Document had been posted, except with the
consent of the Securities and Futures Commission.
Consequently, investment in Fujian Nuogi was classified

as available-for-sale investments at its initial recognition.

B ISR M

—N\F=ZA=1t—HLLFE

WEBHI B A R (48)
(C) WEEEESD
RZEBE—R"FLA=-+=8" Z’KEIEE

EEHT (—ERRBEEMKIZARKR
HHBRAB A ER E) AT S48 W=
(RRXHBEEABHZE]) - RIEZXPEH
BHBH AEECEREREZEBIA
AR E 4 A R ¥ 151,000,000 7T (HHE R
#47174,540,00078 7T ) W R B2 &
S1%ufikE2mERmT c5H(BER
FWBEBE]) BEEHFWEREER
—E-RNFAAEBEZK - R —
iﬂﬂﬁﬁ'$¢l%ﬁ$AﬁE%ﬁ
f& 17 82 51% ©

RIEWEE ST BRI 261 - REBEARE

EHETMAERR (AKERE—BITBHA
TRIMNEHRSIERGEHREZNO (2
EHEHN]) - REEBTARAN 264 HE
WANEFIEORS ] ARBXREEHR
RAASEE-BITHALRBEEET
ZEESFITHEANBERT ZREE

ERREHEZBHZZOXMH(ENAX
) TIE AL

ARBEEBRNAEB 2 es Ak A
H-HTPALTRZIRBEREATZE
ERAEENAITRERERER A 2K
REZERNEZETIREOXM EHFR
HEEHERZ8ERERIN /L K
SEYNRERESTLERRENERAS
BEAFE - Fil REEHRTZRER
iR D BRAIHHERE
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(€

Acquisition of Fujian Nuogqi (continued)

On 8 February 2017, the Offer Document was posted.
The directors of the Company are of the view that the
Group, after considering the Group has the right to
request for an extraordinary general meeting and
exercise its shareholder’s right in such meeting for the
purposes of i) removal of existing directors of Fujian
Nuogji; ii) nominating and appointing new directors of
Fujian Nuogi, and; iii) the Group’s dominance in
shareholder’s meeting of Fujian Nuogqi with its 51% of
total issued equity interest in Fujian Nuogji, has control
over Fujian Nuogji. Since then, Fujian Nuogji has become
an indirect and non-wholly owned subsidiary of the

Company.

On 1 March 2017, the Group further acquired 8.93%
issued share capital of Fujian Nuogqi at a total
consideration of approximately HK$30,693,000 under
the general offer required by Takeovers Code (the
“Fujian Nuogqi General Offer”). As at 31 March 2017,
the Group held 59.93% of total issued share capital of
Fujian Nuoqi.

As Fujian Nuogi General Offer was triggered by Fujian
Nuogi Acquisition, they were considered as one single

acquisition.

In determination of the total consideration transferred
in this transaction, the consideration paid in Fujian
Nuogi Acquisition and Fujian Nuogi General Offer were

considered together.

On 21 April 2017, an extraordinary general meeting was
held by Fujian Nuogi and certain resolutions were
passed, including, amongst others, i) removal of one of
the existing directors of Fujian Nuoqji; and ii) electing

new directors of Fujian Nuog;i.
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(C)

WiEEEET (8)

RZFE—LF_ANA BOXHET
HARAEETRR KEEAKEE
BERARBRFIAG RITEERE
BREBREREFN) BBk s
REEF ) REARERERTZH
B MiDARERBESAT ZBERK
SLETTR HBARERTCOET
P AREE 2 51% » NEBEEEEL TR
BEGE- Bt BEBTERRER
AlZEE MR EMBAR -

RZZE—+E=ZA—H AEEREK
BTFAREz2AZ2H((REXTEE
B4 ) DA (B 430,693,000 JT i —
HINEREEHRT 2893 EBITHRA -
R-Z—tF=ZF=+—8 A£EE
BREHRTCBITIRALBEE 2 59.93% °

HREEATEE RN AEERT
BEEMSIE  BRERE/—RE—
WiE=E -

REFUXSFOERERER B
mEAFTEBEREMEER T 2EED
ENZREE—HEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
(C) Acquisition of Fujian Nuogi (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the
of acquisition:

41. WEBKBAR (B&)

(C WEREER#HZT(E)

date RBEBRAHKEZEERERZRE -

HK$'000

FH&T

Property, plant and equipment M - BE R 100,651
Prepaid lease payments TANHEERIE 16,623
Inventories =& 2,714
Trade and other receivables A MR 5 e At s R TE 2,753
Bank balances and cash IRITHEER IR ® 2,926
Trade and other payables JRE A R R e B fth R A R0 E (4,374)
Amount due to shareholder FE AR R FR0E (9,025)
Deferred tax liabilities FEHEAE (9,250)
103,018

The fair value as well as the gross contractual amounts

of the trade and other receivables acquired amounted

to HK$2,753,000 at the date of acquisition.

Consideration transferred

£ W B8 LA R R e Lt FE MR TR 2 2 F
EARBANEBERKRERRAS

2,753,000 7T °

BEEAE

HK$'000
FET

Cash

Re

205,233

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$12,865,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred

and have been recognised as other expenses during the

year ended 31 March 2017.

Uy B =5 78 #8 B Ak A8 12,865,000 78 7T 1~ B2
HEECEZERERN YREZE-_T—+
FZAZtHULFERRAEMAS -
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41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

41. WEBKBAR (B&)

(C) Acquisition of Fujian Nuogqi (continued) (C) WEBEEEZT (&)

Goodwill arising on acquisition: WKIEEREL ZBE -
HK$'000
FET
Consideration transferred BEEAE 205,233
Plus: non-controlling interests b SEERRE s 41,279
Less: net assets acquired B BWEEERE (103,018)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHEEEEE 2 B8 143,494

The non-controlling interests in Fujian Nuogi was
measured by the proportionate share of the carrying

amount of its net assets.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of Fujian Nuogqi:

RBEmA ZFERBEEDRIEEEE
FEZREEZLAIGE -

WBEEATELZRE MU FE

HK$'000

FH&TT

Cash consideration paid ERESRE 205,233
Acquisition-related cost paid BT R AR 12,865
Bank balances and cash acquired BWERITESR IR S (2,926)
215,172

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Fujian Nuogi
contributed HK$9,323,000 to the Group's revenue and
HK$992,000 to the profit for the period between the
respective date of acquisition and 31 March 2017.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

42. COMMITMENTS 42. i
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERIE
The Group as lessor ZAEBERHBEA
The Group sub-leased vacant space of its leased REERBELHEERZHEAEER
warehouse and leased and sub-leased its owned and EHNEEH WHER>AEES KE
leased machinery under operating lease agreements. ENHB - FAEHERSFSHRAR
Income earned from the leasing during the year is 118,302,000/ 70 ( == —+4 : 18,770,000
HK$118,302,000 (2017: HK$18,770,000). HIT) ©
The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable TRAIESE A ST & o B SR EFHIE
operating leases are as follows: NN
2018 2017
—E-NFE —T—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Not later than one year TER—F 1,912 3,023
The Group as lessee AEBEEZFRBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had REERR  REERERYWENHTA
commitments for future minimum lease payments under RS E L THE M AAER T 5 EARE B
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented AR REEEERN KT
premises which fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—B-N\F —TtF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FH&TT
Within one year —ER 22,786 21,762
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEFHF(BRMFREEN) 9,385 23,824
32,171 45,586
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

42. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(a) Operating lease commitments (continued) (a)

The Group as lessee (continued)

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office and residential
premises. Leases are negotiated for lease term of one

to five years (2017: one to five years) and rentals are

fixed over the relevant lease term.

42, FEiE (&)

REHERE(E)

ZEEEEREBA (B)

REHENTEARBEREETHAE
MMEEWERMNWES FEEEED
HHA—ZRAF(ZT—tF: —EF
F) MESNEEERAREE -

(b) Capital commitment: (b) EAEHE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of WARBME - BELZED
addition of property, plant and =ENE
equipment:
— contracted for but not provided in — BEJAEW RN ERE
the consolidated financial BA RS IR B (P 5T)
statements (Note) 145,886 154,035
Capital expenditure in respect of FLULEE 55 Mark Lane #Y
acquisition of 55 Mark Lane (Note 24) & AR (M5E24) 1,289,211 -

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, a wholly-owned

i : B2 —ZE-—AF=A=+—HLEFE &

subsidiary of the Group has entered into contractual
agreement for the development of the logistics warehousing
business in the PRC. Total contract sum of approximately
RMB116,803,000 or equivalent to HK$145,886,000 (2017:
RMB116,803,000 or equivalent to HK$131,753,000) is
included in the above amounts.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES

(a)

Share Option Schemes

Upon passing of an ordinary resolution on 25

September 2015, the Company adopted a share option

scheme (the “"New Share Option Scheme”) which will

remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 25

September 2015 and whereupon the Share Option
Scheme (as defined below) adopted on 16 May 2006
was terminated, while the options granted under the

Share Option Scheme are still exercisable until their

expiry. The major terms of the New Share Option

Scheme are set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants;

The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company’'s board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the
Group;

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the New
Share Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company's
shareholders;

43. BRETE RORBETE EBR

1

(a)

BRETE

RZZE—hAFNAZ+HABRB—IEYL
BRBERE  NARCEMN—IBERE
STEl((FBRERE) - FEREE
HE-_Z-RAFNA=-t+HERAHT
FEMR B RZZETERNFRA+TS
HE Mz BRERTE (I T XPrER)
BEKIE - EREERES EIRE 2B
ARAED A N E B AR AITE o 3T AR 42
STEIR FE E RS MT -

(i) ZHEEBFEANAEFTZAR/YN
EHAKBEHREROART RE
(ECIRIEPNSIEEER B ES S o
B -TTRABERSABE (BHEXR
RAREEAMBEARNRTE
£ FRTEERBUFATE
B)RARBHENERRNES
BRI EE MM ERERN

(i) AREBFEAME BIAT LR H OB
B RHEN &RSHE NMSBEBA
RANE B BEITIRAA 30% ° K&
RNRABIRELLE - MER+ =
18 A HR AR E B AR R AT
B e BB AT S ) B 31T S
BT BB NMEEBARRRNE
AR EEITRMDA 1% [[—
FEIERRN—RBUIFATES
RTHEBARARAN01I%KE
{E.#8 38 5,000,000 7 JT &) B8 iR #E 78
FRKARRBIRYLAE
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the New Share Option Scheme, the right of
the grantee to exercise the option shall be in
accordance with the terms of the New Share
Option Scheme and the period to be notified by
the board of directors of the Company to each
grantee which shall not exceed 10 years from the
date upon which the options is deemed to be

granted and accepted;

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the board of directors of the Company and will
not be less than the highest of:

o the closing price of the share on the date of
grant;
o the average closing price of the share for the

five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

. the nominal value of the share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance

of the offer of grant of options.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted on 16 May 2006. The

Share Option Scheme was expired and terminated on

25 September 2015 and was replaced by the New Share

Option Scheme. The major terms of the Share Option

Scheme are set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

The purpose was to provide incentives to the

participants;

The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company’'s board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the

Group;

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options might be granted under the Share
Option Scheme must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. The number of shares issued and to be
issued in respect of which options granted and
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any point in
time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. Options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director in excess of 0.1% of the Company's share
capital or with a value in excess of HK$5 million
must be approved in advance by the Company’s

shareholders;
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a) Share Option Schemes (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

In relation to each grantee of the options granted
under the Share Option Scheme, the right of the
grantee to exercise the option shall vest in three
stages: 30% of share options granted (rounded
down to the nearest whole number of shares) will
vest from the expiry of one year from the
acceptance date of the option (the "Acceptance
Date”) up to the day immediately before the
fourth anniversary of the Acceptance Date; 30% of
share options granted (rounded down to the
nearest whole number of shares) will vest from the
expiry of two years from the Acceptance Date up
to the day immediately before the fifth anniversary
of the Acceptance Date; and 40% of the share
options granted (round down to the nearest whole
number of shares) will vest from the expiry of three
years from the Acceptance Date up to the day
immediately before the sixth anniversary of the

Acceptance Date;

The exercise price of an option will be determined
by the board of directors of the Company and will
not be less than the highest of:

e the closing price of the share on the date of
grant;

o the average closing price of the share for the
five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

. the nominal value of the share.

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance

of the offer of grant of options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ISR M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/ 43. BRESTE RORBHE RBR

EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued) %7 (&)
(a) Share Option Schemes (continued) (a) EBRHESTEI(E)
Details of the share options outstanding under the R A B AR R 5t 8l KR B IR i 5T 818
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option THMARITEEREREZHFEOT :
Scheme and movements during the two years were as
follows:
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding Lapsed  Adjusted Outstanding
price at 1 April during ~ at 31 March during during ~ at 31 March
Grantee Date of grant  Exercising period per share 2016 the year 217 theyear ~ the year 2018
RZB-XE RZZ-tE R=B-N%
mA-H ZR=t-A ZB=t-A
ERA RiLAH 18 BROKE WAOE  FREN BROE ERAM FRER BAOE
HKS (note i)
AT (Hiiti)
Director
EH
Mr. Fok 84.2011 842014102 842016 0.74 49,752 (499.752) - - - -
EfE 84.2011 842015102 842017 0.74 666,33 - 666,33 (666,336) - -
Senior Consultant
Bt
Ms. Li {note i) 219.010 219.01410 % 269.2016 0.82 6330192 (633019 - - - -
el
Other employees 219.010 219.01410% 269.2016 0.82 10694693 (1069469) - - - -
HirEg 84201 842014102 842016 0.74 124938 (124,938) - - - -
84.2011 842015102 842017 0.74 166,584 - 166,584 (166,584) - -
291201 32201710 22200 028 5,000,000 - 5000000 - 833333 5833333

23482495 (17649575 5832920 (832920) 833333 5833333

Weighted average exercise price
METARE 070 034 028

Exercisable at the end of the year
RERTE 18,482,495 5832920 5833333
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43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Notes:

(i) Ms. Li is a controlling shareholder and a senior consultant of
the Company.

(if) The numbers of share options were adjusted upon the
bonus issue.

In the current year, share option expenses of
approximately nil (2017: HK$671,000) were recognised
in profit or loss with a corresponding credit in the
Group's share option and emolument share reserve.

Share Award Scheme

The Company'’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted on 27 September 2013. The
major terms of the Share Award Scheme are set out

below:

()  The purpose was to provide incentives to the

participants;

(i) The participants included any full-time or part-
time employees, executives and officers of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries (including
executives, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors of the
Company and any of its subsidiaries) and business
consultants and legal and other professional
advisors of the Company or its subsidiaries which,
in the opinion of the Company’s board of
directors, has or had made contribution to the

Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(b)

(iii)

(iv)

Share Award Scheme (continued)

The number of shares issued and to be issued in
respect of which options granted and may be
granted to any individual in any 12-month period
is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the date of passing of the
issue mandated at the annual general meeting of
the Company for a financial year during the term
of the Share Award Scheme. The aggregate value
of shares which may be issued to any individual at
any one time shall not exceed HK$5,000,000 as at
the date of such award granted under the Share
Award Scheme (the “Awards”). The number of
shares to satisfy the Awards shall be allotted and
issue by the directors of the Company by
obtaining a separate shareholder’s approval at a
general meeting or utilising the general mandate
granted by shareholders at a general meeting of

the Company from time to time;

In relation to each grantee of the awards granted
under the Share Award Scheme, the Awards shall
vest in a period to be determined by the directors
of the Company where the period must be at least

six months;

The number of shares to be granted will be
determined by the board of directors of the
Company by reference to:

o monthly salary of eligible employee;
° the average closing price of the share for the
five business days immediately preceding

the date of grant; and

o duration of employment of eligible

employee.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

43. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARD SCHEME/
EMOLUMENT SHARES (continued)

(c) Emolument Shares

On 26 September 2016, the Company entered into a
director’s services agreement with Mr. Fok covering
period from 27 September 2016 to 26 September 2019.
Pursuant to which, 36,452,004 shares (adjusted to
41,514,782 shares as result of Year 2017 Bonus Issue) of
the Company will be allotted and issued to Mr. Fok
during his service period. Details of which are set out in
note 39(b).

44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other

members of key management during the year was as follows:

43. BRETE RORBETE EBR
2 (%8)

(c) EEERH

R-ZFE—XRNFNLAZ-+/NB KAFHE
BhRAERIVESRGHE  FHE =T
—RNENA-THERE-_Z-AENA
ZHARBLE B BRELEZEE
7 [ 78 B 35 % 3517 36,452,004 B (A = F
— - FE AR I 1T M # B 241,514,782
BR)ARRABIRG - BREFIEEHRM T
39(b) °

44. BEFRS

ARAPEERHEMBEIEETREFRBRFANG
BT

2018 2017

—E-N\F T —+t5F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THBT

Salaries and other short-term benefits e M HE ARG HEF 22,354 14,457
Post-employment benefits EREEN 93 83
Share-based payments AR e 3R 5,000 2,500
27,447 17,040

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key
executive is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45. Z2A A Z/E A BM S
THE COMPANY

(a) Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at 31 (a) ARFRZZ-—NEFER-_ZT—+tF=A
March 2018 and 2017 are as follows: =T —HOFEMNBARFBET :
Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
o registration/  Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
B BEGE ALABEZERARE/
HEARAR i/ 2ERY  BERGER R&/EhER HfEREERLA IEEH
2018 2017
IB-)\E ZE-tE

Directly ~ Indirectly ~ Directly  Indirectly
E# B B i

Win Team Investments Limited BV Ordinary Usst 100% - 100% - Investment holding
ZERNEE TR 1% RARR
Merrymaking Investment Limited BV Ordinary 15$10,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
AERNEE TR 10000£7 RARK
Pleasing Results Limited BvI Ordinary 15§50,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
AERLEE  TER 5000057 e
Hao Tian Management Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,821 - 4% - 924%  Securities investment,
RRER B 5350 1081571 investment holding
and provision of
management services
EHRE  RERRR
REERRY
Hao Tian Finance Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1,210,000,000 - 1521% - 7521%  Money lending
RRHH B 320 1,210000000/3 7 HiE
Esteem Ocean Limited BYI Ordinary Usst - I521% - 7521%  Investment holding
HERRAR AERLEE  TER 157 L
Hong Kong Energy & Mining Hong Kong Ordinary HKS1 - 100% - 100%  Trading of futures
Investment Management & 5350 1% HERE
Limited
BERRRERAEERRAT
Hao Tian Oil & Gas Development  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS! - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited & LB 1T
EXRBRARFEEEARAA RERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, ZARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(a) (&)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
or registration/  Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
EREAE] BRTRER KALAREEZBRIRE/
HELIER ift/gEus%  HERHEN B /iHER AREREENLA TERE
2018 2017
g-)\f TEtE
Directy  Indirecty ~ Directly  Indirectly
B% £ B i3
Access Profit Global Enterprises BV Ordinary US§1,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited ABREE  LEk 1000%7 HABR
MHARLEEEARAA
New Style Corporation Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 = 100% - 100%  Investment holding
FaARAT &% £k 10007 REER
Xinjiang Xinpin Logistics Co., PRC Registered RMB15,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Inactive
Ltd. notef* E Bahh AR 150000007 AR
HERRRERAR ()
Hao Tian International Construction ~ Cayman lsland  Ordinary HKS$1,000,000 - 62.5% - 80.79%  Investment holding
ERERER HEXS Rk 1,000,000 7 RERR
Hao Tian International (China) Co,,  PRC Registered RMB50,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited (note)* G EEk AR 500000007 RERR
ERER (PE)ERAF (i) *
Beijing Hao Tian Investment PRC Registered 1S§370,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Fund Management Co., il Bk 370000% 7T RERR
Limited (note iij*
IRERREESERERAA
(Histi)*
Hao Tian Hua Tong (Beijing) PRC Registered RMBS5,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Trading Co, Limited [notef* Bk AR5,0000007 RERK
ERER(HRERERAT
(Bist)
Hao Tian International Bullion Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100% - 100%  Commodities brokerage
Limited & Lk 10,000,000/ 7 [EhE

ERABLRERAA
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, mARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(continued)

(a)

(%)

Place of Issued and
incorporation fully paid up Proportion of nominal value of
or registration/  Class of share capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary operations shares held registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
B BRTRER KALAREEZBRIRE/
HELIER ift/gEws%  HERHEN B /iHER AREREENLA IERE
2018 2017
g-)\f TEtE
Directy  Indirectly ~ Directly  Indlrectly
B% £ B i3
Fujian Nuodgj (note)* PRC Registered RMB122,158,800 - 59.93% - 5993%  Retailing of men’s and
e () Bk ARE 122,158,800 women's apparels
FRRAEES
Chim Kee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000,000 - 62.44% - 8071%  Construction machinery
G RRAT & Lk 1,000,000 7 and sales of construction
materials business
BEBHREEDH
HEXH
Chim Kee Machinery Co,, Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary HKS! - 62.44% - 80.71%  Construction machinery
G ERERAR Bk Lk 1T and sales of construction
materials business
BEBHREENH
HEXH
Hao Tian Securities Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% - 100%  Securities brokerage
SXEH &k Lk 10000387 business
EiA

*

Note:

English names are translated for identification purpose only.

These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in

the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

* XA BRRE R -
gL

ZEERANPEKLZINEBERE -

RERINFEARETAER - WEKER
ABEFAAREEES -
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in

particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. A
majority of these subsidiaries operate in Hong Kong
and PRC. The principal activities of these subsidiaries

are summarised as follows:

Principal place of business

ERERME

Principal activity

FEER

45. ARRAEEMBRRBFE (E)

(%)

ERINEARREERA/TEFELRE
BXEXBEENARAMERAR - AR
REERA  RUEMHBLIRZHE
SEYANTENTTE -

RBERR ARABEHAEEL T E
RZEMHBAR - REHZEHER
RAIREERTEEE ZEMBERAZ
TEEHBBMLT -

Number of subsidiaries
MEXREE
2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F

Investment holding Hong Kong &% 36 31
S AR PRCH 4 3
40 34
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, ZARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (b) EEEXRIERERZIEZTENS
have material non-controlling interests AREIFHE
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned TRINTAEER EAERIFERER
subsidiary of the Group that have material non- ZIERAMBEARFE

controlling interests:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation ownership interests
and principal  and voting rights held Profit (loss) allocated Accumulated
place of by non-controlling to non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
FEREEFELZ
R AL 3t B FrRREER IWMEFER
MELRER TEEENBE REROLH BEEHNER (B58) Rt FERER
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

ZE-N\F —FT—+F ZE-N\F _T—+F ZE-N\F _T—+F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FHET FET FHET

Hao Tian Finance Hong Kong 24.79% 24.79% 16,721 10,144 210,943 194,222
EPNIp 55
Hao Tian Management Hong Kong 7.59% 7.59% (15,097)  (122,119) (114,357) (87,205)
ERER 55

Hao Tian International Cayman Island 37.50% 19.21% (76,151) 1,631 136,977 88,802

Construction FEHE
ZRBBRER
Fujian Nuogi PRC 40.07% 40.07% (6,337) 397 38,241 41,676
BEET i

(80,864) (109,947) 271,804 237,495
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Group
recognised impairment loss of HK$172,756,000 on
goodwill arising from the Clear Lift Acquisition.
HK$64,783,000 of the impairment loss is allocated to the
non-controlling interests of Hao Tian International

Construction.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before

intragroup eliminations.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the shareholding
of non-controlling interest of Hao Tian International
Construction is changed due to the Secondary Market

Disposal and the Placing which are detailed in note
34(A).

45. ARRAEEMBRRBFE (E)

(b)

(%)

HE-Z—)\FZA=Z+—HILFE "
AEEEREEERREERURIESEE
B R 518 172,756,00038 7T © &8
64,783,000/ 8 L E DL E 2R BEFRERA
PR i

ERASB c ARERIFERER M
BRRZMBERMERINANT - %
BERBZ SEB AR -

HE-_Z—)/\F=ZA=+—HLFE"
SREABERNIEERESOBRER =
EmstESFEREEEEMAMES) -
BB 36(A) ©

Hao Tian Finance and its subsidiaries RXBERANE A A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—t5F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FE&TT
Current assets RENVEE 1,775,459 1,961,262
Non-current assets IEREEE 265,894 264,875
Current liabilities mEafE (924,479) (1,184,644)
Non-current liabilities ERHARE (114,420) (106,490)

Equity attributable to owners of RNAFER AEEER

the Company 791,511 740,781
Non-controlling interests Bl T 210,943 194,222
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, mARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) (continued) (b)y (&)
Hao Tian Finance and its subsidiaries (continued) RXBHEREMNE A (4F)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT

Revenue g 108,464 132,756
Profit for the year F R 67,451 40,916
Profit for the year attributable to: FEIEERER] :

— owners of the Company . VNGIEZZ=DN 50,730 30,772

— non-controlling interests — FEIERRAE 16,721 10,144
Profit for the year F R 67,451 40,916
Total comprehensive income (expense) JE{G 2 TEUES (Fisz) 48%E -

attributable to:

— owners of the Company . VNGIEZZ =N 50,730 (42,558)

— non-controlling interests — FEIERRAE 16,721 (14,026)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRE MW (FIs) 4258

for the year 67,451 (56,584)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 42 2 EHT1SIR SR AF 189,604 93,988
Net cash outflow from investing activities & /A TSR &7 HIF 58 (252,446) (273,985)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from BMEEBFABRS ORE) RAEEE

financing activities (142,000) 267,720
Net cash (outflow) inflow e ORH) mAFHE (204,842) 87,723

Annual Report %k 2017/18 235



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45.
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Hao Tian Management and its subsidiaries

ARBETEME L BNFE ()

(b) (&)

RXEERENER A

2018 2017

—E-NF ZZE—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET

Current assets MEVEE 2,592,794 2,319,997

Non-current assets EREEE 536,920 696,125

Current liabilities mEAE (2,478,613) (2,007,287)

Non-current liabilities EREAE - -
Equity attributable to owners of RATEE ANEEER

the Company 601,683 932,265

Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 2R 49,418 76,570

Revenue WS - _

Loss for the year/period F/ENEE (198,901) (1,608,948)

Loss for the year/period attributable to:  fE{5 4, HIREE

— owners of the Company — AREHER A (183,804) (1,486,829)

— non-controlling interests — FERER M AR (15,097) (122,119

Loss for the year/period F HNER (198,901) (1,608,948)
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, mARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) (continued) (b)y (&)
Hao Tian Management and its subsidiaries (continued) RXEERAENE 7] (48)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Total comprehensive expense 2 EAT a5
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — RANEHEB A (330,582) (1,904,536)
— non-controlling interests — FEYERRAE RS (27,152) (132,784)
Total comprehensive expense for F/HANEERAY A
the year/period (357,735) (2,037,320)
Net cash (outflow) inflow from LEFEETBIRE ORE) RA
operating activities SREE (318,188) 436,764
Net cash outflow from investing activities & & /EB TSR &R L IF 58 (1,590) (419,995)
Net cash inflow from financing activities @& /EB TSR &R AFE 308,777 64,124
Net cash (outflow) inflow Re ORH) RAFEE (11,001) 80,893
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF  45.

THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) (continued)

Hao Tian International Construction and its

subsidiaries

(b) (&)

ARBETEME L BNFE ()

RXERERRENE R A

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE&TT

Current assets RENVEE 228,996 157,114
Non-current assets EREBEE 405,290 578,988
Current liabilities mEEE (152,885) (150,600)
Non-current liabilities EREAE (128,409) (122,260)
Equity attributable to owners of RNAEER AREER

the Company 216,015 373,468
Non-controlling interests JEIE i 136,977 88,802
Revenue Wz 165,869 51,232
(Loss) profit for the year/period F/8R (EBER) % (12,526) 9,457
(Loss) profit for the year/period FEMREEHR (1B ) m A

attributable to:

— owners of the Company — RRAFHEABA (7,904) 7,826

— non-controlling interests — R RER (4,622) 1,631
(Loss) profit for the year/period W (B8 % 7 (12,526) 9,457
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, mARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) (continued) (b)y (&)

Hao Tian International Construction and its RXEBERREMBELF(E)
subsidiaries (continued)

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
Total comprehensive (expense) income  [E(E 2 () IRe5 4858 ¢
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — RATEA A (7,904) 7,826
— non-controlling interests — FEPEAR R (4,622) 1,631
Total comprehensive (expense) income & /HIN2 M (B ) W44
for the year/period (12,526) 9,457
Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating #& &£ KSR ESRA
activities (R i) F48 45,452 (13,476)
Net cash outflow from investing activities &% &/ZE TSR & M EIF5E (158,631) (10,836)
Net cash inflow from financing activities & /ZEFTSR &R AFEE 161,609 7,381
Net cash inflow (outflow) ReEnA(Rd) F5 48,430 (16,931)
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF  45.

THE COMPANY (continued)

ARBETEME L BNFE ()

(b) (continued) (b)y (&)
Fujian Nuogi and its subsidiaries BEFGRANE A A
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+t5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current assets RENVEE 12,047 1,148
Non-current assets IEREEE 112,018 116,885
Current liabilities nEBE (28,630) (14,773)
Non-current liabilities EREB AR = (9,250)
Equity attributable to owners of RRATEE AEEER
the Company (57,194) (62,334)
Non-controlling interests FEIE e R (38,241) (41,676)
Revenue U %5 34,618 9,323
(Loss) profit for the year/period FHRW (EE) %R (15,815) 992
(Loss) profit for the year/period A, HAA (F518) %5
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — AARHEAA (9,478) 595
— non-controlling interests — IR = (6,337) 397
(Loss) profit for the year/period FHIM (E518) % T (15,815) 992
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 45, mARFEFEMBARMNES (&)
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) (continued) (b)y (&)
Fujian Nuogi and its subsidiaries (continued) wREHTRAKE A (B)
2018 2017
—E-NF ZZE—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Total comprehensive (expense) income  E{E 2 () N5 4858 ¢
attributable to:
— owners of the Company — NANEEB A (5,137) 595
— non-controlling interests — BRI A (3,435) 397
Total comprehensive (expense) income 4 /BIRN2E (B ) W& 58
for the year/period (8,572) 992
Net cash outflow from operating activities & & 2SR MR F5E (10,710) (3,671)
Net cash outflow from investing activities & & /EE TSR M FEE (1,369) (359)
Net cash inflow from financing activities @& /ZEMSRESRAFE 16,505 6,203
Net cash inflow e MAFEE 4,426 2,173
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46.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures dealings and broking, which are
regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures

Commission.

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group which are
subject to minimum capital requirements imposed by
respective regulatory authorities, complied with all the

minimum capital requirements.

As at 31 March 2018, the capital structure of the Group
consists of debt, which include borrowings, secured notes
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves, set off with

accumulated loss.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues, as well as the issue

of new debts or the redemption of existing debt.
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 47. MEETHMEEEENHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-cash changes

FREED
Purchase of
Asat  Financing Finance  property, Loss As at
1 April cash cost  plantand  Exchange Share onearly 31 March
2017 flows  recognised  equipment loss  issue cost redemption 2018
RIE-t%  RER:  EEZN  BENE kih  REER R-E-NF
MA—H nE  BARE BEREE  EXEE BORA BE ZA=t-H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL

(Note)
i3]
Borrowings EL 939,019 (146,59) 61,162 - - - - 853,585
Obligations under finance leases BYEE&E 6,892 (5,734) 32 11,197 - - - 12,681
Secured notes BERZEE 150,331 350,532 3,700 - 577 - 700 505,840
Accrual — interest payable et — NS - - 6477 - - - - 6,477
Other liability HiogE 106,490 - 7930 - - - - 114,420
Accrued issue cost JERH BT - (3,077) - - - 3077 - -
Note: The cash flows represent the proceeds from new borrowings, Mzt : RERBEMEERSRE  EREE BEH
repayment of borrowings, obligation under finance leases, secured EAE  FERRBUARMNEBARKRMNEE K3
notes and cost incurred for share placing and issue of bonus shares TTHIRPTE 2 PR -
of a subsidiary.
48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 48. LWMTH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) @I AKEHR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL AAFERE BRI A
BaENemEE
— Held for trading —RBEES 1,258,246 1,241,008
— Designated as FVTPL —IBENAAFEFER
HEMbsr A B - 27,779
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ BER N ERZIE (BERS
and cash equivalents) EBESEEIER) 1,799,625 1,964,730
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 814,059 764,488
3,871,930 3,998,005
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. €W I A (/&)

(a) Categories of financial instruments (continued) (a)

TRMTANER (E)

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
Financial liabilities cHaE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL AFEFFEAHE L
FABENERBE 238,893 319,350
Amortised cost 4 SE R AN 1,617,731 1,321,201
1,856,624 1,640,551
(b) Financial risk management objectives and (b) £REREEBEERBEK
policies

As at 31 March 2018, the Group's financial instruments
include deposits, pledged bank deposits, trade and
interest receivables, other receivables, loan receivables,
finance lease receivables, consideration receivable,
investments held for trading, available-for-sale
investments, bank balances, trust and segregated
accounts, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other
payables and accruals, borrowings, obligations under
finance leases, secured notes and other liability (2017:
deposits, pledged bank deposits, trade and interest
receivables, other receivables, loan receivables, finance
lease receivables, consideration receivable, investments
held for trading, financial assets designated at FVTPL,
available-for-sale investments, bank balances, trust and
segregated accounts, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, other payables and accruals, borrowings,
obligations under finance leases, secured notes and
other liability). Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

There has been no significant change to the Group's

exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk from prior year.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk
Foreign currency risk management

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which expose the Group
to foreign currency risk. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities excluding
intra-group balances at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

48. ¢RI H (%)

(b)

Assets
EE
2018

EREMEERERBE(B)

5 AR

SR B HE

ARBBRMBARETIEEER <
ZK%IEEM\\%H o AN B AT
SNSRI o AT - EIRE B SMNE
BB - XA T B E EE R EARIMNE
[\ o

REEHIR  REBUINESHERN S
BENAB(TEEEBALLH) NER
(EV RN

Liabilities
=L
2017 2018 2017

—E-N\E —2—+HF ZEB-NFE —ZT—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT FHExT FET

United States Dollars ("US$") =T ([Ex]) 7,028 40,130 186,245 234,860
Renminbi ("RMB") ARE(TARYD 25,241 68,404 - -
Euro ("EURO") BT ([&oel) 11,133 1,759 - 83
Japanese dollar ("JPY") Bx(Bxl)) 5,203 4,404 1,606 17,345
Singapore dollar ("SGD") oo (T#msEwTl) 28 - 6,777
Macau Pataca (“MOP") AT (DRM ) 383 613 = =
British Pound (“GBP") 1)) 386,394 - 1,527 -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign currency risk management (continued)

In addition, as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the
Company considered that the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk arose from intra-group balances
due to foreign operation of HK$300,288,000 (2017:
HK$246,083,000), which were not denominated in the
functional currency of the respective group entities.
These intra-group loans do not form part of the Group's

net investment in foreign operations.
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange rate
fluctuation of HK$, US$, EUR, JPY, SGD, MOP, GBP and
RMB against the functional currency of respective group
entities, which is mainly HK$ and RMB. The directors of
the Company considered that, as HK$ is pegged to
US$, the subsidiaries with HK$ as functional currency,
are subject to insignificant foreign currency risk from
change in foreign exchange rate of HK$ against US$,
therefore US$ is not considered in the sensitivity

analysis.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

5% is the sensitivity rate used by the directors of the
Company in the assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis below demonstrates the effect of the foreign
exchange differences by a 5% change in exchange rate
of the functional currencies against the relevant foreign
currencies of the Company and respective subsidiaries,
other than US$ for those with HK$ functional currency,
assuming all other variables were held constant. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as
loans to foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the
functional currency of the lender or borrower. A
negative number below indicates an increase in post-
tax loss (2017: an increase in post-tax loss) where the
functional currencies strengthening 5% against the
relevant foreign currencies of the Company and
respective subsidiaries, other than US$ (for those with
HK$ functional currency). For a 5% weaken of the
functional currencies of the Company and respective
subsidiaries, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the results for the year.

48. ¢RI H (%)

(b)

EREMEERERBE(B)

w5 mE (&)

BREE DT (1)

RRABERFEHINEERATEE LS
SEED RS (£ A ) GURRE /5 5% TS sl ) BHURK
EDMIIRAR R R EM B AR H 6
BRAARBINE (BB AETT - Bl
TEIEETT) EREE) 5% (RRPAEEM
HERFITE)EARARALENB AR
ERZRERNTE - FRESTERE
SNERER A TARBARIIER 2 E
AU E R 2 FHEERL BRRERAHAER
ANZINEEERELASN 2 BHE) - LT R BE B
RAEARBREZMBRARNINGEE
HHARINE (MIae B RET - BT
BAEETT) FHES% R - Biiz B8 #5120
(ZZF—+F: RERBEES L) ®E
ARRIREWMBARININEEEREZES%
B BEUAFENEESRKAEENR
[REVEE -

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Increase in post-tax loss for the year FEREEEIEN (17,754) (2,128)
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk management

As at 31 March 2018, the Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk in relation to pledged bank deposits,
bank balances, secured notes and variable-rate
borrowings (2017: pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and variable-rate borrowings) carrying

prevailing market interest rate.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed-rate borrowings, obligations under finance leases

and loan receivables.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging

significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to the variable rate pledged
bank deposits, bank balances, secured notes and
borrowings at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis points (2017:
50 basis point) increase or decrease is used on variable-
rate borrowings after considering the impact of volatile
financial market conditions. The directors of the
Company used 10 basis points (2017: 10 basis points) for
assessing interest rate risk on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances because they considered that the
fluctuations on interest rate on pledged bank deposits

and bank balances would be less significant.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If interest rates had been 50 basis points (2017: 50 basis
points) higher/lower for variable-rate borrowings and 10
basis points (2017: 10 basis points) higher/lower for
pledged bank deposits and balances and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's post-tax loss
for the year ended 31 March 2018 would increase/
decrease by HK$1,757,000 (2017: HK$2,067,000).

Price risk management

The management would manage its exposure arising
from these investments by closely monitoring the
performance of respective listed equity security and
derivatives and market conditions. The management
would consider diversifying the portfolio of these

investments as they consider appropriate.
Price risk equity investments

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
available-for-sale investments and investments held for
trading. For available-for-sale investments measured at
cost less impairment as the fair value could not be
measured reliably, they have not been included in the

sensitivity analysis.

48. ¢RI H (%)

(b)

EREMEERERBE(B)

w5 mE (&)
BREE DT (1)

42 BB 2 FIR EF R BRSO @2
(ZZF—+F : 50EES) MO EBRT
TRREHBZ TR EFTERI0EER
(ZZ—+F 10EEZ)  MATAEM
BERETE  AAEEHE=-Z )N
FZAZ+—ALFEIHREBEGE
B 1,757,000 T ( Z 8 — £ 4
2,067,000 7T) °

B m b &

ERERBBEYEE ETRAESR
TETAZRARTRABEREREZ
EREZER - EEEMNERREE
KERZTIRFREZHER -

RAKE Z (BT E R

AEBREAAHEERERFEERER
EMAZEMERER HEXFER
BEF SERTEMEAABRREAEZR
HEEREMS - REL R ABRE
T °
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to equity and debt price risks at
the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis
included those available-for-sale investments and
investments held for trading carried at fair values. If the
prices of the respective available-for-sale investments in
listed equity securities and investments held for trading
had been 10% (2017: 10%) higher, assuming all other
variables were held constant, the impact to the Group

(b)

48. ¢RI H (%)

CHEREEEERBK(E)

w5 mE (&)

g

HRE W

5

I THRESNIIRBEHRERRAZ 2
BAREHERRBRET - GURED T
BREAAFEIIRN MG ERE R
FRERE - REAAEMBEHRE T
WA HEE ETRAFESFRE LFF
FEERASAZERLEA10%(ZF
—EF 10%)  SEHAREEEKA TR
2 .

=

would be:

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Decrease in loss for the year FRNEER D 105,064 103,624

Decrease in other comprehensive FREMEEFRSRD
expense for the year 70,197 69,431
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

If the prices of respective available-for-sale investments
and held for trading investments had been 10% (2017:

10%) lower, assuming all other variables were held

constant, the impact to the Group would be:

48. ¢RI H (%)

(b)

CHEREEEERBK(E)

5 E R (1)
HEE T ()
REMBEMEBURETE WA fth

ERERBEEERESANER TR
10% (ZT—+4%F : 10%) © iFHREEE
AT

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Increase in loss for the year FRETIBLE N 112,082 110,774
Increase in other comprehensive A E th 2 [ R S 0

expenses for the year 63,179 62,281

10% (2017: 10%) change in price represents the directors
of the Company’s assessment of the reasonably

possible change in price.

As at 31 March 2018 and 2017, the Group was exposed
to concentration risk on the listed available-for-sale
investments and investments held for trading as they
comprise equity shares issued by several companies
listed in Hong Kong.

10% (= —+F :10%) BREPRAK
REEFMAEERAERENGEE
) o

RZE—NFRZZF—tF=A=+—
B AEBEAZ EWAHEERE R
EEREZEPRR  REARER
FERAEBHE LA REIT ZRAD
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Price risk on financial assets designated at FVTPL and
financial liabilities at FVTPL

As at 31 March 2018, the Group was also exposed to
price risk through its financial liabilities at FVTPL (2017:
financial assets designated at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at FVTPL).

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the
reporting period. If the prices of the listed equity
securities, which was used as key input in the valuation
of financial assets designated at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at FVTPL (particulars are set out in note 20),

had been 10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables

48. ¢RI H (%)

EREMEERERBE(B)

w5 mE (&)

KA T E BB AR
SBEERN AT @ EAEE (A
itz SRE 8.2 FRAR

RZZE-NF=ZA=1+—H " X&EET
MRENRXFEFEEES(HABREZ
EHEBEMAZERAR(ZT—LF:
BEAXNFEAEAESCHAERZ
ERMEERNAAFEFEEEE(LFA
BmzeBAaE) -

A THRE DT HIREREBAARET 2
BIRERET - BEAMAEME SRS
TE N ETRAES 2 ER(EBRAE
R E AR EFER L (L AE
HZeRHEERNAFEFELEZ L
SPABHZCREBEZEEZRALH (G
BEEAKITE20)) EF R 10% + #

were held constant, the impact to the Group would be: REBERKATHE
2018 2017
—E-NFE —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Increase in post-tax loss for the year FRENIEEEIEN (19,948) (24,346)
Decrease in post-tax loss for the year FERIZBERD 19,948 24,346

In opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis above is unrepresentative of the
inherent market risk as the pricing model used in the fair
value valuation of financial liabilities at FVTPL (2017:
financial assets designated at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at FVTPL) involves multiple variables and

certain variables are interdependent.
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2018, other than trade and interest
receivables, other receivables and deposits, loan
receivables, considerable receivable, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trust and segregated accounts
and bank balances and cash, whose carrying amounts
best represent the maximum exposure to credit risk, the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note

38.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has concentration of
credit risk in respect of loan receivables and
consideration receivable (2017: financial assets
designated at FVTPL, loan receivables, consideration
receivables). As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s loan
receivables were due from 143 (2017: 116)
counterparties (see note 27); and the Group's
consideration receivable was due from 1 (2017: 1)
counterparty (see note 30). In order to minimise the
credit risk, the Group has monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual debt at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds deposited with a few major banks. The credit risk
on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are

banks with good reputation.

48. ¢RI H (%)

(b)

EREMEERERBE(E)

=EREZ

RNZZE—\F=ZA=+—H BREEM@
B ERAYEaEERR 2 EKE
R PEWRS - E b fEUCRIE R RT @
FEWER - EIRE - BEBRITER
IRITHE  EARBLRFPUKIRITE
MERBEeN NEEEYRERERNERM
RENVBEREENKABELER
AREEAERERMBRANGEREE
[E R E P FE 38 ©

7z

R-ZE—N\F=ZA=+—8 A£EZ
ERERRERRE(ZE—HF 5%
INAFEFEBEES T ABREZER®
aE BURERLERRE)BREESEHR
B RZTE—NF=ZA=+—H8 &
EEZERERTER 14372 (ZF—+
F:NM6B)RGEF(RWEE27) : kA
EEZERREDER—R(ZE—F
F:—R)XSHHF (RMFE30) - BidE
BRREEHE - NEEREEERER
DARE (R BRER BR 3 77 ) U5 1B 380 B SR A RO 15
%o WA - REERIRE RS E
PIMER A A W B4 58 - LARRR AR AT Uk
Bl GEEIEL T RERE - Stms -
AAREEFRAEAEBNEERRE X

R o

AEBFRELBIZRTORDES
EEESTER ARHFITRERT
BREMFRZRT  BWRBESNE
ERmBAR o
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. eWM I A (&)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and by =REREEEEREE(E)

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had outstanding
consideration receivable of HK$24,980,000 (2017:
HK$67,680,000) due from 1 (2017: 1) counterparty buyer
in respect to the disposal of subsidiaries (2017: disposal
of subsidiaries). The Group is exposed to credit risk for
the amount of HK$24,980,000 (2017: HK$67,680,000)
which had been due as at 31 March 2018. The
management of the Group takes active negotiation and
follow-up action to recover the consideration
receivables in order to minimise the credit risk. Details

are set out in note 30.

As at 31 March 2018, loan receivables of HK$86,520,000
(2017: HK$47,450,000) were past due. The Group is
exposed to credit risk in the event that the loan
borrowers fail to perform its obligation to repay the
amount in full. The management of the Group takes
active negotiation and follow-up action to recover the
loan receivables in order to minimise the credit risk. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company, the risk of
non-recoverability of the amount is minimal, as the loan
receivables were secured by sufficient collateral which
could recover the amount of the loan receivables in
case the loan borrowers fail to perform its obligation.

Details are set out in note 27.
Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity risk by monitoring and
maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors
the utilisation of borrowings and ensures compliance

with loan covenants.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 HE —ZE— \F=ZA=+—HIFE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. €MTAE(E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and by =REREEEEREE(E)

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) HBELER(E)

The following table details the Group’s remaining TRAJNAEESHEENTIHEHH
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. It has R TRABENRAEEAEFTE2XNE
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows BEENRTRREERENZEEM
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which HIET o %Rl - REZREERGERER
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank ZHRITEFAH AR EHEERE (TwmikT
loans with a repayment on demand clause are included BB EHRER 2 RE) c HtEemE
in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of EZHHATDREBEREEERBmE -
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The maturity ZRAKBEMNERASHREGRE -

dates for other financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted ~ On demand

average or between Between Total Carrying
effective 1to03 4t012 Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate months months 1year  cash flows 31 March
1

T REXY FBEHEE =B=t-H
BERA= 1238  4Z12{8A -FHE RELH ZIREE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TiEn TiEn TER TER TER

2018 “B-N\§
Trade payables JER RSN N/A
TER 76,634 - - 76,634 76,634

Other payables and HitERZIER N/A

accruals st HE T 54,571 - - 54,571 54,571
Borrowings BE 4.70 516,574 97,137 287,656 901,367 853,585
Secured notes RERZE 10.45 14,280 188,152 545,672 748,104 505,840
Other liability EtRGRE 8.00 115,000 - - 115,000 114,420
Obligations under finance ~ BEMEHIE

leases 8.70 1,194 3,582 8,752 13,528 12,681

778,253 288,871 842,080 1,909,204 1,617,731

Financial guarantees issued IR THIBER
— Maximum amount —EeEREH N/A
guaranteed TER 11,533 - - 11,533 -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48

(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Weighted ~ On demand
average  or between
effective Tt03

interest rate months

ERME 1E3EA

$RMTA(E)

(b) £REMREEAEREE(E)

mEELERE (&)
Between Total Carrying
41012 Over undiscounted ~ amount at
months Tyear  cashflows 31 March

.
Rn
N\

AREE =A=1+—H
AZNMEA —FUE RERE  BEE

% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER TER TEx TER TET
2017 “EtfF
Trade payables TR N/A
NER 61,390 - - 61,390 61,390
Other payables and it EAFUER N/A
accruals TR Gl 57,079 - - 57,079 57,079
Borrowings EE 6.36 707,947 39,995 237,269 985,211 939,019
Secured notes BERZER 21.15 - 20,400 159,154 179,554 150,331
Other liability B e 8.0 - - 115,000 115,000 106,490
Obligations under finance B4 E I &
leases 8.1 1,056 3,169 3,131 7,356 6,892
827,472 63,564 514,554 1,405,590 1,321,201
Financial guarantees issued Fr&{THHER
— Maximum amount —EaEREH N/A
guaranteed TiEH 13,462 - - 13,462 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 5l EZ =%

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the “on demand or between 1 to 3 months”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 31 March
2018, the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of
these bank loans amounted to HK$567,058,000 (2017:
HK$696,196,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors of the Company do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that
such bank loans will be repaid after the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows

are set out as follows:

B ISR M

—N\F=ZA=1t—HLLFE

48. ¢RI H (%)

Weighted  On demand

(b) émﬂﬂpﬁai@a*ﬁﬁﬁkkk /[/t\

mEELEE(E)

?ﬁﬁ%*fal@%ﬁ%iZfEﬁ%ﬁk FA
P BIHAB R 2 R ERk 1 231
Rl KHEE RS- N\F=A=1+—
B ZERTERZANELRCHEES
567,058,000/8 T ( ZZ—+H4F : 696,196,000
BT o KB RAEE ZMBARRE A
NRAEERE  RITTARETERERIES
BERRRERE - ARRESERAE R
BB s Fﬁ%ﬁiZ*JrzlJféiﬁElﬁﬂ " BH
BITERBRIBEREREEE - B8
ZK@&?'NJEEEimﬁ%@m%ﬁ?ﬁ}%ﬁlmﬂ? :

average  or between Between Total Carrying
effective 1103 41012 Over undiscounted ~ amount at
interest rate months months 1year cashflows 31 March
i
¥4 RERY KBRS =ZA=1+-8
BRAZE  1E3fHA 4E1288 -FHME  REEE  2KEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR
Borrowings BE
At 31 March 2018 RZB-N\%
ZA=t+-8 5.47 492,658 17,267 63,980 573,905 567,058
At 31 March 2017 RB—t%
ZA=t+-H 6.23 649,420 16,753 59,623 725,796 696,196
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. SRTHE(E)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (¢ SRMITEMNATEE

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

(i)  Fair value of the Group'’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial
instruments are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

A ERHEAEENAEEZESHE
ENERBEATFENER -

(i) HEBEMEEZNFETBHIE
BT AN FE

AEEETLMTANE BERK
BATEE  TRIRHABD
EERSSRIAN L TE
2 7155 73 0 f L 15 TR 89 AU
&R o

Fairvalue  Valuation techniques

Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs
SREE R=A=+-BMALE DYERE HERTRIEGAHE
2018 2017
ZE-0\F I S o3
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR ThT
Listed equity securities classified as 463,977 694310 Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market

available-for-sale investments

PERMENERE, EMRAES

Unlisted fund investment classified as 237,994 -
available-for-sale investment

PERMBNERE FLTHESRE

Listed equity securities classified as 1,258,195 1,237,200
investments held for trading

PERFIEEERE . LRkAES

Overseas listed derivatives classified as 51 3,808
investments held for trading

PERFIEEEREL
A ERITETA

Convertible bond classified as financial - 271,779
assets designated at FVTPL

ARRETULTENEAEE
et \Bm z R REER
RRES
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F—& REETSHRE

Level 2 Estimated based on the quoted price of

E s underlying equity securities
RIERERAESORERL

Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market

F—& REETSHRE

Level 1 Quoted prices in an active market

F—& REETSHRE

Level 3 Discounted cash flow and Binomial

F= Option Pricing Model. Future cash
flows are estimated based on the
prevailing market rate of interest of
similar instruments. The unobservable
key input is expected volatility and
discount rate.

BB RER-BABREEES -

AR EREHREENTANRT
TENERGE - TEATERGA
YBEARERERAERE -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. SRITH (&)
(¢) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c) EMIEBENAFENE(E

(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments (i) UEEMEEZNFHETENEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring E&@IT AN A FE(E)
basis (continued)

Fair value  Valuation techniques
Financial liabilities Fair value as at 31 March hierarchy  and key inputs
ERER R=ZB=+-ANATE ATERR RERGREIEBABE
2018 2017
—B-NF “EtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT
CSFG Option and HTF Warrants 11,750 34561 Level3 Binomial Option Pricing Model.
PR REERER F=MR The unobservable key input is
SRR BRIRMEE expected volatility detailed in
note 20 (note ii)
“EABEEEES c T2
By ABBRAM 20 (WaTi) A
it 2 FEHRIE
Option arising from HTM Subscription 227,143 284789 Level3 The present value and Monte-
ERERRRFEMESL B =R Carlo Simulation Model.

The unobservable key input are
expected volatility of the Company,
expected volatility of Hao Tian
Management and correlation
detailed in note 20 (note iii)

RERFBRERRE - TEAT
BRB A BB AME 20 (M) A
FLZARE BHKIE - RRER
2 R B8 AR A1

Annual Report %k 2017/18 259



Hao Tian Development Group Limited ® 2 XZEEEEFR QA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 ##EZ—F— \F=A=+—HIFE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Notes:

(a)

If the expected volatility of the share price to the
valuation model had been 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the aggregate
carrying amount of CSFG Option and HTF Warrants
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,149,000/HK$1,077,000 (2017: HK$2,590,000/
HK$2,251,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative
of the inherent price risk as the period end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

If the expected volatility of the Company to the
valuation model had been 5% higher/lower while all
other variables were held constant, the carrying
amount of HTD Option would increase/decrease by
approximately HK$984,000/HK$383,000 (2017:
HK$684,000/HK$936,000). If the expected volatility of
Hao Tian Management to the valuation model had
been 5% higher/lower while all other variables were
held constant, the carrying amount of HTD Option
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$1,181,000/HK$602,000 (2017: HK$864,000/
HK$1,928,000). If the correlation to the valuation
model had been 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the carrying amount of
HTD Option would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$711,000/HK$696,000 (2017:
HK$198,000/HK$206,000). In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the
period end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the period.
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48. ¢RI H (%)

(c)

ERMTANAFERE(E)

(i)

LR MEER N FEABHAE
EZ T AR -FEE)

LI

MR EEBEEERE XN KE L
/T B5% - T A
HHETE BFRLRESHED
R R Z KRR EENBIR
T & 15 3% o0k 2 491,149,000 7
JL./1,077,0008 T (=T —t 4 :
2,590,000 7T/ 2,251,000 7T.) ©
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WAREKE G EBERE
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A& RIHTDHA A 79 BR @ B 5 18
10,/ #7984,0007% 7T, 383,0008
o = T — £ F 68400078
TT/936000587T) ° MEREIE 2 TE
A ER A HIE L F T 5%
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(¢) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Of the total gains and losses for the year included
in profit or loss, net gain of HK$77,679,000 (2017:
net loss of HK$468,986,000) relates to financial
assets designated as at FVTPL and financial
liabilities at FVTPL held at the end of the current
year. Fair value gains or losses on financial assets
designated as at FVTPL and financial liabilities at

FVTPL are included in ‘other gains and losses’.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The board of directors of the Company
has set up an investment committee, which is
headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, to determine the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are
not available, the Group engages third party
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The
investment committee works closely with the
qualified external valuers to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
investment committee’s findings to the board of
directors of the Company every half year to
explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of

the assets and liabilities.

48. ¢RI H (%)

() EWMIAEMNAFETEGE)

(i) HEEMEEZNFETBHEAE
B ZmT A2 -FE(E)

RIE R A A2 AN s K 1R
T - FRERT7,679,0008 7T (=
T — £ F ¢ 1R 468,986,00078
T BAFERER ZIEENAAF

ENAXTHEEBESLE S
mZEMAERE - HEUNATFE
AERESHABRRNEREE
NIARFERTEBESLEt ABa
ZEREBEENAHERSSEES
SR [ B Yo as S B8R | A o

N FEEE RGBT

AEBBLBERABRMBEHRR
B E AR FEFE - "AF
EXEECKUREZES  BAR
AEFVHERE  NEEQAFE
FAEZESRERNEEARE -

REFTEEXBEZAFER &
SEEMAIESZMEABRER
%o WE—RBARBBTAA - Al
TEBZREE=75EKRAEME
TthE - REZ B HABRING
REMZE A EANERE 2 EE
Bt REABARIE - BHAEE
RBEXAFERSZREA - AFEH
BEBFFAARAEZTERER
BERBERERR -
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

48. ¢RI H (%)

() Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that include

inputs that are not based on observable market

data to estimate the fair value of certain types of

financial instruments. Note 20 provides detailed

information about the valuation techniques, inputs

and key assumptions used in the determination of

the fair value of various assets and liabilities.

(c)

ERMTANAFERE(E)

(i)

LR MEER N FEABHAE
EZ T AR -FEE)

N FEEE R A EBE (B)

AEBERBEELFFERABRED
SEIE 2 W ABIE 2 (AERM AR
ETHEASMT A ATE - M5
WVHINEETSREERABLRT
BERMERZAERN - BARE
REBHRBZFADEF -

31 March 2018
—E2-N\E=HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t = At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Available-for-sale AP ERE
investments 463,977 237,994 - 701,971
Investments held for BIEEERE
trading 1,258,246 - - 1,258,246
Financial liabilities UNAFEER
at FVTPL HE it A&
e A S= N = - (238,893) (238,893)
1,722,223 237,994 (238,893) 1,721,324
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &\ 2 —E— NF=A=+—HLLFE
48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 48. eWM I A (&)

() Fair value measurement of financial instruments () SWMIENAFEITEE)
(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments (i) BBEMBEEZLNFHETENEE
that are measured at fair value on a recurring E&@IT AN A FE(E)

basis (continued)

31 March 2017
—E—+F=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B EH F=MH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T FHET TAET

Available-for-sale AR HERE
investments 694,310 - - 694,310
Investments held for BEEERE
trading 1,241,008 - - 1,241,008
Financial assets EENATEE
designated at FVTPL BES(LEA
BamzeMEE - - 27,779 27,779
Financial liabilities AFEFER
at FVTPL HE bt ABam
ZERARE - - (319,350) (319,350)
1,935,318 - (291,571) 1,643,747
There were no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in F-REE L ERMEFER
both years. AT o
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

48. ¢RI H (%)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c)

(continued)

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments

that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial assets and financial liabilities

ERMTANAFERE(E)

HEEMBER N FEGTBHFE
EZ T AR -FEE)

EREERTHABIE=ZRAF
BB ZHR

Financial
assets Financial
designated liabilities
at FVTPL at FVTPL
EENAFE L RAFE
STEEHEH® HERHS
FTABEZ FFABEZ
cREE cRAaE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 April 2016 RZE—XREMA—H 490,402 (41,5195)
Addition NE - (271,472)
Total gains or losses recognised in WP HER 2 B E A%
profit or loss
— Change in fair value — REZF) (462,623) (6,363)
At 31 March 2017 ANZE—+F=A=1+—H 27,779 (319,350)
Redemption e (25,000) -
Total gains or losses recognised in RIBR R ER R85
profit or loss
— Change in fair value — N FEEE (2,779) 80,457
At 31 March 2018 RZZE-N\F=A=+—H - (238,893)
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(¢) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted

cash flows analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.

48. ¢RI H (%)

(c) &RTEMNAFEINE(E)

(i) WHUEEMEBREZ N FETELY
THEERTHEENLFHE

AEBEEREERTRRERED
A RS R AT BN SR
BEERGBAGENAFE-

ARBEERRNERE P REF
DR AARNEREENR SR
BEMEREAEEAERS -
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

49. RRFMBRRRKHE

2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FE&T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries i A NG B 2,717,304 2,233,719
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H e GRIE = 569
Amounts due from subsidiaries i A NG RE 1,611,349 1,681,663
Pledged bank deposits EEMIRITER = 9430
Bank balances and cash IRITEHR LIRS 460,966 229,065
2,072,315 1,920,727
Current liabilities RBEE
Other creditors & accruals Hib AR R R ERT B 9,828 1,893
Borrowings BE 325,315 120,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHT B A T3R8 892,685 797,626
Secured notes HEBEE 155,840 150,331
Financial liabilities at FVTPL WAFEEEEE AT AER
B E 238,893 319,351
1,622,561 1,389,201
Net current assets RBEEEE 449,754 531,526
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings E=Y 155,000 164,550
Secured notes BIEERE 350,000 -
505,000 164,550
Net assets BEFE 2,662,058 2,600,695
Equity s
Share capital ik&N 48,980 41,862
Reserves i 2,613,078 2,558,833
Total equity A 2,662,058 2,600,695
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: As at 31 March 2018, reserves of the Company included share

capital of HK$48,980,000 (2017: HK$41,862,000), share premium of
HK$4,273,404,000 (2017: HK$4,275,522,000), share option and
emolument share reserve of HK$800,000 (2017: HK$1,237,000),
debit of other reserve of HK$5,490,000 (2017: debit of
HK$5,490,000), put option reserve of HK$5,238,000 (2017:
HK$5,238,000) and accumulated losses of HK$1,660,874,000 (2017:
HK$1,717,674,000). Movements of the Company's share capital,
share premium and share option and emolument share reserve are
disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The
movements of the Company’s accumulated losses is attributable to
losses for the respective financial years.

50 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(i)

(iii)

On 14 April 2018, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with independent third parties (the
“"D&D Vendors"), pursuant to which the D&D Vendors
have conditionally agreed to sell, and the Company has
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share
capital of Done and Dusted Productions Limited
("D&D"), for a total consideration of US$89,600,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$703,400,000) (the
"D&D Acquisition”).

The details of D&D Acquisition have been disclosed in
the announcement of the Company issued on 15 April
2018 and the D&D Acquisition has not yet completed at
the date of this report.

On 12 April 2018, the 55 Acquisition was completed and

55 Mark Lane has become a subsidiary of the Company.

On 9 April 2018, the HTF Put Option was exercised by
RSGHL.

49. AXBMBRR KRR FHE (B)

Wi

50. &

i)

(i)

(iii)

RZZE—NF=ZA=+—8 AARNHERE
% 7 48,980,000 7T ( = F —H4F : 41,862,000/
TT) ~ BR D34 8 4,273,404,000/8 TT( Z B —+ 4 -
4,275,522,000% 7T ) « R AE R BB R D & E
800,000/ 7T ( = ZF —+ 4 : 1,237,000 7T) + &
ftb 55 5 2 1E 75 5,490,0008 L (—F—tF : &7
5,490,000 70) + 3Rk B RE {5 5,238,000 78 7T (=
T — £ 4:5238000/% L) &k R B
1,660,874,0008 70 (ZZF —+4F 1 1,717,674,000 %5
T0) o AN RRRA « BB K BB AR A K B2 EAR 1D
RENSEHHEBRESREZEHRT - ARFAZR
SHEBRLERES  IREARSVBEENER -

H®REE

RZZE-—NFMNA+MA - AAFEE
VE=F([D&DEF )L EEH#
BUHDADEFEEBRERELE - MK
AN AEE E %M R E B EDone and
Dusted Productions Limited ([D&D]) &
BB B ATRRAR - 48X {8 /389,600,000 3
7t (AB'E #49703,400,000 7% 70) ([ D&D U
BEE]) -

EHDDRBEBEZFBERENELR
AR -_ZE-N\FHUATHRMZAES
MD&DYFE RN AR S B Hi AR TR °

S5EEEERN =2 — \FHNA+=H
SEHX * 55 Mark Lane & 5K &2 A &) M B
NS

mEEER TN \FOANLBTES
R REHARE -
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Year ended 31 March #&2=A=+—1tFE

RESULTS i
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-WF ZT—RHF ZT—RF ZT—+F =ZT-N\FE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FETT FET FET FET FHET
Revenue g 201,768 60,899 129,986 206,313 330,017
(Loss) profit for the year ~ T35 AL/ELER
attributable to: (E8E)aF
— owners of the — ARREAA
Company (12,415) 1,522,565 524,398 (3,078,201) (444,906)
— non-controlling — JEPERR A
interests (44) (187) (58,424) (109,947) (80,864)
(Loss) profit for the year R (E18) % 7 (12,459 1,522,378 465,974 (3,188,848) (525,770)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 March
W=BA=+—H
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-mF —T-hF ZTXF —T—+tF ZEB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHT FHERT
Total assets BEBE 2,830,127 6,193,193 8,428,362 5,343,202 5,029,511
Total liabilities BEEE (276,270) (1,267,883) (1,560,233)  (1,781,718) (1,966,077)
2,553,857 4,925,310 6,868,129 3,561,484 3,063,434
Equity attributable to KARERA
owners of the Company  JE{h#EZS 2,548,903 4,925,310 6,659,881 3,323,989 2,791,630
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